
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

MARCH 17, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

March 17, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor John Frankenstein – Zion 

Christian Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 20 Years – The Business Advisory Group .................. 1 

b) Proclamation Celebrating 50 Years – Troy Youth Assistance .............................. 1 

c) Traffic Safety Award ............................................................................................. 1 
d) Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41

st
 District ................... 1 

e) Trails Committee Update ...................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 
2005 Unexpended Funds 1 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B:  (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: 
LaShish) – Continuance of Public Hearing 2 

D-2a Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: 
Macy’s) (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of 
Public Hearing 3 

D-2b Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (a) The May Department 
Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of Public Hearing 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; Cable 
Advisory Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Parks 
& Recreation Board; and Personnel Board 5 

E-2 Resolution to Reconsider Board and Commission Appointments of January 9, 
2006 7 

E-3 Adjustment to Plumbing Permit Fees 9 

E-4 Final Preliminary Plat Approval (Extension) – Beachview Estates Subdivision, 
West Side of Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18 11 

E-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – 
John R Garden Subdivision 11 

E-6 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses – Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30 12 

CONSENT AGENDA: 13 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 13 



 

 

 -  -  

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 14 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 14 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 14 

a) Community Development Block Grant Week – March 24-30, 2008 ................... 14 

b) Business Advisory Group, LLC – Celebrating 20 Years ..................................... 14 
c) Troy Youth Assistance – Celebrating 50 Years .................................................. 14 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 14 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aboveground Fuel 
Storage – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course .............................................................. 14 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000.00 – Michigan Municipal 
League ............................................................................................................... 15 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Agreement 
– Live Scan ......................................................................................................... 15 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John 
R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 
02.204.5 Parcel #73 – Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 15 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John 
R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 
02.204.5 Parcel #80 – Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 16 

F-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 16 

F-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claims, John R Road Improvements, Square 
Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.04.5 – Parcel #47B Sidwell #88-
20-02-228-037 – Charles E. Kemen, Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen 16 

F-9 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Kirts and Livernois 17 

F-10 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2007 17 

F-11 Rome Love v. City of Troy 17 

F-12 Request for Approval of Additional Payment of $100.00 for Loss of Trees – John 
R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard Project No. 
02.204.5 – Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi 18 



 

 

 -  -  

F-13 Blood Draw Agreements 18 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 18 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 18 

a) Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District 
(IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) 
– April 7, 2008 .................................................................................................... 18 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 18 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 18 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 18 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 18 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 18 

REPORTS: 19 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 19 

a) Animal Control Appeal Board Minutes/Final – September 5, 2007 .................... 19 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 3, 3007 ........ 19 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 3, 2007 ........ 19 

d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 2, 2008 ........ 19 
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 2, 2008 ........ 19 
f) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 10, 2008 ............................................... 19 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 6, 2008 ................................ 19 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 11, 2008 ...................................... 19 

i) Planning Commission/Draft – February 12, 2008 ............................................... 19 

j) Planning Commission/Final – February 12, 2008 ............................................... 19 

k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 19, 2008 .......................................... 19 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 4, 2008 .............................. 19 
m) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 5, 2008 ......................................... 19 
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 5, 2008 ..................................... 19 
o) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 10, 2008 ........................................... 19 

J-2 Department Reports: 19 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2008 ..... 19 



 

 

 -  -  

b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 29, 2008 ............................... 19 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 19 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie 
Bergeron Regarding Traffic Assistance during Commencement Ceremonies ... 19 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Westland Fire Chief Michael Reddy 
Regarding Participation and Support during Firefighter Funeral ........................ 19 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 19 

J-5  Calendar 19 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of the 
Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 19 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison 
Company – Case No. U-15417 19 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Leroy S. Nardi v. 
City of Troy 19 

STUDY ITEMS: 19 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 19 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 20 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 Closed Session: 20 

RECESSED 20 

RECONVENED 20 

ADJOURNMENT 20 



 

 

 -  -  

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 21 

Monday, April 7, 2008 .............................................................................................. 21 
1. Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District 

(IDD) ................................................................................................................... 21 
2. Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) .............................................................................. 21 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 21 

Monday, April 7, 2008 Regular City Council .......................................................... 21 
Monday, April 21, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 21 
Monday, May 12, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 21 
Monday, May 19, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 21 
Monday, June 2, 2008 Regular City Council ......................................................... 21 

Monday, June 16, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 21 

Monday, July 7, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................... 21 
Monday, July 21, 2008 Regular City Council ......................................................... 21 

Monday, August 11, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 21 
Monday, August 25, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 21 
Monday, September 8, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................ 21 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor John Frankenstein – Zion 

Christian Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 20 Years – The Business Advisory Group 

b) Proclamation Celebrating 50 Years – Troy Youth Assistance  

c) Traffic Safety Award  

d) Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41
st
 District  

e) Trails Committee Update   
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 

2005 Unexpended Funds 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on this 
date, March 17, 2008 has determined that Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program year 2005 unexpended funds of $82,795.00 should be re-programmed from the Flood 
Drain Improvements Project to the Public Facilities and Improvements, Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The balance of CDBG Program Year 2005 Special Assessment Project funds for 
approximately 12 low-moderate income residents on Olympia and Tacoma Streets in the 
amount of  $4,703.43 should be re-programmed to the Public Facilities and Improvements, 
Section 36 Park Improvement Project;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS the Public Facilities 
and Improvements, Section 36 Park Improvement Project, to the list of CDBG projects for 
2005.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B:  (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: 

LaShish) – Continuance of Public Hearing 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued 
on Monday, March 17, 2008 for the following licensed establishment: 
 

 Name:  LaShish, Inc. (dba: LaShish) 
  Address: 3720 Rochester Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (100797-2007 SS) 

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations on October 28, 2003 SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); August 16, 2001 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and 
continued on Monday, March 17, 2008; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 100797-2007 SS in 

the name of LaShish, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED or NOT BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS AND/OR TAMS trained and that the Licensee 
provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified 

copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

D-2a Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: 

Macy’s) (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of 

Public Hearing 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:  
 

 Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
  Address: 2752 W. Big Beaver Rd., 48084 
  License No.: SDM (133308-2007)  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 10, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued on Monday, March 17, 
2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had no prior violations; and  
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued on 
Monday, March 17, 2008; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 

HAS DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws 
and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 133308-2007 in the name of The May Department Stores Company in the 
City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic 

liquor TIPS AND/OR TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

D-2b Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (a) The May Department 

Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of Public Hearing 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and continued 
on Monday, March 17, 2008 for the following licensed establishment: 

  
  Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 

  Address: 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (132719-2007)  

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 and 
continued on Monday, March 17, 2008; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 132719-2007 in the 

name of The May Department Stores Company in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED or NOT BE 

RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS AND/OR TAMS trained and 
that the Licensee provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) 

days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; Cable 

Advisory Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Parks 

& Recreation Board; and Personnel Board   

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 02/28/11 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 03/01/11 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

*Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
*Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

*Recommendations from Historical Society received. 
 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Term; 1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term; 1-Troy Daze Committee: 

1-Year Term; 1-Adv. Comm for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 

 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2 Resolution to Reconsider Board and Commission Appointments of January 9, 

2006 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

(a) Reconsideration Motion 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2006-01-007, Moved 
by Schilling and Seconded by Beltramini, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling   
No: Broomfield, Fleming  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes:    
No:   
 

(b) Separation Resolution 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES active motion as follows: 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 

and 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

   
Yes:    
No: 
  

(c) Board of Review Appointment 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
Yes:   
No:   
 

(d) Planning Commission Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes:   
No:   
 

E-3 Adjustment to Plumbing Permit Fees 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the 
Plumbing Permit Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply to 
plumbing permit applications submitted after April 1, 2008: 
 

PLUMBING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

Description Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Stacks/Conductors $10.00 No Change 

Sink (any description) $  8.00 $10.00 

Bathtub $  8.00 $10.00 

Water Closet $  8.00 $10.00 

Lavatory $  8.00 N/A 

Water Heater $  8.00 $10.00 

Water Heater (replacement) $25.00 No Change 

Laundry Tray or Stand Pipe $  8.00 $10.00 

Floor Drain $  8.00 $10.00 

Ejector Pump or Water Lift $  8.00 $10.00 

Drinking Fountain $  8.00 $10.00 

Grease Trap Interceptor $  8.00 $10.00 

Urinal $  8.00 $10.00 

Bar Sink – Soda Fountain (each opening) $  8.00 N/A 

Shower Trap or w/Pan $  8.00 $10.00 

Dishwashing Machine $  8.00 $10.00 

Humidifier $  8.00 $10.00 

Garbage Disposal $  8.00 $10.00 

Sump or Interceptor $  8.00 $10.00 

Hose Bibs $  5.00 $  8.00 

Water Treatment Device Softener/Filter $10.00 No Change 

Washing Machine $  8.00 N/A 

Special Fixture $  8.00 N/A 

Refrigeration Connection $  8.00 N/A 

Dental Chairs $  8.00 $10.00 

Surgical Cuspidor $  8.00 N/A 

Building Main to Sewer $20.00 No Change 

Inside Sub Soil Drains System $15.00 No Change 

Roof Sump $10.00 No Change 

Underground – Slab - Separate Inspection $  9.00 N/A 

Miscellaneous Fixtures $  8.00 $10.00 

Back Water Valve N/A $10.00 

Backflow Prevention Device N/A $10.00 

Medical Gas (per opening) N/A $10.00 

   

Water Distribution (see below): 

¾’ = $15.00  1-1/2” = $30.00  3” = $55.00 

1” = $20.00  2” = $30.00  4” = $63.00 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

1-1/4” = $25.00  2-1/2” = $45.00  Over 4” = $75.00 

   

Minimum Permit Fee $25.00 N/A 

   

Special Inspection (per hour) $30.00 /hour $50.00 /hour 

   

Addition to permit before Inspection – Regular Fee   

Addition to permit after Inspection – Minimum Fee   

Cancellation of Permit - 25% of Permit Fee/$10.00   

Minimum   

   

Contractor Registration Fee (per year) $1.00 /year $5.00 /year 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Final Preliminary Plat Approval (Extension) – Beachview Estates Subdivision, 

West Side of Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a two-year extension of Final 
Preliminary Plat Approval for Beachview Estates Subdivision, located on the west side of 
Beach, south of Long Lake in Section 18, including 8 lots, within the R-1A zoning district, being 
5.55 acres in size. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John 

R Garden Subdivision        

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to sell surplus real estate 
parcel #88-20-26-429-045 located in Section 26, John R Garden Subdivision to the highest 
bidder, Orfeo Guerrier & Antonia Melaragni of Shelby Township, MI, at a total cost of 
$30,000.00, as listed on the bid tabulation opened February 29, 2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Real Estate and 

Development department to complete the sale of the City-owned parcel and AUTHORIZES the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

Real Estate and Development department  to expend the necessary closing costs to complete 
this purchase according to the bid proposal instructions, terms and conditions of sale; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign a warranty deed to be delivered at closing. 
 

OR   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to sell surplus real estate 
parcel #88-20-26-429-045 located in Section 26, John R Garden Subdivision to the lowest 
bidder, William K. Morrow, as Trustee DTD 7/6/87 of Troy, MI, at a total cost of $25,101.00, as 

listed on the bid tabulation opened February 29, 2008, CONTINGENT upon an environmental 
phase one analysis paid for by the purchaser; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Real Estate and 

Development department to complete the sale of the City-owned parcel and AUTHORIZES the 
Real Estate and Development department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete 
this purchase according to the bid proposal instructions, terms and conditions of sale; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign a warranty deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses – Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30        

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

Proposed Resolution: Version A 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the recommendation of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee that would limit the sale of alcoholic beverages on City owned golf courses 
to beverages that contain less than 21 percent alcohol by volume; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending 
Section 10 of Chapter 30 of the Code of the City of Troy, Golf Courses, and that incorporates 
the recommendation of the Liquor Advisory Committee, as recommended by City 

Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Addendum to 
the Agreement entitled Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, by and between, Kosch 
Special Events L.L.C. and the City of Troy, and labeled Version A incorporating the Liquor 

Advisory Committee’s recommendation, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

execute the addendum as of the effective date of the amendment to Chapter 30, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Third Addendum 
to the Lease Agreement, by and between, Gallatin, Inc. and the City of Troy, and labeled 

Version A Incorporating the Liquor Advisory Committee’s recommendation,  and AUTHORIZES 
the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the addendum as of the effective date of the amendment 

to Chapter 30, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

OR 
 

Alternate Resolution: Version B 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Section 10 of 
Chapter 30 of the Code of the City of Troy, Golf Courses, which will allow liquor to be sold by 

the operator on the City owned golf courses, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Addendum to 
the Agreement entitled Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, by and between, Kosch 

Special Events L.L.C. and the City of Troy, and labeled Version B, and AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the addendum as of the effective date of the amendment to 

Chapter 30, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Third Addendum 
to the Lease Agreement, by and between, Gallatin, Inc. and the City of Troy, and labeled 

Version B, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the addendum as of the 

effective date of the amendment to Chapter 30, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 

been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 3, 2008 

be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 

a) Community Development Block Grant Week – March 24-30, 2008 

b) Business Advisory Group, LLC – Celebrating 20 Years 

c) Troy Youth Assistance – Celebrating 50 Years  

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aboveground Fuel 

Storage – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course        
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to install one new 
aboveground fuel storage tank at Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Facility to the low bidder, R.W. 
Mercer Company of Jackson, MI, for an estimated total cost of $45,575.00, at prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened February 11, 2008, and subsequent letter dated February 25, 

2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000.00 – Michigan Municipal League        
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2008 through April 30, 
2009, in the amount of $12,252.00. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Agreement – Live 

Scan        
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The electronic capture and transmission of fingerprints is a proven and effective 
method of storing fingerprint impressions and identifying persons;   
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has purchased the latest technology using grant funds and must 
retain ownership of the equipment; and  
 
WHEREAS, All participating agencies are being asked to pay for maintenance on the 
equipment on an annual basis;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Live Scan 
Agreement with Oakland County for maintenance and preventative services for each cabinet 
style hand scanner system at a cost of $3,313.00 per year through December 31, 2013, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R 

Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 

Parcel #73 – Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $500.00 from John and Nancy Lozenkovski, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay John and Nancy 
Lozenkovski an amount not to exceed $500.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R 

Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 

Parcel #80 – Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $2,220.00 from John and Nancy Lozenkovski, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001; and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay John and Nancy Lozenkovski an 
amount not to exceed $2,220.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2008-2009 membership rates for 
Troy Racquet Club as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department dated 

March 10, 2008, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.     
 

F-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claims, John R Road Improvements, Square 

Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.04.5 – Parcel #47B Sidwell #88-20-

02-228-037 – Charles E. Kemen, Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the Relocation Claims in the amounts of 
$2,500.00 and $5,000.00 for relocation benefits for residential tenants being displaced from the 
property required for John R Road Improvements, from Square Lake Road to South Boulevard; 
and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay relocation benefits in the amount 
of $2,500.00 to Charles E. Kemen, the residential tenant displaced from 6753 John R; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby AGREES to pay relocation benefits in 
the amount of $5,000.00 to Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen, residential tenants also displaced 
from 6753 John R. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

F-9 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Kirts and Livernois 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The Livernois Road Project signal improvements were postponed to allow for 
faster completion of the reconstruction project last year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kirts is a city road and Livernois Road is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the cost agreement with 
the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City for the installation of the modernized 
traffic signals at Kirts and Livernois (City share 1/3, or $33,333.00) and for sharing costs of 
approximately $1,800.00 per year, at 1/3 City and 2/3 Road Commission for Oakland County. 
 

F-10 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2007 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy hereby accepts the following platted and non-platted streets: 
Andrew, Benjamin, Kimberly, Merrick, Cambria, Eckerman, Quill Creek, Hedgewood, 
Timbercrest, Timbercrest Court and Cottonwood; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS said streets into the City of Troy 
local street system, and said streets are located within the City of Troy; right of way is under the 
control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street purposes and 
were open to the public prior to December 31, 2007; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DECERTIFIES the following 
street: Lincoln effective on December 31, 2007. 
 

F-11 Rome Love v. City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Rome Love v. 
City of Troy, and to retain any necessary expert witnesses or pay any necessary costs to 
adequately represent the City.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

F-12 Request for Approval of Additional Payment of $100.00 for Loss of Trees – John R 

Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – 

Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an additional payment of $100.00 to 
Hana Rrapi for the loss of trees in the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit area from 
Hana Rrapi, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
revised Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of 

Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-13 Blood Draw Agreements 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement with William 

Beaumont Hospital, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement with Alliance Mobile 

Health and Oakland Healthcare Alliance, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – April 7, 2008        

    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced     
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Animal Control Appeal Board Minutes/Final – September 5, 2007  

b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 3, 3007  

c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 3, 2007 

d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 2, 2008  

e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 2, 2008 

f) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 10, 2008  

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 6, 2008  

h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 11, 2008 

i) Planning Commission/Draft – February 12, 2008  

j) Planning Commission/Final – February 12, 2008 

k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 19, 2008   

l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 4, 2008  

m) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 5, 2008 

n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 5, 2008  

o) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 10, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2008  

b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 29, 2008  
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie Bergeron 
Regarding Traffic Assistance during Commencement Ceremonies  

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Westland Fire Chief Michael Reddy Regarding 
Participation and Support during Firefighter Funeral   

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of the 

Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 
 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison 

Company – Case No. U-15417 
 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Leroy S. Nardi v. 

City of Troy 

  

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 20 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Morrell v Troy, et al.        
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

RECESSED 

 

RECONVENED 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 17, 2008 

 

- 21 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, April 7, 2008 
1. Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District 

(IDD)   
2. Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 7, 2008 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 21, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 12, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 19, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, June 2, 2008 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, June 16, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, July 7, 2008 ................................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, July 21, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, August 11, 2008 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, August 25, 2008 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 8, 2008 ..................................................... Regular City Council 

 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 20 YEARS   

THE BUSINESS ADVISORY GROUP, LLC 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC was founded 20 years ago on  
March 6, 1988 by Terry Socall in his Troy home.  Terry Socall’s business has grown 
over the years and he continues to serve as the company’s President and CEO; and 
 
WHEREAS, Terry Socall rented his first outside office space in 1997 and now has 
offices in the Liberty Center on Big Beaver; and 
 
WHEREAS, Helping new businesses get started, and helping existing businesses 
become more profitable – “from concept to success” – are the goals of The Business 
Advisory Group, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC conducts business throughout the 
United States, but has chosen to remain headquartered in Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC is involved in the Troy community as 
a member of the Troy Chamber of Commerce, with employees on the Hospitality 
Committee and serving as Ambassadors; and as a member of Automation Alley, with 
employees on the Membership and Technology Business Committees;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby 
congratulate The Business Advisory Group, LLC on its 20th Anniversary and 
recognizes its impact upon our community as they serve as a steadfast and dedicated 
business in the City of Troy; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community 
in appreciation and celebration of the 20th Anniversary of The Business Advisory 
Group, LLC in the City of Troy. 
 
Presented this 17th day of March 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 50 YEARS   

TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
 
 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Commission passed a resolution on March 27,1958 providing for a Child and Youth Assistance 
Committee in the City of Troy and nominated 25 citizens representing schools, law enforcement, churches and the 
community to the committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sponsored by Judge Arthur E. Moore of the Oakland County Juvenile Court, the committee was formed to work 
with children, authorities and families on a pre-juvenile delinquent basis; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mayor Frank Costello selected the committee members and told them their job was to prevent youngsters from 
becoming court cases and asked the committee to work closely with educators, law enforcement authorities, religious leaders 
and parents to protect rather than prosecute; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1971, Troy Youth Assistance began an employment service staffed by volunteers.  They called upon local 
residents and business owners who had job opportunities such as babysitting, office work, housecleaning and yard work with 
hourly rates ranging from $.75 to $1.50 for Troy teenagers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The mission of Troy Youth Assistance is to strengthen youth and families and to reduce the incidence of 
delinquency, abuse and neglect through community involvement.  Volunteers work with professional staff to develop 
enriching programs aimed at enhancing family and community relationships; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over the years Troy Youth Assistance has achieved many milestones, including successful and innovative 
fund raising campaigns; overseeing teens managing the Boulan Park Concession Stand; hosting teen dances; starting a 
banquet in 1973 to honor Troy young people who volunteer their time and energy in helping others; awarding camp 
scholarships to deserving youth; and recruiting volunteers to mentor young people for their Mentors P.L.U.S. program; and  
 
WHEREAS, Throughout their 50 year history, Troy Youth Assistance has maintained a fine reputation for delivering 
tremendous value throughout the community.  TYA has conducted surveys on family education programming as well as 
hosted valuable educational workshops for parents on a variety of topics including communicating with teens; developing 
responsible behavior in teens; and active, effective parenting; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Troy Youth Assistance on 
its 50th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon thousands and thousands of young people since 1958;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration of 
Troy Youth Assistance’s 50th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 17th day of March 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



1

Laura D Campbell

Subject: FW: 03.17.08 - Presentation of Traffic Safety Award

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: Mary F Redden  
Sent: Tuesday, March 11, 2008 2:57 PM 
To: agenda 
Subject: 03.17.08 - Presentation of Traffic Safety Award 
 
 
Laura, 
 
Please add this as a presentation.  Either John Abraham or Steve Vandette 
will be making the presentation. 
 
Mary Redden 
Administrative Assistant  
to the City Manager 
CITY OF TROY 
248) 524-3329 
 

 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



1

Laura D Campbell

Subject: FW: March 17th Mtg.

 

 

From: Tonni L Bartholomew  
Sent: Tuesday, March 11, 2008 3:00 PM 
To: Phillip L. Nelson 
Cc: Laura D Campbell; Aileen Bittner; Barbara A Pallotta; Mary F Redden 
Subject: March 17th Mtg. 
 

Representative Marty Knollenberg will be at the meeting of the 17th and would like to be on the Agenda under 
Presentations.  

Thanks 

~T  

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

Troy City Clerk 
500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316 
t.bartholomew@troymi.gov 

 

 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01d



1

Laura D Campbell

From:  on behalf of agenda
Subject: FW: 03.17.08 - Presentation from the Trails Committee

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: Mary F Redden  
Sent: Monday, March 10, 2008 11:48 AM 
To: agenda 
Subject: 03.17.08 - Presentation from the Trails Committee 
 
 
The Trails Committee will give a 3-minute progress update; no AV or back-
up materials are involved. 
 
Mary Redden 
Administrative Assistant  
to the City Manager 
CITY OF TROY 
248) 524-3329 
 

 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01e



 
 
March 4, 2008 
 
 
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:           Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
           Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing – Re-programming Community Development Block Grant 
                     (CDBG) Program Year 2005 unexpended funds 
 
Background: 
 
 The Special Assessment Project Account for CDBG program year 2005 has a 

balance of $4,703.43. 
 

 Special Assessment costs were less than allocated based upon estimating number 
of residents able to qualify.  
 

 The Flood Drain Improvements Project Account for CDBG program year 2005 has a 
balance of $82,795.00. 

 
 The balance of funds from Program Year 2005 must be expended or relinquished. 

 
 Oakland County has recommended a walking path project in Section 36 Park, 

located south of Maple just west of Milverton as an eligible project under the CDBG 
program. This project would not be subject to Davis-Bacon if completed internally.  

 
 Public Facilities and Improvements, Section 36 Park Walking Path Project was 

initiated after the 2005 CDBG application was submitted, so it was not included on 
our initial list of projects. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Unexpended funds for CDBG Program Year 2005 must be exhausted by December 

31, 2008 so the City may be reimbursed by Oakland County through the CDBG 
Program. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed re-programming is consistent with City Council Goal 1 (Enhance the 

livability and safety of the residents) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet changing public needs.) 

  
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends: 

 
 A.  Re-programming unexpended CDBG Program Year 2005 funds in the amount of 

$87,498.43 to Section 36 Park Improvement Project as follows:  
1. $82,795.00 re-programmed from Flood Drain Improvements Project.  
2. $4,703.43 re-programmed from Special Assessment Project Olympia and 

Tacoma Streets. 
 

 B. The addition of Public Facilities and Improvements, Section 36 Park Improvement 
Project to the list of CDBG projects for 2005. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.17.08 – CDBG Re-programming  



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 11, 2008 
SUBJECT: Continuation of Liquor Violations Hearings 

 

Under Michigan liquor laws, each on-premises liquor license is automatically renewed 
unless City Council, after a due process hearing, objects to this automatic renewal for a 
specific licensee.  It is for this reason that the liquor violation hearings are scheduled for 
February of each year, since any objection must be received on or before March 31.    
This year, there were two licensees that were properly notified of the scheduled February 
20, 2008 liquor license violation hearings, but failed to appear.  In order to accommodate 
these licensees prior to taking any adverse action, City Council postponed the hearings to 
a regular City Council regular meeting, which could not be later than March 17, 2008.   
City Administration then attempted to contact the licensees or their attorneys to reschedule 
the matter.   
 
The first licensee is La Shish, which has subsequently closed its business.  Since there is 
a value to an escrowed license, La Shish has 30 days to place this liquor license in escrow 
before forfeiture. Since it is unlikely that the business will re-open during this 30 day 
period, and since any transfer of the license would require City Council review and 
approval, it is our recommendation that no action be taken against this liquor license.    
 
The second licensee is May Department Stores, d/b/a Macy’s.  We immediately contacted 
the attorney for Macy’s, Ms. Sandra Cotter, who explained that there was some 
miscommunication between the Macy’s clerk and her office, which resulted in mistaking 
the City Council public hearing notices as duplicate notices of the separate MLCC 
proceedings.   Ms. Cotter has taken action to avoid this confusion in the future.   
 
Ms. Cotter has sent the attached letter to the City Clerk, requesting that the liquor violation 
hearing be scheduled for the regular Council meeting on March 17th.  She also indicated in 
a telephone conversation that both of Macy’s 2007 liquor license violations would be 
admitted, and therefore there was no need for the witnesses, police officers, and decoys to 
attend the City Council meeting. These liquor violations were both admitted at the MLCC.   
 
The first violation involved the sale of a bottle of wine to a female decoy (a minor) at 
Somerset Collection, 2750 W. Big Beaver Road, on May 10, 2007.  The MLCC assessed a 
fine of $500 on June 29, 2007 (SDM License).  The person who sold the wine pled guilty 
at the 52-4 District Court, and was required to pay a fine of $275.00.     
 
The second violation involved the sale of beer to a male decoy (a minor) at the restaurant 
at the Oakland Mall, 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, on December 13, 2007.  On February 1, 
2008, the MLCC assessed a $600.00 fine for this violation.  The 52-4th District Court case 
against the server of the beer is still pending. 
 
 A proposed resolution has been prepared for your consideration.  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01









pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 11, 2008 
SUBJECT: Continuation of Liquor Violations Hearings 

 

Under Michigan liquor laws, each on-premises liquor license is automatically renewed 
unless City Council, after a due process hearing, objects to this automatic renewal for a 
specific licensee.  It is for this reason that the liquor violation hearings are scheduled for 
February of each year, since any objection must be received on or before March 31.    
This year, there were two licensees that were properly notified of the scheduled February 
20, 2008 liquor license violation hearings, but failed to appear.  In order to accommodate 
these licensees prior to taking any adverse action, City Council postponed the hearings to 
a regular City Council regular meeting, which could not be later than March 17, 2008.   
City Administration then attempted to contact the licensees or their attorneys to reschedule 
the matter.   
 
The first licensee is La Shish, which has subsequently closed its business.  Since there is 
a value to an escrowed license, La Shish has 30 days to place this liquor license in escrow 
before forfeiture. Since it is unlikely that the business will re-open during this 30 day 
period, and since any transfer of the license would require City Council review and 
approval, it is our recommendation that no action be taken against this liquor license.    
 
The second licensee is May Department Stores, d/b/a Macy’s.  We immediately contacted 
the attorney for Macy’s, Ms. Sandra Cotter, who explained that there was some 
miscommunication between the Macy’s clerk and her office, which resulted in mistaking 
the City Council public hearing notices as duplicate notices of the separate MLCC 
proceedings.   Ms. Cotter has taken action to avoid this confusion in the future.   
 
Ms. Cotter has sent the attached letter to the City Clerk, requesting that the liquor violation 
hearing be scheduled for the regular Council meeting on March 17th.  She also indicated in 
a telephone conversation that both of Macy’s 2007 liquor license violations would be 
admitted, and therefore there was no need for the witnesses, police officers, and decoys to 
attend the City Council meeting. These liquor violations were both admitted at the MLCC.   
 
The first violation involved the sale of a bottle of wine to a female decoy (a minor) at 
Somerset Collection, 2750 W. Big Beaver Road, on May 10, 2007.  The MLCC assessed a 
fine of $500 on June 29, 2007 (SDM License).  The person who sold the wine pled guilty 
at the 52-4 District Court, and was required to pay a fine of $275.00.     
 
The second violation involved the sale of beer to a male decoy (a minor) at the restaurant 
at the Oakland Mall, 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, on December 13, 2007.  On February 1, 
2008, the MLCC assessed a $600.00 fine for this violation.  The 52-4th District Court case 
against the server of the beer is still pending. 
 
 A proposed resolution has been prepared for your consideration.  

campbellld
Text Box
D-02a





pallottaba
Text Box
SDM 133308-2007







pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box





  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 11, 2008 
SUBJECT: Continuation of Liquor Violations Hearings 

 

Under Michigan liquor laws, each on-premises liquor license is automatically renewed 
unless City Council, after a due process hearing, objects to this automatic renewal for a 
specific licensee.  It is for this reason that the liquor violation hearings are scheduled for 
February of each year, since any objection must be received on or before March 31.    
This year, there were two licensees that were properly notified of the scheduled February 
20, 2008 liquor license violation hearings, but failed to appear.  In order to accommodate 
these licensees prior to taking any adverse action, City Council postponed the hearings to 
a regular City Council regular meeting, which could not be later than March 17, 2008.   
City Administration then attempted to contact the licensees or their attorneys to reschedule 
the matter.   
 
The first licensee is La Shish, which has subsequently closed its business.  Since there is 
a value to an escrowed license, La Shish has 30 days to place this liquor license in escrow 
before forfeiture. Since it is unlikely that the business will re-open during this 30 day 
period, and since any transfer of the license would require City Council review and 
approval, it is our recommendation that no action be taken against this liquor license.    
 
The second licensee is May Department Stores, d/b/a Macy’s.  We immediately contacted 
the attorney for Macy’s, Ms. Sandra Cotter, who explained that there was some 
miscommunication between the Macy’s clerk and her office, which resulted in mistaking 
the City Council public hearing notices as duplicate notices of the separate MLCC 
proceedings.   Ms. Cotter has taken action to avoid this confusion in the future.   
 
Ms. Cotter has sent the attached letter to the City Clerk, requesting that the liquor violation 
hearing be scheduled for the regular Council meeting on March 17th.  She also indicated in 
a telephone conversation that both of Macy’s 2007 liquor license violations would be 
admitted, and therefore there was no need for the witnesses, police officers, and decoys to 
attend the City Council meeting. These liquor violations were both admitted at the MLCC.   
 
The first violation involved the sale of a bottle of wine to a female decoy (a minor) at 
Somerset Collection, 2750 W. Big Beaver Road, on May 10, 2007.  The MLCC assessed a 
fine of $500 on June 29, 2007 (SDM License).  The person who sold the wine pled guilty 
at the 52-4 District Court, and was required to pay a fine of $275.00.     
 
The second violation involved the sale of beer to a male decoy (a minor) at the restaurant 
at the Oakland Mall, 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, on December 13, 2007.  On February 1, 
2008, the MLCC assessed a $600.00 fine for this violation.  The 52-4th District Court case 
against the server of the beer is still pending. 
 
 A proposed resolution has been prepared for your consideration.  

campbellld
Text Box
D-02b











pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box





pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box



 
Date March 7, 2008 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution to Reconsider Board and Commission Appointments of 

January 9, 2006 
  
Background: 
 

City Council made a motion to appoint Frank J. Howrylak to the Board of Review with a 
term expiring on January 31, 2009. However, at the time of the vote, a minimum 6 member 
affirmative vote was not secured. The requirement for the 6 affirmative votes was due to the 
fact that Frank J. Howrylak is the father of a sitting Councilmember and in situations of this 
nature fall under City Charter 5.1 (b) requirements. As part of the same vote, appointments 
were made to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission appointments did not 
have the same minimum vote requirement. Due to the unique circumstances, the votes 
should have been separated and voted on independently. 
 
The flaw in voting should be corrected now that this discrepancy has been discovered. It is 
the recommendation of City Administration that it is in the best interest of the City to 
reconsider the motion, separate the motion and vote on each of the appointments. 
Resolutions have been provided to accomplish the recommendation. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

The member of the Board of Review received financial compensation associated with 
service to the Board. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 

There could be legal implications since both Boards/Commissions have made decisions. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 

Attached are resolutions for Council’s convenience. The first resolution is the 
Reconsideration motion. The second resolution provides for the separation of the votes and 
the third and fourth resolutions are the separated motions.  
 
The Reconsideration resolutions will require an affirmative vote of 4 members of Council for 
passage. The resolution for appointment to the Board of Review will require an affirmative 
vote of 6 members of Council. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



 

A. RECONSIDERATION MOTION: 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2006-01-007, moved by Schilling and seconded by 
Beltramini, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 

 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling   
No: Broomfield, Fleming  

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes:    
No:   
Absent:   
 



 
  

B. SEPARATION RESOLUTION: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That active motion be SEPARATED as follows: 
 

Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 
 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
AND 
 

Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

   
Yes:    
No: 
Absent:    

 



C. BOARD OF REVIEW APPOINTMENT: 
 

Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Board of Review  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval  (3) – 3 years 

 
Frank J. Howrylak Term Expires 01/31/09 

 
Yes:   
No:   

 

D. PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS: 
 

Resolution #2006-01-007 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
Mary Kerwin Term Expires 12/31/08 

 
Yes:   
No:   

 



 

 
 
March 7, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

 
SUBJECT:   Adjustment to Plumbing Permit Fees 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In the Zucker report on the development approval/permit process, one of their highest priority 

recommendations was to adjust fees for services to cover expenses.  In reviewing the budget of 
the Building Department we find that in recent years the revenues generated by plumbing permit 
and inspection fees have not met the expenditures of that portion the department’s work.  This 
shortfall was included in the overall department shortfall of $825,000 in the 2006/2007 fiscal year, 
as well as the estimated $500,000 deficit in the fiscal year ending July 2008.  Recently, Council 
approved revisions to the Building Permit fees to try and offset this shortfall. 

 
In our review of fees we also noted that the revenue generated by Plumbing Permit fees was 
short of expenditures.  A review of surrounding cities showed that our fees were substantially 
lower than similar communities.  We are proposing to increase the Plumbing Permit fees from 
$8.00 per fixture to $10.00 per fixture. 
 
We are also revising the format of the Plumbing Permit Fees Schedule to clarify the chart and 
remove some of the arcane language to make it more user friendly. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 We have estimated that these fee increases will generate an additional $15,000 in plumbing 

permit fees based upon the amount of work that was permitted in the 2007 calendar year.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Permit fees are allowed to be set by City Council to cover expenditures per Public Act 230 of 

1972 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



Policy Considerations: 
 
 Increasing the permit fees to cover expenses will reduce the burden of the Building Department’s 

activities on the general taxpayer. (Goal II)  
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can increase fees to more closely cover expenditures. 
 City Council can deny the increase in fees. 



PLUMBING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

Description Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Stacks/Conductors $10.00 No Change 

Sink (any description) $  8.00 $10.00 

Bathtub $  8.00 $10.00 

Water Closet $  8.00 $10.00 

Lavatory $  8.00 N/A 

Water Heater $  8.00 $10.00 

Water Heater (replacement) $25.00 No Change 

Laundry Tray or Stand Pipe $  8.00 $10.00 

Floor Drain $  8.00 $10.00 

Ejector Pump or Water Lift $  8.00 $10.00 

Drinking Fountain $  8.00 $10.00 

Grease Trap Interceptor $  8.00 $10.00 

Urinal $  8.00 $10.00 

Bar Sink – Soda Fountain (each opening) $  8.00 N/A 

Shower Trap or w/Pan $  8.00 $10.00 

Dishwashing Machine $  8.00 $10.00 

Humidifier $  8.00 $10.00 

Garbage Disposal $  8.00 $10.00 

Sump or Interceptor $  8.00 $10.00 

Hose Bibs $  5.00 $  8.00 

Water Treatment Device Softener/Filter $10.00 No Change 

Washing Machine $  8.00 N/A 

Special Fixture $  8.00 N/A 

Refrigeration Connection $  8.00 N/A 

Dental Chairs $  8.00 $10.00 

Surgical Cuspidor $  8.00 N/A 

Building Main to Sewer $20.00 No Change 

Inside Sub Soil Drains System $15.00 No Change 

Roof Sump $10.00 No Change 

Underground – Slab - Separate Inspection $  9.00 N/A 

Miscellaneous Fixtures $  8.00 $10.00 

Back Water Valve N/A $10.00 

Backflow Prevention Device N/A $10.00 

Medical Gas (per opening) N/A $10.00 

   

Water Distribution (see below): 

¾’ = $15.00  1-1/2” = $30.00  3” = $55.00 

1” = $20.00  2” = $30.00  4” = $63.00 

1-1/4” = $25.00  2-1/2” = $45.00  Over 4” = $75.00 

   

Minimum Permit Fee $25.00 N/A 

   

Special Inspection (per hour) $30.00 /hour $50.00 /hour 

   

Addition to permit before Inspection – Regular Fee   

Addition to permit after Inspection – Minimum Fee   

Cancellation of Permit - 25% of Permit Fee/$10.00   



Minimum   

   

Contractor Registration Fee (per year) $1.00 /year $5.00 /year 

       



 

Plumbing Permit Fee Comparison 
Community Per Fixture Application Fee Inspection Fee 

Madison Heights $0 $20 $65 

Novi $5 $30 $30 

State of Michigan $5 $50 $30 

Rochester Hills $6 $30 None 

Troy (Current) $8 None None 

Farmington Hills $9 None None 

Sterling Heights $10 None None 

Farmington  $10 None None 

Southfield $15 None None 

Troy (Proposed) $10 None None 

 



 
 
DATE: February 27, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Preliminary Plat Approval (Extension) – Beachview Estates Subdivision, West Side 

of Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18 
 

 
Background: 

 

 The petitioner is proposing an 8-unit subdivision on a 5.55 acre parcel. 
 

 Final Preliminary Plat Approval was granted by City Council on May 8, 2006.  The petitioner 
submitted a written request for an extension, as per Section 303.C.2 of the Subdivision Control 
Ordinance.   

 

 The petitioner entered into a Subdivision Agreement with the City on May 8, 2006.  The 
petitioner holds a valid Wastewater Systems Permit, Water System Construction Permit, 
Inland Lakes and Streams Permit and Wetlands Protection Permit from the MDEQ.  The 
proprietor submitted to the City Clerk a letter of credit for the escrow deposits and cash fees 
for the public improvements.   
 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to extend Final Preliminary Plat Approval. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the extension would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract 
investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the request to extend Final Preliminary Approval. 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Letter from petitioner dated February 21, 2008. 
3. Subdivision Agreement. 
4. Detailed Summary of Required Escrow Deposits, Cash Fees and Deposits. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Beachview Estates Subdivision 
 

 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Beachview Estates\Beachview Estates CC Final Prelim Extension 03 17 08.doc 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



M
O

O
N

G
LO

W

VALLEYVISTA 
CIR

R
IV

E
R

S 
E

D
G

E

RI
VE

RS 
EDGE

O
R

C
H

A R
D 

RI
DGE

W
H

IT
E 

O
A

K
S

W
H

ITE 
O

AK
S

SHADYWOOD

D
E

E
P

W
O

O
D

BIG 
OAK

OAK RIVER CT

TRANQUIL

WHITE OAKS CT

DEER PATH 
CT

W LONG LAKE
W LONG LAKE

VALLEY VISTA 

CT

ST
R

A
W

B
ER

R
Y

HIDDEN PINE

VALLEY 
VISTA

ORCHARD TRAIL

LO
N

G
V

IE
W

ODETTE CT

B
E

A
C

H
B

E
A

C
H

QUAIL RUN

PROPOSED BEACHVIEW ESTATES SUBDIVISION
W SIDE OF BEACH, S OF LONG LAKE
SEC. 18  (ZONED R-1A)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100 200 30050
Feet



























campbellld
Text Box
E-05

















  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 12, 2008 
SUBJECT: Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses 

 

 

 

 

The food and beverage service sub-contractors for Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course have requested permission to operate a beverage cart on the golf 
course proper.  This would be prohibited by Troy’s current ordinance provisions in Chapter 
30.  However, at the December 17, 2007 regular meeting, City Council expressed a 
willingness to explore amendments to the City ordinances to accommodate the sub-
contractor’s requests, which may also lead to additional use of the golf courses, and also 
possibly increased revenue for the City.  

 
The Liquor Advisory Committee discussed the requested revision to Chapter 30, 

and recommended a modification that would limit the allowable sales on a beverage cart 
to only those beverages that contain less than 21 percent of alcohol by volume (essentially 
beer and wine).   This recommendation has been incorporated into Version A, which is 
attached.  A broader version of possible revisions to Chapter 30 is also included for your 
consideration, where the sub-contractor could sell any type of alcoholic beverage, 
including beer, wine, and spirits, from the beverage cart.     

 
If Council is inclined to modify Chapter 30 to allow for a beverage cart on the golf 

course proper, then the Agreements with each of the sub-contractors must also be 
revised.  Proposed revisions to these Agreements are also attached for your consideration 
and/or action. The first version of these amendments incorporates the Liquor Advisory 
Committee’s recommendation to preclude the sale of spirits on the golf courses. Version B 
removes this limitation.  Proposed resolutions are included in the Agenda Booklet.   

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 
  

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 1

Version A: Incorporating Liquor Advisory Committee’s Recommendation 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 30 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 30, 
Municipal Golf Course(s), of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
Chapter 30, Section 10, shall be amended as follows:   
 
 
10. The City’s sub-contractor has the ability to sell up to two beers per golfer, which 

the golfer can then take onto the Golf Course for consumption alcoholic 
beverages on the Golf Course, as long as the following conditions are satisfied:   

 
a. The sub-contractor has the exclusive right to sell food and beverages on 

the Golf Course, pursuant to a lease or other agreement with the City, 
and the sub-contractor is in compliance with the terms of the lease or 
other agreement.   

b. The sub-contractor has received a license to sell the alcohol from the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission, and is compliant with the 
Administrative Rules and Regulations, and federal, state, and local laws 
concerning the sale of alcohol.   

c. Alcoholic beverages sold on the Golf Course proper shall be limited to 
beer, wine, and other alcoholic beverages that contain less than 21% 
alcohol by volume. No alcohol can be sold on the Golf Course proper. 

  
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 



 2

accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



VERSION A: INCORPORATING LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S 
RECOMMENDATION 

THIRD ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on ____________________, 2008, between the CITY 
OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy Michigan, 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Gallatin, Inc. 
d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga, 2405 Rock Valley Road, Metamora, Michigan 48445 
hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

RECITALS 

A. On December 18, 1995, The City and Operator entered into a lease in which the 
City leased to the Operator certain premises to be used and occupied for the 
purposes stated in the lease, located at 5725 Rochester Road, Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, and adjacent to Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 
 

B. On May 1, 2000 the City and Operator agreed to A Second Addendum to the 
Lease.  This addendum provided in paragraph (3) three “As a result of City 
Council’s resolution on March 29, 1999, Lessee shall be permitted to sell to 
golfers a maximum of two (2) beers per golfer from the clubhouse on Lessor’s 
premises for consumption on the Golf Course provided Lessee secures the 
necessary licenses from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (“MLCC”)” 
 

C. On March 17, 2008 the Troy City Council passed an amendment to Chapter 30, 
Golf Courses, of the City Code of Ordinances that repeals the March 29, 1999 
resolution, and authorizes the City’s sub-contractor permission to sell alcoholic 
beverages on the City’s golf courses.  
 

D. Operator desires to serve alcoholic beverages on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
proper through use of a beverage cart. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Operator agree to the following terms and conditions 
as an addendum to the Agreement Food Service at Sylvan Glen Golf Course: 

1. Definitions.  The following terms in this Addendum to the Agreement are defined 
as follows: 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” shall mean beer, wine, and other alcoholic 
beverages that contain less than 21% of alcohol by volume. 

B. “Golf Course” shall mean Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 

2. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages 



A. Paragraph (3) three of the Second Addendum to the Lease is hereby 
deleted. 

B. Operator shall be permitted to sell alcoholic beverages on the Golf Course 
proper through use of one (1) beverage cart, which shall be purchased or 
leased by the Operator.  

3. Rent 

A. The Operator’s monthly rent shall be upwardly adjusted $300 for the 
remainder of the lease in addition to the previous lease terms, in 
consideration of the Operator’s increased opportunity for revenue. 

4. Other 

A. The Operator is ultimately responsible for compliance with all federal, 
state and local laws related to the sale, distribution, use, or possession of 
alcohol, and the administrative rules, procedures, and guidelines as 
provided by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission including, but not 
limited to, obtaining or maintaining the necessary license(s) or permit(s), 
which allow for the operation of the beverage cart on the Golf Course.  

B. Any employee operating the beverage cart must be trained to operate it in 
a safe manner. The operator or restaurant manager will train all operators 
of the beverage cart. The operator shall keep records of all training, and 
shall make such records available for review by the City upon request.  

C. The Operator has the responsibility of determining the routing and hours 
of operation for the beverage cart.  However, the City may adjust the 
routing or hours of operation in the event of severe weather or other 
environmental conditions after consultation with the Operator. 

D. Storage of the beverage cart is the sole responsibility of the Operator. If 
the Operator chooses, the Operator may store the beverage cart with the 
golf carts during the golf season. Off season, the Operator is responsible 
for beverage cart storage.  Storage of the beverage cart inventory is also 
the sole responsibility of the Operator. The City has no liability or 
responsibility for damages to the beverage cart during storage. 

E. Operator shall offer sandwiches, snacks, water and other nonalcoholic 
beverages in addition to alcoholic beverages, for sale on the beverage 
cart. 

F. It is understood that the purchase of the beverage cart is an investment 
with unknown return. Therefore, should the City cancel or otherwise 
terminate the ability of the operator to sell alcoholic beverages on the 
course before the end of the golf season in the year 2010, the City will 
purchase and take possession of the beverage cart. This does not 



including food and beverage inventory, which is the sole responsibility of 
the Operator. The cost for the beverage cart will be the Operator’s 
documented cost of acquisition minus depreciation based on the rules and 
regulations published by the IRS Act 1986 as amended. The Operator 
shall also have the discretion to remove the cart and waive payment as 
set out herein. If the City purchases the beverage cart, then payment shall 
be made within 60 days after receipt of documentation setting forth the 
Operator’s cost, minus depreciation.  Should the Operator lease the 
beverage cart, the City will have no obligation under this section. 

G. The City does not make guarantee of player load or other guarantee of 
revenue. 

H. All other terms of the executed lease agreement remain in effect, and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

I. This agreement shall commence on April 1, 2008 or as soon as 
reasonably possible after that date. 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation 

 

By:____________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
By:____________________________ 

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Louise E. Schilling, the Mayor of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 



 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Tonni L. Bartholomew, the City Clerk of the City of Troy, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

        Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

      By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND   ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 

________________________,2008 by_________________________________, 
the_______________________________of Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 



VERSION A: INCORPORATING LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S 
RECOMMENDATION 

ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOOD SERVICE AT SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF 
COURSE 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on ____________________, 2008, between the CITY 
OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy Michigan, 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Kosch Special 
Events, L.L.C., a Michigan Limited Liability Company, whose address is 1450 E. South 
Street, Troy Michigan 48085, as the Food Service Provider for Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course, hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

RECITALS 

A. On April 16, 2007, The City and Operator executed an agreement entitled: 
Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. Pursuant to Paragraph 
8, section (D) of this agreement, “The Operator agrees that there shall be no 
sales of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course proper, but that the 
Operator, if licensed to do so by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, may 
sell up to two beers per golfer at the Club House or the Outside Grill, which the 
golfer can then take onto the golf course for consumption.”  
 

B. On March 17, 2008 the Troy City Council approved an amendment to Chapter 
30, Golf Courses, of the City Code of Ordinances that authorizes the City’s sub-
contractor to sell alcoholic beverages on the City’s golf courses. 
 

C. Operator desires to serve alcoholic beverages on the Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course proper through use of a beverage cart.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Operator agree to the following terms and conditions 
as an addendum to the Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course: 

1. Definitions.  The following terms in this Addendum to the Agreement are defined 
as follows: 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” shall mean beer, wine, and other alcoholic 
beverages that contain less than 21% of alcohol by volume. 

B. “Golf Course” shall mean Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

2. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages 

A. Paragraph 8 section (D) of Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course is hereby deleted, as of the effective date of amendments to 
Chapter 30 of the City of Troy Ordinances that allow for the sale of alcohol 
on the Golf Course proper.  



B. Effective as of the date of the above referenced amendments to Chapter 
30, Operator, as the City’s subcontractor, shall be permitted to sell 
alcoholic beverages on the Golf Course proper through use of one (1) 
beverage cart, which shall be purchased or leased by the Operator.  

3. Revenue Plan and Return Schedule 

A. The revenue plan and return schedule as set forth in the April 16, 2007 
executed agreement remains the same.  All monies received from the 
operation of the beverage cart will be paid to Operator.  

B. The revenue generated from the beverage cart sales shall become part of 
the Operator’s gross revenue.  

4. Other 

A. The Operator is ultimately responsible for compliance with all federal, 
state and local laws related to the sale, distribution, use, or possession of 
alcohol, and the administrative rules, procedures, and guidelines as 
provided by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission including, but not 
limited to, obtaining or maintaining the necessary license(s) or permit(s), 
which allow for the operation of the beverage cart on the Golf Course.  

B. Any employee operating the beverage cart must be trained to operate it in 
a safe manner. The operator or restaurant manager will train all operators 
of the beverage cart. The operator shall keep records of all training, and 
shall make such records available for review by the City upon request.  

C. The Operator has the responsibility of determining the routing and hours 
of operation for the beverage cart.  However, the City may adjust the 
routing or hours of operation in the event of severe weather or other 
environmental conditions after consultation with the Operator. 

D. Storage of the beverage cart is the sole responsibility of the Operator. If 
the Operator chooses, the Operator may store the beverage cart with the 
golf carts during the golf season. Off season, the Operator is responsible 
for beverage cart storage.  Storage of the beverage cart inventory is also 
the sole responsibility of the Operator. The City has no liability or 
responsibility for damages to the beverage cart during storage. 

E. Operator shall offer sandwiches, snacks, water and other nonalcoholic 
beverages in addition to alcoholic beverages, for sale on the beverage 
cart. 

F. It is understood that the purchase of the beverage cart is an investment 
with unknown return. Therefore, should the City cancel or otherwise 
terminate the ability of the operator to sell alcoholic beverages on the 
course before the end of the golf season in the year 2010, the City will 



purchase and take possession of the beverage cart. This does not 
including food and beverage inventory, which is the sole responsibility of 
the Operator. The cost for the beverage cart will be the Operator’s 
documented cost of acquisition minus depreciation based on the rules and 
regulations published by the IRS Act 1986 as amended. The Operator 
shall also have the discretion to remove the cart and waive payment as 
set out herein. If the City purchases the beverage cart, then payment shall 
be made within 60 days after receipt of documentation setting forth the 
Operator’s cost, minus depreciation.  Should the Operator lease the 
beverage cart, the City will have no obligation under this section. 

G. The City does not make any guarantee of player load or other guarantee 
of revenue. 

H. All other terms of the April 16, 2007 executed agreement remain in effect, 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 

I. This agreement shall commence on April 1, 2008 or as soon as 
reasonably possible after that date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation 

By:____________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
By:____________________________ 

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Louise E. Schilling, the Mayor of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.  
___________________________ 

Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 



 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Tonni L. Bartholomew, the City Clerk of the City of Troy, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

            Kosch Special Events L.L.C., a 

          Michigan Limited Liability Company 
      By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND   ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 

________________________,2008 by_________________________________, 
the_______________________________of Kosch Special Events, L.L.C., a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 



 

 1 

Version B 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 30 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 30, 
Municipal Golf Course(s), of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 30, Section 10, shall be amended as follows:   
 
 
10. The City’s sub-contractor has the ability to sell up to two beers per golfer, which 

the golfer can then take onto the Golf Course for consumption alcoholic 
beverages on the Golf Course, as long as the following conditions are satisfied:   

 
a. The sub-contractor has the exclusive right to sell food and beverages on 

the Golf Course, pursuant to a lease or other agreement with the City, 
and the sub-contractor is in compliance with the terms of the lease or 
other agreement.   

b. The sub-contractor has received a license to sell the alcohol from the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission, and is compliant with the 
Administrative Rules and Regulations, and federal, state, and local laws 
concerning the sale of alcohol.   

c. No alcohol can be sold on the Golf Course proper. 
  

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 



 

 2 

 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 
 

 



VERSION B 

THIRD ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on ____________________, 2008, between the CITY 
OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy Michigan, 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Gallatin, Inc. 
d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga, 2405 Rock Valley Road, Metamora, Michigan 48445 
hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

RECITALS 

A. On December 18, 1995, The City and Operator entered into a lease in which the 
City leased to the Operator certain premises to be used and occupied for the 
purposes stated in the lease, located at 5725 Rochester Road, Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, and adjacent to Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 
 

B. On May 1, 2000 the City and Operator agreed to A Second Addendum to the 
Lease.  This addendum provided in paragraph (3) three “As a result of City 
Council’s resolution on March 29, 1999, Lessee shall be permitted to sell to 
golfers a maximum of two (2) beers per golfer from the clubhouse on Lessor’s 
premises for consumption on the Golf Course provided Lessee secures the 
necessary licenses from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (“MLCC”)” 
 

C. On March 17, 2008 the Troy City Council passed an amendment to Chapter 30, 
Golf Courses, of the City Code of Ordinances that repeals the March 29, 1999 
resolution, and authorizes the City’s sub-contractor permission to sell alcoholic 
beverages on the City’s golf courses.  
 

D. Operator desires to serve alcoholic beverages on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
proper through use of a beverage cart. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Operator agree to the following terms and conditions 
as an addendum to the Agreement Food Service at Sylvan Glen Golf Course: 

1. Definitions.  The following terms in this Addendum to the Agreement are defined 
as follows: 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” shall mean beer, wine, and spirits. 

B. “Golf Course” shall mean Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 

2. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages 

A. Paragraph (3) three of the Second Addendum to the Lease is hereby 
deleted. 



B. Operator shall be permitted to sell alcoholic beverages on the Golf Course 
proper through use of one (1) beverage cart, which shall be purchased or 
leased by the Operator.  

3. Rent 

A. The Operator’s monthly rent shall be upwardly adjusted $300 for the 
remainder of the lease, in addition to the previous lease terms, in 
consideration of the Operator’s increased opportunity for revenue. 

4. Other 

A. The Operator is ultimately responsible for compliance with all federal, 
state and local laws related to the sale, distribution, use, or possession of 
alcohol, and the administrative rules, procedures, and guidelines as 
provided by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission including, but not 
limited to, obtaining or maintaining the necessary license(s) or permit(s), 
which allow for the operation of the beverage cart on the Golf Course.  

B. Any employee operating the beverage cart must be trained to operate it in 
a safe manner. The operator or restaurant manager will train all operators 
of the beverage cart. The operator shall keep records of all training, and 
shall make such records available for review by the City upon request.  

C. The Operator has the responsibility of determining the routing and hours 
of operation for the beverage cart.  However, the City may adjust the 
routing or hours of operation in the event of severe weather or other 
environmental conditions after consultation with the Operator. 

D. Storage of the beverage cart is the sole responsibility of the Operator. If 
the Operator chooses, the Operator may store the beverage cart with the 
golf carts during the golf season. Off season, the Operator is responsible 
for beverage cart storage.  Storage of the beverage cart inventory is also 
the sole responsibility of the Operator. The City has no liability or 
responsibility for damages to the beverage cart during storage. 

E. Operator shall offer sandwiches, snacks, water and other nonalcoholic 
beverages in addition to alcoholic beverages, for sale on the beverage 
cart. 

F. It is understood that the purchase of the beverage cart is an investment 
with unknown return. Therefore, should the City cancel or otherwise 
terminate the ability of the operator to sell alcoholic beverages on the 
course before the end of the golf season in the year 2010, the City will 
purchase and take possession of the beverage cart. This does not 
including food and beverage inventory, which is the sole responsibility of 
the Operator. The cost for the beverage cart will be the Operator’s 
documented cost of acquisition minus depreciation based on the rules and 



regulations published by the IRS Act 1986 as amended. The Operator 
shall also have the discretion to remove the cart and waive payment as 
set out herein. If the City purchases the beverage cart, then payment shall 
be made within 60 days after receipt of documentation setting forth the 
Operator’s cost, minus depreciation.  Should the Operator lease the 
beverage cart, the City will have no obligation under this section. 

G. The City does not make any guarantee of player load or other guarantee 
of revenue. 

H. All other terms of the executed lease agreement remain in effect, and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

I. This agreement shall commence on April 1, 2008 or as soon as 
reasonably possible after that date. 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation 

 

By:____________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
By:____________________________ 

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Louise E. Schilling, the Mayor of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

 

 



STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Tonni L. Bartholomew, the City Clerk of the City of Troy, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

        Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

      By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND   ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 

________________________,2008 by_________________________________, 
the_______________________________of Gallatin, Inc. d/b/a Camp Ticonderoga 

 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

 



VERSION B 

ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOOD SERVICE AT SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF 
COURSE 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on ____________________, 2008, between the CITY 
OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy Michigan, 48084, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Kosch Special 
Events, L.L.C., a Michigan Limited Liability Company, whose address is 1450 E. South 
Street, Troy Michigan 48085, as the Food Service Provider for Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course, hereinafter referred to as the “Operator”; 

RECITALS 

A. On April 16, 2007, The City and Operator executed an agreement entitled: 
Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. Pursuant to Paragraph 
8, section (D) of this agreement, “The Operator agrees that there shall be no 
sales of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course proper, but that the 
Operator, if licensed to do so by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, may 
sell up to two beers per golfer at the Club House or the Outside Grill, which the 
golfer can then take onto the golf course for consumption.”  
 

B. On March 17, 2008 the Troy City Council approved an amendment to Chapter 
30, Golf Courses, of the City Code of Ordinances that authorizes the City’s sub-
contractor to sell alcoholic beverages on the City’s golf courses. 
 

C. Operator desires to serve alcoholic beverages on the Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course proper through use of a beverage cart.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Operator agree to the following terms and conditions 
as an addendum to the Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course: 

1. Definitions.  The following terms in this Addendum to the Agreement are defined 
as follows: 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” shall mean beer, wine, and spirits. 

B. “Golf Course” shall mean Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

2. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages 

A. Paragraph 8 section (D) of Agreement Food Service At Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course is hereby deleted, as of the effective date of amendments to 
Chapter 30 of the City of Troy Ordinances that allow for the sale of alcohol 
on the Golf Course proper.  



B. Effective as of the date of the above referenced amendments to Chapter 
30, Operator, as the City’s subcontractor, shall be permitted to sell 
alcoholic beverages on the Golf Course proper through use of one (1) 
beverage cart, which shall be purchased or leased by the Operator.  

3. Revenue Plan and Return Schedule 

A. The revenue plan and return schedule as set forth in the April 16, 2007 
executed agreement remains the same.  All monies received from the 
operation of the beverage cart will be paid to Operator.  

B. The revenue generated from the beverage cart sales shall become part of 
the Operator’s gross revenue.  

4. Other 

A. The Operator is ultimately responsible for compliance with all federal, 
state and local laws related to the sale, distribution, use, or possession of 
alcohol, and the administrative rules, procedures, and guidelines as 
provided by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission including, but not 
limited to, obtaining or maintaining the necessary license(s) or permit(s), 
which allow for the operation of the beverage cart on the Golf Course.  

B. Any employee operating the beverage cart must be trained to operate it in 
a safe manner. The operator or restaurant manager will train all operators 
of the beverage cart. The operator shall keep records of all training, and 
shall make such records available for review by the City upon request.  

C. The Operator has the responsibility of determining the routing and hours 
of operation for the beverage cart.  However, the City may adjust the 
routing or hours of operation in the event of severe weather or other 
environmental conditions after consultation with the Operator. 

D. Storage of the beverage cart is the sole responsibility of the Operator. If 
the Operator chooses, the Operator may store the beverage cart with the 
golf carts during the golf season. Off season, the Operator is responsible 
for beverage cart storage.  Storage of the beverage cart inventory is also 
the sole responsibility of the Operator. The City has no liability or 
responsibility for damages to the beverage cart during storage. 

E. Operator shall offer sandwiches, snacks, water and other nonalcoholic 
beverages in addition to alcoholic beverages, for sale on the beverage 
cart. 

F. It is understood that the purchase of the beverage cart is an investment 
with unknown return. Therefore, should the City cancel or otherwise 
terminate the ability of the operator to sell alcoholic beverages on the 
course before the end of the golf season in the year 2010, the City will 



purchase and take possession of the beverage cart. This does not 
including food and beverage inventory, which is the sole responsibility of 
the Operator. The cost for the beverage cart will be the Operator’s 
documented cost of acquisition minus depreciation based on the rules and 
regulations published by the IRS Act 1986 as amended. The Operator 
shall also have the discretion to remove the cart and waive payment as 
set out herein. If the City purchases the beverage cart, then payment shall 
be made within 60 days after receipt of documentation setting forth the 
Operator’s cost, minus depreciation.  Should the Operator lease the 
beverage cart, the City will have no obligation under this section. 

G. The City does not make any guarantee of player load or other guarantee 
of revenue. 

H. All other terms of the April 16, 2007 executed agreement remain in effect, 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 

I. This agreement shall commence on April 1, 2008 or as soon as 
reasonably possible after that date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation 

By:____________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
By:____________________________ 

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Louise E. Schilling, the Mayor of the City of Troy, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.  
___________________________ 

Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 



 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

   )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 
__________________,2008 by Tonni L. Bartholomew, the City Clerk of the City of Troy, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.    

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 

            Kosch Special Events L.L.C., a 

          Michigan Limited Liability Company 
      By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN       ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND   ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 

________________________,2008 by_________________________________, 
the_______________________________of Kosch Special Events, L.L.C., a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company 

____________________________ 
Notary Public, ___________County, Michigan 

My commission expires: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 3, 2008, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Tom Lancaster – Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings  

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 

Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, 

Section 1 – R-1D 
 
Resolution #2008-03-076 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium, 
known as Brycewood Site Condominium, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of 
Square Lake Road, in Section 1, including 9 home sites, also including a 60-foot public road 
right-of-way, as submitted on Design Sheet #7 of the City Council packet and that the 
recommended design standards, as put forth by the Planning Commission, be studied and 
adhered to whenever possible within the R-1D zoning district, being 3.376 acres in size; and 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUIRES that verification of no 
endangered species or an endangered species permit be secured from the MDNR prior to final 
approval of the site condominium plan. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; and Economic Development Corporation b) City 

Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning 

Appeals; Charter Revision Committee; Library Advisory Board; and Personnel 

Board  

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-03-077 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Robert D. Swartz Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Philip Sanzica Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
James K. Campbell Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 6 Year Terms 
 
Robert Gigliotti Term Expires 04/30/14 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
David S. Ogg Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Josephine Rhoads Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Frank Shier Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Mark R. Solomon Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Cynthia A. Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
 
Heather Eisenbacher Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Audre Zembrzuski Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Deborah L. Baughman Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-03-078 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby STRIKES “Heather Eisenbacher” as a nominee for 
reappointment to the Library Advisory Board pursuant to a conflict with Section 5.16 - Anti-
Nepotism of the City Charter due to her spousal relationship with Council Member 
Eisenbacher.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-03-079 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for City Council 

Appointments by INSERTING “David Lambert” as a nominee for the Board of Zoning Appeals 
with a term ending April 30, 2011. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

(b) Vote on City Council Appointments as Amended 
 
Resolution #2008-03-080 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
David S. Ogg Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Josephine Rhoads Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Frank Shier Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
  
David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Mark R. Solomon Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
Cynthia A. Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
  
Audre Zembrzuski Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Deborah L. Baughman Term Expires 04/30/11 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-2 Planning Department Proposed Fee Increases 

 
Resolution #2008-03-081 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the Planning 

Department Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply to applications 
submitted after April 1, 2008: 
 

SERVICES: 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Rezoning Request $1500 $1800 

   

Conditional Rezoning Request $2300 
($1500 rezoning 
request + $800 site 
plan review) 

$2800 
($1800 rezoning 
request + $1000 
site plan review) 

   

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Site Plan Review $800 $1000 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

Site Plan Renewal (before expires) $500 No change 

   

Special Use Request  $1500 $1800 

Special Use Request Renewal (before expires) $500 No change 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Zoning Text Amendment $1000 $1500 

   

Street Vacation Request $400 $500 

   

Zoning Compliance Letter $100 No change 

   

P.U.D. - Pre Application Meeting No Fee No change 

P.U.D. - Concept Development Plan Review $1500.00 $3000.00 

P.U.D. - Preliminary Development Plan Review $1500.00 No change 

P.U.D. – Final Development Plan Review  $100.00 $500.00 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

P.U.D. Consultant Fees Direct reimbursement 
of ALL Planning 
Consultant 

No change 

P.U.D. Consultant Fees Direct reimbursement 
of ALL Planning 
Consultant  

No change 

P.U.D. Compliance Inspection No fee $100/hour 

   

Subdivision Approval Renewal (before expires) 
 

$500 plus $10 per lot No change 

Site Condominium - Preliminary Site Plan Review $500 plus $10 per 
unit 

$1000 plus $10 
per unit 

Site Condominium – Final Site Plan Review $100 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

Site Condominium Approval Renewal (before 
expires) 

$500 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

   

Public Hearing Re-Notification $300 per public 
hearing 

No change 

   

Site Plan Compliance - Re-Inspection No Fee $100 per hour 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-3 Museum Education Programs and Facility Rentals Proposed Fee Increases  

 
Resolution #2008-03-082 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the Museum 
Education Programs and Facility Rental Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall 
apply as of July 1, 2008: 
 

MUSEUM / Education Programs: 

*Troy School District Programs CURRENT PROPOSED 

½ Day, per student $3.00 $3.50 

Full Day, per student $5.00 $5.50 
   

*Out of District Programs  

½ Day, per student $4.00 $4.50 

Full Day, per student $6.00 $6.50 
  

*Day Care/Private School Programs   

½ Day, per child $4.00 $4.50 

Full Day, per child $6.00 $6.50 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

*Student residents of Troy will be accorded the Troy School District Fee. 
 

MUSEUM / Facility Rentals: 
 

 Village Grounds & Buildings 

(Excludes Church) 

Village Grounds & 

Church 

Wedding Ceremony Fees: 

 CURRENT/PROPOSED CURRENT/PROPOSED 

Resident $250.00/$350.00 $350.00/$450.00 

Non-resident $350.00/$450.00 $450.00/$550.00 

Security Deposit $200.00/No Change $200.00/No Change 
 

Fee for Wedding Photos on the Green: 

Resident $50.00/ No Change $100.00/No Change 

Non-resident $100.00/No Change $150.00/No Change 

Security Deposit $50.00/No Change $50.00/No Change 
 

Rental Fees for Meetings and Occasional Events: 

Location Troy Org. Non-Profit Org. Non-Troy Org. 

Museum Building 
$50.00 per hr / 
No Change 

$50.00 per hr / 
No Change 

$100.00 per hr / 
No Change 

Village Green 
$50.00 per hr / 
No Change 

$50.00 per hr / 
No Change 

$100.00 per hr / 
No Change 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-4 Amendments to Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds Required 

  
Resolution  
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 60, Section 60.03, to reflect a 
new fee schedule for Chapter 93, Fire Department Fees, and one fee change in Chapter 41, 
Planning Department Fee as listed below: 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES (Chapter 93)  

Permit Fee: Exhibit, Craft, Trade Show $50.00 $60.00 

Permit Fee: For public display and the retail display & sale of fireworks $100.00 $125.00 

Hazardous Material Permit Fees  

Based on Quantity & Form  

0-1,000 LBS.; 0-100 CU. FT; 0-330 GAL $150.00 $175.00 

1,001-20,000 LBS; 101-6,000 CU.FT; 331-990 GAL $300.00 $350.00 

20,001+ LBS.; 6,001 + CU. FT.; 991 + GAL $600.00 $700.00 

  

Permit Fees cover initial plan review and 2 inspections  

Note: Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of the same system 
shall apply to each inspector performing the re-inspection 

$50.00 $60.00 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

  

Sprinkler Systems  

Riser(s) & Sprinkler Heads:  

 1-10 Heads $75.00 $90.00 

 11-20 Heads $100.00 $125.00 

 21-50 Heads $125.00 $150.00 

 51-100 Heads $175.00 $210.00 

 101-200 Heads $250.00 $300.00 

 201-300 Heads $330.00 $390.00 

 301-400 Heads $430.00 $510.00 

 401-500 Heads $500.00 $600.00 

 500 -  > Heads $550.00*$660.00 

*Plus $0.50 $.060 per head over 500  

  

Standpipes $50.00** $60.00 

**Base Fee plus $5.00 $7.00 per hose connection  

  

Fire Pump $100.00 $125.00 

Dry or Wet Chemical Fire Suppression Systems – Per System $100.00 $125.00 

Each additional system reviewed at the same time $50.00 $60.00 

Alterations, additions, or modifications to existing system $35.00 $45.00 

  

Total Flooding Agent Extinguishing System $100.00***$125.00 

***Plus Appropriate Detection System Fee  

  

Permit Fees: Subsequent Plan Reviews and Inspections of the Same 
System 

$50.00 $60.00 

  

Fire Alarm and Detection Systems  

Device:  

Control Panel $50.00 $60.00 

Central Station Connection $25.00 $30.00  

Fire Initiating Device (Smoke Detector, Heat Detector, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Initiating or Auxiliary Control Device $5.00  $7.00 

First Auxiliary Control Device (Control Switch, Relay, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Auxiliary Control Device $5.00 $7.00 

First Audio/Visual Device (Horn, Speaker, Bell Strobe, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Audio/Visual Device $5.00 $7.00 

First Communication Device (Firefighter Phone, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Communication Device $5.00 $7.00 

Exception: One and two family residential alarm systems must meet the 
requirements of the Troy Building Department 

 

Other System or Device $25.00 

Additional Fees  

Each Re-inspection: During Normal Working Hours $50.00$60.00 each  

Each Re-inspection: During Non-working hours with a minimum 
assessment of three hours 

$75.00 $90.00 per 
hour each 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Cost Recovery-Hazardous Materials 
Cost Recovery-Fires See Recovery Charges Fee Schedule in Section 60.04 

 

Planning Department Fees (Chapter 41)  

Subdivision Tentative Preliminary Plat 

$500 plus $10.00 
per lot  
$1,000 plus $10.00 
per lot 

Subdivision Final Preliminary Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

Subdivision Final Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-03-083 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for by INSERTING “and 

said fee revisions shall apply to applications submitted after April 1, 2008” AFTER “below”.  

 
Yes: All-7  
 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 

 
Resolution #2008-03-084 
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 60, Section 60.03, to reflect a 
new fee schedule for Chapter 93, Fire Department Fees, and one fee change in Chapter 41, 
Planning Department Fee as listed below, and said fee revisions shall apply to applications 
submitted after April 1, 2008: 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES (Chapter 93)  

Permit Fee: Exhibit, Craft, Trade Show $50.00 $60.00 

Permit Fee: For public display and the retail display & sale of fireworks $100.00 $125.00 

Hazardous Material Permit Fees  

Based on Quantity & Form  

0-1,000 LBS.; 0-100 CU. FT; 0-330 GAL $150.00 $175.00 

1,001-20,000 LBS; 101-6,000 CU.FT; 331-990 GAL $300.00 $350.00 

20,001+ LBS.; 6,001 + CU. FT.; 991 + GAL $600.00 $700.00 

  

Permit Fees cover initial plan review and 2 inspections  

Note: Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of the same system shall 
apply to each inspector performing the re-inspection 

$50.00 $60.00 

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Sprinkler Systems  

Riser(s) & Sprinkler Heads:  

 1-10 Heads $75.00 $90.00 

 11-20 Heads $100.00 $125.00 

 21-50 Heads $125.00 $150.00 

 51-100 Heads $175.00 $210.00 

 101-200 Heads $250.00 $300.00 

 201-300 Heads $330.00 $390.00 

 301-400 Heads $430.00 $510.00 

 401-500 Heads $500.00 $600.00 

 500 -  > Heads $550.00*$660.00 

*Plus $0.50 $.060 per head over 500  

  

Standpipes $50.00** $60.00 

**Base Fee plus $5.00 $7.00 per hose connection  

  

Fire Pump $100.00 $125.00 

Dry or Wet Chemical Fire Suppression Systems – Per System $100.00 $125.00 

Each additional system reviewed at the same time $50.00 $60.00 

Alterations, additions, or modifications to existing system $35.00 $45.00 

  

Total Flooding Agent Extinguishing System $100.00***$125.00 

***Plus Appropriate Detection System Fee  

  

Permit Fees: Subsequent Plan Reviews and Inspections of the Same 
System 

$50.00 $60.00 

  

Fire Alarm and Detection Systems  

Device:  

Control Panel $50.00 $60.00 

Central Station Connection $25.00 $30.00  

Fire Initiating Device (Smoke Detector, Heat Detector, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Initiating or Auxiliary Control Device $5.00  $7.00 

First Auxiliary Control Device (Control Switch, Relay, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Auxiliary Control Device $5.00 $7.00 

First Audio/Visual Device (Horn, Speaker, Bell Strobe, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Audio/Visual Device $5.00 $7.00 

First Communication Device (Firefighter Phone, etc.) $15.00 $20.00 

Each Additional Communication Device $5.00 $7.00 

Exception: One and two family residential alarm systems must meet the 
requirements of the Troy Building Department 

 

Other System or Device $25.00 

Additional Fees  

Each Re-inspection: During Normal Working Hours $50.00 $60.00 
each  

Each Re-inspection: During Non-working hours with a minimum assessment 
of three hours 

$75.00 $90.00 per 
hour each 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

Cost Recovery-Hazardous Materials 
Cost Recovery-Fires 

See Recovery Charges Fee Schedule in Section 60.04 

 

Planning Department Fees (Chapter 41)  

Subdivision Tentative Preliminary Plat 

$500 plus $10.00 
per lot  
$1,000 plus 
$10.00 per lot 

Subdivision Final Preliminary Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

Subdivision Final Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

  
Yes: All-7  

 

E-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 20, 2008 

  
Resolution #2008-03-085 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

(a) No Changes at Candace and Carlson Park 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES at Candace and Carlson Park. 

 

(b) No Changes at Thistle and Walden 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES at Thistle and Walden. 
 

(c) Rescind Traffic Control Order #87-4-P and Issue New Traffic Control Order for 

Parking Restrictions at the Troy Public Library 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #87-4-P be RESCINDED, and Traffic Control Order 

#87-4-P be ISSUED for 15-minute and 2-hour parking restrictions at the Troy Public Library, as 
shown on the attached sketch. 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-03-086 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Items F-2 & F-6, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving 

Material    
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On March 5, 2007, one-year contracts for Asphalt Paving Materials was awarded 
to the low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, MI, Surface Coatings Company of 
Auburn Hills, MI, and Ajax Materials Corporation of Troy, MI (Res #2007-03-075-E4c); and 
  
WHEREAS, The contracts contain an option to renew for one additional year and all three 
awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the renewal under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the options to 
renew these contracts are hereby exercised with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc of Troy, MI, and 
Surface Coatings Company of Auburn Hills, MI, as primary suppliers and Ajax Materials 
Corporation of Troy, MI, as a secondary supplier to provide one-year requirements of Asphalt 
Paving Materials under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract expiring 
March 31, 2009. 

 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Turnout Gear    
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three-year cooperative contract to 
purchase turnout gear for the Troy Fire Department with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from the sole bidder, Apollo Fire Equipment Company of Romeo, MI, through 
the City of Rochester Hills bid process and extended to the MITN Purchasing Cooperative at 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 26, 2007, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of July1, 2010. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Alliance (NIPA)    
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby authorizes participation in the National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Program (NIPA) and for administration to approve like 
purchases in aggregate over $10,000.00 for operating expenditures under this program, while 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

“Capital” purchases over $10,000.00 continue to be presented for Troy City Council review and 
pending approval. 
 

F-5 Donation of Obsolete Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the donation of obsolete fire 
department Survivair Sigma self-contained breathing apparatus, air cylinders, and face pieces 
to the Oakland Fire Training Institute.  
 

F-7 Approval of Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 with Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. 

for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Project No. 

02.201.5 
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 between 
the City of Troy and Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. for Construction Engineering Services 
for the Stephenson Highway Reconstruction Project, from 14 Mile to I-75, Project No. 02.201.5 

and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the renewal of City of Troy's 
membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2008, in the amount of 
$25,200.00 and funds are available in the 2007-2008 Traffic Engineering budget, Account No. 
446.7958. 
 

F-9 Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2008-03-086-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Amber Creek 
East Apartments v. City of Troy (District Court Case No. C00-415 GZ 01 and Oakland Court 
Circuit Court Case No. 08-DA8750 AV); and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-03-087  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 18, 

2008 and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 20, 2008 be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

F-6 Library HVAC Rooftop Replacement Units 
 
Resolution #2008-03-088 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to replace the HVAC 
rooftop units at the Troy Public Library for an estimated $91,550.00, in accordance with 
Appendix I, Detailed Pricing, utilizing in-house personnel, approved contracts, and standard 
purchasing procedures. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:52 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:02 PM. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Recommendation to Amend City Council Rules of Procedures Rule Number 15 – 

Appointments – Referred by Council Member Broomfield  

  
Resolution #2008-03-089 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS City Council Rules and Procedures Rule 
Number 15 as follows: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

15. APPOINTMENTS 
 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being 
nominated for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, 
submit such name, into nomination., along with a A brief summary of background and 
personal data as to nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of 
nomination, except that such a resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a 
current member, or if the Council unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. 
Resumes will be submitted on or before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to 
nominate will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All 
nominations are subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be 

filled, a roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, 

voting shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each 
Council Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the 
vacancies 

3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number 
of votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board 

of the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless 
membership is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter 

thanking them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the 

community on Boards and Commissions. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

H-2 Resolution for Responsible Support of the New Troy Library – Referred by Council 

 Member Eisenbacher 
  
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan and the County of Oakland and City of Troy are facing 
tremendous economic challenges due to a significant downturn in the Michigan economy; 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council recognizes the economic distress facing many families, 
individuals, businesses, organizations, and charities, many of whom are affected within the City 
of Troy, by the devastating and negative impact brought about by the adjusting economy in the 
State of Michigan; 
 
WHEREAS, Businesses and families are making cutbacks in their budgets and cost of living 
and the Troy City Council recognizes that government on all levels should and will have to 
reduce expenditures to do its part in the present day atmosphere; 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County and City of Troy in the last 24 months have had the highest 
foreclosure rates on homes not seen in the last 50 years. Individuals and families are leaving 
the state of Michigan at a very high rate due to the economic condition and loss of jobs and 
businesses; 
 
WHEREAS, It is important to maintain the City of Troy’s low tax rate to provide a stable 
economic environment and recognizing that low tax rates are important for attracting and 
retaining businesses and homeowners within Troy in these competitive times; and 
 
WHEREAS, A new or an expanded public library seems to be one of the public priorities at this 
time and recently the Troy Public Library has been ranked second in Michigan for public 
libraries of all sizes based on nationally gathered statistics; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager 
and City Staff to prioritize existing revenues toward new or expanded library facilities from the 
existing budgets over the next 5 to 15 years to accommodate funding for a new library; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager and 
City Staff to also work to seek revenue sources outside of a City of Troy tax increase such as 
public or private grants, public-private partnership, donations, and other creative revenue 
sources; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council WILL NOT ASK its Taxpayers for a new 
tax increase to fund a new Troy Public Library. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-03-090 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution by INSERTING “or 

expanded” in the seventh paragraph AFTER “new”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

Pending Proposed Resolution as Amended  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan and the County of Oakland and City of Troy are facing 
tremendous economic challenges due to a significant downturn in the Michigan economy; 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council recognizes the economic distress facing many families, 
individuals, businesses, organizations, and charities, many of whom are affected within the City 
of Troy, by the devastating and negative impact brought about by the adjusting economy in the 
State of Michigan; 
 
WHEREAS, Businesses and families are making cutbacks in their budgets and cost of living 
and the Troy City Council recognizes that government on all levels should and will have to 
reduce expenditures to do its part in the present day atmosphere; 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County and City of Troy in the last 24 months have had the highest 
foreclosure rates on homes not seen in the last 50 years. Individuals and families are leaving 
the state of Michigan at a very high rate due to the economic condition and loss of jobs and 
businesses; 
 
WHEREAS, It is important to maintain the City of Troy’s low tax rate to provide a stable 
economic environment and recognizing that low tax rates are important for attracting and 
retaining businesses and homeowners within Troy in these competitive times; and 
 
WHEREAS, A new or an expanded public library seems to be one of the public priorities at this 
time and recently the Troy Public Library has been ranked second in Michigan for public 
libraries of all sizes based on nationally gathered statistics; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager 
and City Staff to prioritize existing revenues toward new or expanded library facilities from the 
existing budgets over the next 5 to 15 years to accommodate funding for a new or expanded 
library; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager and 
City Staff to also work to seek revenue sources outside of a City of Troy tax increase such as 
public or private grants, public-private partnership, donations, and other creative revenue 
sources; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council WILL NOT ASK its Taxpayers for a new 
tax increase to fund a new Troy Public Library. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Schilling   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed resolution for 
Responsible Support of the New Troy Library – Referred by Council Member Eisenbacher 
indefinitely. 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Postponement Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2008-03-091 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Schilling   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to postpone the proposed 
resolution for Responsible Support of the New Troy Library – Referred by Council Member 

Eisenbacher by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with “RESOLVED, That Troy 

City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed resolution for Responsible Support of the New 
Troy Library – Referred by Council Member Eisenbacher until such time City Council requests 
that the item be placed on the agenda.” 
 
Yes Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling 
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Postponement Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2008-03-092 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Schilling   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed resolution for 
Responsible Support of the New Troy Library – Referred by Council Member Eisenbacher until 
such time City Council requests that the item be placed on the agenda. 
 
Yes Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Mayor Schilling referred to the positive article which appeared in the Tribune in regard to the 
newly initiated Customer Solutions Department adding that this service is another example of 
how the city is continuing its efforts to enhance customer service in the community.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

Mayor Schilling commented on the outstanding success of the annual Taste of Troy event in 
support of the Boys & Girls Club and praised the hard work of the volunteers working on this 
endeavor. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that SEMCOG has expanded their information center and 
noted that she has distributed a palm card to each Council Member listing some of the 
available SEMCOG services. She added that SEMCOG is also sponsoring a series of seminars 
known as SEMCOG Universities and that the April session is about the Transfer of 
Development Rights. Council Member Beltramini suggested that this session may be beneficial 
in the development of the city’s Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Council Member Beltramini would like to invite the Environmental Club from Smith Middle 
School to provide a presentation and asked that it be added to the next City Council meeting 
agenda. 
 
Council Member Kerwin would also like to invite the Environmental Club to a future study 
session. 
 
Council Member Kerwin read aloud the letter of appreciation received from Nancy Negohosian, 
Vice President of HMS Products regarding response time and the quality of Troy’s police 
officers and city services.  
 
Council Member Broomfield requested that City Management contact the Executive Director 
speaking on behalf of MADD in regard to their request to hold an activity at Boulan Park. 
Council Member Fleming believes a compromise can be made in this situation. 
 
Council Member Beltramini is somewhat concerned in regard to MADD’s request in that some 
of the activities may be detrimental to the park. Council Member Beltramini does not believe 
Troy’s citizens should be held liable for any damages that may incur. 
 
Mayor Schilling understands that one problem was that the applicant did not meet the Troy 
resident requirement and added that perhaps a county park would better meet the needs of 
their event. The Mayor clarified that Administration’s denial was about the applicant not 
meeting application requirements and not about being unsupportive of the endeavors of the 
group. 
 
Council Member Broomfield believes this would be an opportunity for the city to be “business 
friendly” and that an event like this would bring a lot of exposure to the city in terms of people 
visiting restaurants, etc. She views it as a win-win situation and would like City Administration to 
sit down with MADD and try to come to a compromise. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 20 - 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 4, 2007 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 9, 2008  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 15, 2008  
d) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 16, 2008  
e) Traffic Committee/Final – January 16, 2008 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 22, 2008  
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 5, 2008 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 6, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Police Department – 2007 Year End Calls for Police Service Report  
b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Nancy Negohosian, Vice President 

HMS Products, Regarding Response Time and Quality of Officers  
b) Letter of Thanks to Sgt. Clark from Kathie Kryla  
c) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from Tina Rowley Regarding Leadership Oakland  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 

et. al. 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding International 

Transmission Company’s (ITC) Application for Certificate of Public Convenience 

and Necessity 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8  Official Statement Relating to City of Troy General Obligation Unlimited Tax 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 3, 2008 

 

- 21 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:42 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
March 3, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services   
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Proclamation: National Community Development Week March 24-30, 2008  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The week of March 24 – 30, 2008 has been designated as National Community Development Week by the 

National Community Development Association to celebrate the Community Development Block Grant 
program. The City receives a direct allocation from the CDBG program annually to provide resources for a 
wide variety of community development activities that principally benefit out low and moderate income 
residents including the elderly and disabled. This valued program has made a tremendous contribution to 
the viability of the infrastructure, public services and economic vitality of our community. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed Proclamation is consistent with City Council Goal 1 (Enhance the livability and safety of the 

community), Goal 4 (Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally) and Goal 5 
(Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs.)  

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council designate the week of the week of March 24 through March 30, 2008 as 

Community Development Block Grant Week. 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.17.08 – CDBG Proclamation letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



PROCLAMATION 
Community Development Block Grant Week 

March 24 – 30, 2008 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the week of March 24-30, 2008 has been designated as National 
Community Development Week by the National Community Development 
Association to celebrate the Community Development Block Grant program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant program has as its 
primary objective the development of viable urban communities by providing 
decent housing, a suitable living environment and expanding economic 
opportunities, principally for person of low- and moderate-income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy receives a direct allocation from the Community 
Development Block Grant program annually to provide resources for a wide 
variety of community development activities that principally benefit low and 
moderate income persons, including the elderly and disabled; and 
 
WHEREAS, in our community and in communities throughout the nation, 34 
years of Community Development Block Grant program funding has developed a 
strong network of relationships among local governments, residents, businesses 
and non-profit organizations. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that this community urges Congress and the Administration 
to recognize the outstanding work being done locally and nationally by the 
Community Development Block Grant program by supporting increased funding 
for the program in FY 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.17.08 – CDBG Proclamation 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 20 YEARS   

THE BUSINESS ADVISORY GROUP, LLC 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC was founded 20 years ago on  
March 6, 1988 by Terry Socall in his Troy home.  Terry Socall’s business has grown 
over the years and he continues to serve as the company’s President and CEO; and 
 
WHEREAS, Terry Socall rented his first outside office space in 1997 and now has 
offices in the Liberty Center on Big Beaver; and 
 
WHEREAS, Helping new businesses get started, and helping existing businesses 
become more profitable – “from concept to success” – are the goals of The Business 
Advisory Group, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC conducts business throughout the 
United States, but has chosen to remain headquartered in Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Business Advisory Group, LLC is involved in the Troy community as 
a member of the Troy Chamber of Commerce, with employees on the Hospitality 
Committee and serving as Ambassadors; and as a member of Automation Alley, with 
employees on the Membership and Technology Business Committees;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby 
congratulate The Business Advisory Group, LLC on its 20th Anniversary and 
recognizes its impact upon our community as they serve as a steadfast and dedicated 
business in the City of Troy; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community 
in appreciation and celebration of the 20th Anniversary of The Business Advisory 
Group, LLC in the City of Troy. 
 
Presented this 17th day of March 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03b



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 50 YEARS   

TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
 
 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Commission passed a resolution on March 27,1958 providing for a Child and Youth Assistance 
Committee in the City of Troy and nominated 25 citizens representing schools, law enforcement, churches and the 
community to the committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sponsored by Judge Arthur E. Moore of the Oakland County Juvenile Court, the committee was formed to work 
with children, authorities and families on a pre-juvenile delinquent basis; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mayor Frank Costello selected the committee members and told them their job was to prevent youngsters from 
becoming court cases and asked the committee to work closely with educators, law enforcement authorities, religious leaders 
and parents to protect rather than prosecute; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1971, Troy Youth Assistance began an employment service staffed by volunteers.  They called upon local 
residents and business owners who had job opportunities such as babysitting, office work, housecleaning and yard work with 
hourly rates ranging from $.75 to $1.50 for Troy teenagers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The mission of Troy Youth Assistance is to strengthen youth and families and to reduce the incidence of 
delinquency, abuse and neglect through community involvement.  Volunteers work with professional staff to develop 
enriching programs aimed at enhancing family and community relationships; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over the years Troy Youth Assistance has achieved many milestones, including successful and innovative 
fund raising campaigns; overseeing teens managing the Boulan Park Concession Stand; hosting teen dances; starting a 
banquet in 1973 to honor Troy young people who volunteer their time and energy in helping others; awarding camp 
scholarships to deserving youth; and recruiting volunteers to mentor young people for their Mentors P.L.U.S. program; and  
 
WHEREAS, Throughout their 50 year history, Troy Youth Assistance has maintained a fine reputation for delivering 
tremendous value throughout the community.  TYA has conducted surveys on family education programming as well as 
hosted valuable educational workshops for parents on a variety of topics including communicating with teens; developing 
responsible behavior in teens; and active, effective parenting; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Troy Youth Assistance on 
its 50th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon thousands and thousands of young people since 1958;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration of 
Troy Youth Assistance’s 50th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 17th day of March 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03c



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
February 26, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder-Aboveground   
    Fuel Storage – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
 
Background 
 
 Bids were received and publicly read on February 11, 2008, for supplying all labor, materials, and 

equipment to install aboveground fuel storage capabilities for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 
 45 vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) system. Two 

(2) vendors returned bids. One vendor, R. W. Mercer Company, 2322 Brooklyn Road, Jackson, MI 
49203 submitted the lowest total bid of $39,975.00.  

 Since the bids were opened, an unknown state requirement was discovered. In order for the 
project to proceed, a remote bottom fill system must be installed at an additional cost of 
$5,600.00. The total estimated cost of the project is $45,575.00 including the additional cost, and 
is still less than the second bidder.                            

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds for the aboveground fuel storage installation project will be available in the Sanctuary Lake 

capital account #888.7974.130  
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-47 Aboveground Fuel Storage Tank was competitively bid as required by Chapter 7 

of the City Code. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying all labor, 

materials, and equipment to install one (1) aboveground fuel storage tank at Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course. 

 Award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance, bonds, and any other 
specified requirements. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



Page 2 of 2 
 

February 26, 2008 
 
To:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:     Bid Award – Aboveground Fuel Storage Tank 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Replacing the temporary fuel storage with a permanent aboveground fuel storage tank will provide 

the staff and public a safe, more attractive site (Goal I). 
 Increasing fuel storage capacities will free up staff to concentrate on other areas of golf operations 

(Goal II).  
 Aboveground fuel storage will now comply with all Federal, State, and Municipal Rules and 

Regulations (Goal V). 
 
Options 
 
 City management and the Golf Division of the Parks and Recreation department recommend 

awarding a contract to provide and install one (1) aboveground fuel storage tank at Sanctuary 
Lake Maintenance Facility to the lowest bidder, R.W. Mercer Company of Jackson, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $45,575.00 at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 11, 
2008 and subsequent letter dated February 25, 2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 FuelStorageTank 02-08.doc 



Opening Date -- 2/11/08 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-47
Date Prepared -- 2/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1

ABOVEGROUND FUEL STORAGE TANK

VENDOR NAME: ** R.W. Mercer Oscar W. Larson
Company Company

CHECK #: 742850274 705905024
CHECK AMOUNT: 10% 3,997.50$                  4,700.00$                  

PROPOSAL:   TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO INSTALL A NEW ABOVEGROUND
FUEL STORAGE TANK AT SANCTUARY LAKE MAINTENANCE FACILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 39,975.00$                47,000.00$                

MANUFACTURED BY: Steel Tank Institute Fireguard
STYLE/MODEL: Fireguard, Double Wall Steel 1,000 Gallon (600/400)

FUEL TANK DIMENISIONS: Blank 107"L X 62"W x 48"H

COST BREAKDOWN: Marked as A 1.0

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Marked as B 2.0

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation 8:00am to 5:00pm 7:00am to 5:00pm
24 Hr Phone No. (517) 787-2960 (248) 620-0070

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
Date 1/25/2008 2/1/2008

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

Work to Commence - # of days ARO 25 60

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Blank Blank

TERMS: Net 10 Net 10

1Yr-Parts; 90 Days/Labor
WARRANTY: Manufacturers Warranty 2 years

LISTED IN BID
EXCEPTIONS: Not Included:  Dewatering N/A

Hauling/disposal of contaminated soil

Masonary Wall Stiffening

Bumper Poles & Union Labor
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N Yes Yes

ELECTRICAL DIAGRAM Y/N Yes Yes

TWO FORMS: Non-Collusion Affidavit & Legal Status Yes Yes
ADDENDUM #1 & #2 Y/N Yes - #2 No

NO BID: 
Phoenix Environmental, Inc. ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST: _______________________________
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPB
Danny McDonald Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 07-47 Fuel Storage Tank

June 15, 2008





campbellld
Text Box
F-04b























Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
 March 10, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative 

Agreement – Live Scan  

Background  

 

In 1997, the Police Department, through a matching state grant, purchased hardware and 
software to capture and transmit fingerprints of arrestees electronically.  This was the end of 
inked impressions and paper fingerprint cards and the beginning of biometric data and 
electronic digital storage.  Over the years, the system has been integrated with mugshots and 
both the hardware and software have been upgraded to keep pace with ever changing 
technological advancements.   
 
The latest change to the system is the incorporation of a fingerprint scanner that has the 
ability to scan palm print impressions.  Including this biometric data as part of the record 
further supports the identification of subjects who are incarcerated.  Potentially, it could solve 
crimes when only palm impressions are available for analysis and comparison of palm latent 
impressions taken from crime scenes.  The department also received a new monitor, tower, 
and enterprise application software that links and transmits mug shot and live scan records to 
the County and the State.   
 
Oakland County purchased the live scan equipment with federal grant funds.  Therefore, it is 
necessary that they maintain ownership of the equipment for use by the Troy Police 
Department.  There is no cost to Troy or any other participating Oakland County municipality 
for the purchase of the equipment.  Troy and participating communities will only be 
responsible for the maintenance costs of the new equipment.  The County has negotiated 
agreements for both the software license and the system maintenance with the maker of the 
equipment.  The cost to Troy is $3,313.00 per year and will remain the same until  
December 31, 2013, or until canceled or terminated by either party pursuant to Section 7 of 
the Interlocal Agreement. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
March 10, 2008 

 

 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Live Scan Agreement with Oakland County 

 

 

Financial Considerations 
 
Funding for this agreement is available in the Research and Technology operating budget account 
#334.7802.070. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 
The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed the agreement and agrees with the terms and conditions. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
The identification and arrest of criminals by matching latent prints will be in keeping with the goal of 
keeping our community and officers safe.  (Goal I) 
 
By the County purchasing the system through a grant, the City is only responsible for the 
maintenance; therefore, the goal of minimizing the cost and increasing the efficiency and 
effectiveness of City government is met.  (Goal II) 
 

Options 
 
City management recommends Troy City Council authorize the Live Scan Agreement with Oakland 
County at a cost of $3,313.00 per year for maintenance and preventative services for each cabinet 
style hand scanner system through December 31, 2013. 
 
Reviewed and Approved as to Form:   ____________________________________   
       Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 1 

 
LIVE SCAN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

AND 
CITY OF TROY 

 
 
 
 
This Agreement is made between Oakland County, a Constitutional Corporation, 1200 
North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341 and City of Troy 500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084.   In this Agreement, the County and the Political Subdivision may 
also be referred to individually as "Party" or jointly as "Parties." 
 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT.  Pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 
PA 7, MCL 124.501, et seq., the County and the Political Subdivision enter into this 
Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to delineate the responsibilities and 
obligations of the Parties regarding use and maintenance of Live Scan Equipment for 
submission and exchange of Fingerprint Information. 
 
In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in 
this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS.  The following words and expressions used throughout this 

Agreement, whether used in the singular or plural, within or without quotation 
marks, or possessive or nonpossessive, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as 
follows: 
1.1. Agreement means the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Exhibits 

attached hereto, and any other mutually agreed to written and executed 
modification or amendment.   

1.2. Claim means any alleged loss, claim, complaint, demand for relief or 
damages, cause of action, proceeding, judgment, deficiency, liability, penalty, 
fine, litigation, cost, or expense, including, but not limited to, reimbursement 
for reasonable attorney fees, witness fees, court costs, investigation expenses, 
litigation expenses, or amounts paid in settlement, which are imposed on, 
incurred by, or asserted against the County or Political Subdivision, its 
employees or agents, whether such Claim is brought in law, equity, tort, 
contract, or otherwise. 

1.3. Contractor means the vendor selected by the County, pursuant to County 
purchasing policies and procedures, to provide the Live Scan Equipment and 
the maintenance services for the Live Scan Equipment. 

1.4. County means Oakland County, a Municipal and Constitutional Corporation 
including, but not limited to, all departments, divisions, the County Board of 
Commissioners, elected and appointed officials, directors, board members, 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 2 

council members, commissioners, authorities, committees, employees, 
agents, or any such persons’ successors. 

1.5. Courts and Law Enforcement Management Information System 
("CLEMIS") means the computer system which provides access to and 
entry of public safety and law enforcement data and facilitates the exchange 
of such data between public safety and law enforcement agencies.  CLEMIS 
also provides access to other criminal justice databases.  CLEMIS is 
interfaced to state and federal law enforcement computers systems which 
maintain records and files essential to the needs of the public safety and law 
enforcement community. 

1.6. Courts and Law Enforcement Management Information System Division 
(“CLEMIS Division”) means a division of the Oakland County Department 
of Information Technology that supports CLEMIS users.  The CLEMIS 
Division provides services such as training for CLEMIS, a help desk, 
technical support, application development, liaison with the State on 
technology matters, vendor liaison, CLEMIS administration, project 
management, and a CLEMIS application backup site. 

1.7. Day means any calendar day beginning at 12:00 a.m. and ending at 11:59 
p.m. 

1.8. Exhibit means all of the following documents which are fully incorporated 
into this Agreement: 
1.8.1. Exhibit I:    Software License 
1.8.2. Exhibit II:  Maintenance Agreement 

1.9. Fingerprint Information means the fingerprint impressions and associated 
data that is entered into the Live Scan Equipment by the Political 
Subdivision. 

1.10. Live Scan Equipment (or Equipment) means cabinet or desktop style 
handscanner systems including hardware, software, demographic interfaces 
and software customization as delivered by the Contractor. 

1.11. Maintenance Fees means the amount of money paid by the Political 
Subdivision to the County to maintain the Live Scan Equipment pursuant to 
Section 4 of this Agreement.  Maintenance Fees do not include costs for 
maintenance services not covered by the Maintenance Agreement. 

1.12. Political Subdivision means City of Troy, including, but not limited to, its 
Council, departments, divisions, elected and appointed officials, directors, 
board members, council members, commissioners, authorities, committees, 
employees, agents, subcontractors, or any such persons’ successors. 

1.13. System Manager means the individual or individuals designated by the 
Political Subdivision who is the authorized point of contact between the 
County and the Contractor for receiving/sending of material or Live Scan 
Equipment related to this Agreement or other issues related to this 
Agreement. 

2. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES.  Subject to the terms and conditions contained 
in this Agreement, and applicable changes in law, the County shall carry out the 
following: 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 3 

2.1. The County shall provide Live Scan Equipment, specifically one (1) cabinet 
style handscanner system, to the Political Subdivision for its use.  The 
County purchased most of the Live Scan Equipment with grant funds; thus, 
the County shall remain the owner of the Live Scan Equipment, even though 
it is located at the Political Subdivision. 

2.2. In an effort to reduce costs to the Political Subdivision and the County, the 
County negotiated and executed a single Software License Agreement, 
Exhibit I, and Maintenance Agreement, Exhibit II, for all Live Scan 
Equipment purchased by the County.  

2.3. The Contractor shall provide the maintenance services for the Live Scan 
Equipment, not the County, as set forth in the Maintenance Agreement 
attached as Exhibit II.  

2.4. Once the Political Subdivision enters and submits the Fingerprint Information 
into the Live Scan Equipment, the County will submit the Fingerprint 
Information to the State of Michigan, pursuant to law.  The County shall also 
store all Fingerprint Information entered and submitted into the Live Scan 
Equipment at the County. 

3. POLITICAL SUBDIVISION’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 
3.1. The Political Subdivision shall use and operate the Live Scan Equipment 

properly and according to this Agreement and applicable law. 
3.2. The Political Subdivision shall comply with the Software License, attached as 

Exhibit I, and the Maintenance Agreement, attached as Exhibit II. 
3.3. In exchange for the use of the Live Scan Equipment, the Political Subdivision 

shall pay for the maintenance services provided by the Contractor.  The 
Maintenance Fees and the manner of payment are set forth in Section 4 of 
this Agreement.  The Political Subdivision shall be solely responsible to pay 
for any maintenance services not covered by the Maintenance Agreement, 
Exhibit II. 

3.4. Each Political Subdivision shall identify a System Manager and alternative 
and notify the County in writing of the System Manager and alternative.  The 
Political Subdivision must notify the County in writing of any changes to the 
System Manager and alternative within five (5) Days of any change.  

3.5. The System Manager shall be the first point of contact for the Political 
Subdivision when problems occur with the Live Scan Equipment.  The 
System Manager shall be the sole individual responsible for relaying 
problems with the Live Scan Equipment to the Contractor and/or 
communicating the need for maintenance to the Contractor. 

3.6. The Political Subdivision shall send its employees or agents to training 
classes regarding Live Scan Equipment as required by the County.  The 
training classes shall be provided to the Political Subdivision at no charge. 

3.7. The Political Subdivision shall require that all users of Live Scan Equipment 
report any problem or unusual activity to the System Manager to enable 
proper maintenance of the Live Scan Equipment.  

3.8. The Political Subdivision shall be solely responsible for entering Fingerprint 
Information into the Live Scan Equipment for its jurisdiction. 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 4 

3.9. The Political Subdivision shall be solely responsible for ensuring that the 
Fingerprint Information entered into Live Scan Equipment is accurate, 
complete, updated, and/or purged as required by law.  

3.10. The Fingerprint Information entered into the Live Scan Equipment shall be 
and remain the data of the Political Subdivision. 

3.11. The Political Subdivision shall replace or repair the Live Scan Equipment 
which is willfully or negligently lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed and shall 
be responsible for the costs associated with such replacement or repair, 
normal wear and tear excepted. 

3.12. The Political Subdivision shall not move (from the facility where it is 
located) the Live Scan Equipment until written notice is given to the County.  
The Political Subdivision shall not dispose of the Live Scan Equipment 
without first getting written permission of the County. 

3.13. Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, the Political Subdivision 
shall be solely responsible for all costs, fines, and fees associated with the use 
and misuse of the Live Scan Equipment. 

4. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBLITIES. 
4.1. The County shall pay the Maintenance Fees to the Contractor annually for the 

Maintenance Agreement and invoice the Political Subdivision for the amount 
and in the manner set forth in this section. 

4.2. The Political Subdivision shall pay Three Thousand, Three Hundred and 
Thirteen ($3,313.00) Dollars in Maintenance Fees annually to the County for 
four (4) years, for maintenance and preventative services for each cabinet 
style handscanner system provided to the Political Subdivision by the 
County.  The obligation to pay Maintenance Fees shall begin on May 1, 
2009. 

4.3. The County shall invoice the Political Subdivision quarterly for the 
Maintenance Fees.  The Maintenance Fees become due to the County upon 
receipt of such invoice and the Political Subdivision agrees to pay the invoice 
within forty-five (45) Days of receipt. 

4.4. Except as provided in this Agreement, the County is not responsible for any 
cost, fee, fine or penalty incurred by the Political Subdivision in connection 
with this Agreement. 

4.5. To the maximum extent provided by law, if there is any amount past due 
under this Agreement, the County, in its sole discretion, has the right to set 
off that amount from any amount due to the Political Subdivision from the 
County, including, but not limited to, distributions from the Delinquent Tax 
Revolving Fund (DTRF). 

5. DURATION OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. 
5.1. The Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed 

by both Parties, with resolutions passed by the governing bodies of each 
Party, and when the Agreement is filed according to MCL 124.510.  The 
approval and terms of this Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be 
entered in the official minutes of the governing bodies of each Party. 

5.2. This Agreement shall remain in effect until December 31, 2013 or until 
cancelled or terminated by either Party pursuant to Section 7. 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 5 

 
 

6. ASSURANCES. 
6.1. Each Party shall be responsible for its own acts and the acts of its employees, 

agents, and subcontractors, the costs associated with those acts, and the 
defense of those acts. 

6.2. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Political Subdivision shall be 
responsible for Claims that arise out of its use of the Live Scan Equipment 

6.3. Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for any consequential, 
incidental, indirect, or special damages of any kind in connection with this 
Agreement. 

7. TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT. 
7.1. Either Party may terminate or cancel this Agreement for any reason upon 

thirty (30) days notice.  The effective date for termination or cancellation 
shall be clearly stated in the notice. 

7.2. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Political 
Subdivision ceases to be a member of CLEMIS, this Agreement shall 
terminate, as of the date the Political Subdivision ceases to be a member of 
CLEMIS, with no notice required by either Party. 

7.3. The Political Subdivision shall not be responsible for payment of 
Maintenance Fees after the effective date of termination or cancellation of 
this Agreement. 

7.4. Within thirty (30) Days of the effective date of termination or cancellation of 
this Agreement, the Political Subdivision shall return the Live Scan 
Equipment to the County. 

7.5. The Parties shall not be obligated to pay a cancellation or termination fee, if 
this Agreement is cancelled or terminated as provided herein. 

8. SUSPENSION OF SERVICES.   
8.1. Upon notice to the Political Subdivision of the County’s determination that 

the Political Subdivision has failed to comply with federal, state, or local law 
or the requirements contained in this Agreement, the County may 
immediately suspend this Agreement, provided the notice contains a detailed 
description of the basis for the determination. 

8.2. Upon submission of a written plan or statement by the Political Subdivision 
to the County addressing each basis listed in the County’s notice and the 
County agrees to such written plan or statement (such agreement shall not be 
unreasonably withheld), then the Political Subdivision shall be entitled to an 
immediate reinstatement of the Agreement.  

8.3. The right to suspend this Agreement is in addition to the right to terminate or 
cancel this Agreement contained in Section 7.   

8.4. The County shall not incur penalty, expense, or liability if services are 
suspended under this Section, unless the Agreement is not immediately 
reinstated as provided in this Section or the County wrongfully suspended the 
Agreement under this Section. 

9. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except as expressly provided in this 
Agreement, this Agreement does not and is not intended to create any obligation, 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 6 

duty, promise, contractual right or benefit, right to indemnification, right to 
subrogation, and/or any other right, in favor of any other person or entity. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, administrative rules, and 
requirements applicable to its activities performed under this Agreement and 
applicable to the operation of the Live Scan Equipment.   

11. DISCRIMINATION.  The Parties shall not discriminate against their employees, 
agents, applicants for employment, or other persons or entities with respect to hire, 
tenure, terms, conditions, and privileges of employment, or any matter directly or 
indirectly related to employment in violation of any federal, state or local law. 

12. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.  This Agreement does not, and is not intended to, 
impair, divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other 
legal right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties. 

13. FORCE MAJEURE.  Each Party shall be excused from any obligations under this 
Agreement during the time and to the extent that a Party is prevented from 
performing due to causes beyond such Party’s control, including, but not limited to, 
an act of God, war, fire, strike, labor disputes, civil disturbances, reduction of 
power source, or any other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the 
affected Party.  Reasonable notice shall be given to the affected Party of any such 
event. 

14. IN-KIND SERVICES.  This Agreement does not authorize any in-kind services, 
unless previously agreed to by the Parties and specifically listed herein. 

15. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT.  A Party shall not delegate, 
subcontract, and/or assign any obligations or rights under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other Party.   

16. NO IMPLIED WAIVER.  Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a 
Party to pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach 
of this Agreement.  No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this 
Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be 
deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of 
this Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently effect its right to 
require strict performance of this Agreement. 

17. SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term or condition of 
this Agreement to be illegal or invalid, then the term or condition shall be deemed 
severed from this Agreement.  All other terms, conditions, and provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force. 

18. CAPTIONS.  The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such 
sections and subsections contained in this Agreement are intended for the 
convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive meaning.  
The numbers, captions, and indexes shall not be interpreted or be considered as part 
of this Agreement.  Any use of the singular or plural number, any reference to the 
male, female, or neuter genders, and any possessive or nonpossessive use in this 
Agreement shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the 
context requires. 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 7 

19. NOTICES.  Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class 
U.S. mail postage prepaid, and addressed to the person listed below.  Notice will be 
deemed given on the date when one of the following first occur: (1) the date of 
actual receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent express delivery service 
or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified U.S. mail. 

 
19.1. If Notice is set to the County, it shall be addressed and sent to:  

 
Oakland County Department of Information Technology,  
Manager of CLEMIS Division,  
1200 North Telegraph Road, Building #49 West, 
Pontiac, Michigan, 48341  
and 
Chairperson of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners,  
1200 North Telegraph,  
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 
 

19.2. If Notice is sent to the Political Subdivision, it shall be addressed to:  
 
City of Troy 
Police Department 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
19.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is sent 

by notifying the other Party in writing of the change. 
20. GOVERNING LAW/CONSENT TO JURISDICTION AND VENUE.  This 

Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State of 
Michigan.  Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action brought to 
enforce, interpret, or decide any Claim arising under or related to this Agreement 
shall be brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Michigan, the 50th 
District Court of the State of Michigan, or the United States District Court for the 
Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division, as dictated by the applicable 
jurisdiction of the court.  Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, venue 
is proper in the courts set forth above. 

21. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  Any modifications, 
amendments, recissions, waivers, or releases to this Agreement must be in writing 
and agreed to by both Parties.  Unless otherwise agreed, the modification, 
amendment, recission, waiver, or release shall be signed by the same persons who 
signed the Agreement or other persons as authorized by the Parties' governing 
bodies. 

22. RESCISSION OF PREVIOUS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.  This 
Agreement hereby rescinds and supersedes the Live Scan Maintenance Agreement 
previously entered into between the County and Political Subdivision and this 
Agreement shall control all matters contemplated therein. 



Live Scan Agreement--Final 
Page 8 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the Parties.  This Agreement supersedes all other oral or 
written Agreements between the Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be 
construed as a whole according to its fair meaning and not construed strictly for or 
against any Party. 

 
The Parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 
complete this Agreement.  The persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party 
have legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind the Parties to the terms and 
conditions contained herein. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _______________ hereby acknowledges that he has been 
authorized by a resolution of the__________________, a certified copy of which is 
attached, to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Political Subdivision and hereby 
accepts and binds the Political Subdivision to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTED: ______________________________ DATE:______________ 
  Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                        ______________________________ DATE:______________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Bill Bullard, Jr., Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to 
execute this Agreement on behalf of Oakland County and hereby accepts and binds 
Oakland County to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
EXECUTED: _____________________________ DATE: ______________  
 Bill Bullard, Jr., Chairperson 
 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
WITNESSED:_____________________________ DATE:_______________ 
 Ruth Johnson, Clerk Register of Deeds 
 County of Oakland  



campbellld
Text Box
F-05









campbellld
Text Box
F-06









 

 
 
March 10, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item:  Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached please find a request from Don Pierce, President, Troy Racquet Club, requesting 

approval of the rates for the 2008-2009 season.   
 The lease between the City of Troy and the Troy Racquet Club, LLC requires City Manager or City 

Council approval of requests for rate changes.  Council has historically approved rate change 
requests.   

 No increase is proposed for hourly rates.   
 Membership rates have not increased in three years.  Increases of less than 10% are proposed to 

individual and family resident rates.  A decrease to the non-resident family rate is proposed.  This 
decrease is proposed to stay market competitive.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations to the City.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations. 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends approval of the proposed 2008-2009 rates for the Troy Racquet 

Club.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07







campbellld
Text Box
F-08















campbellld
Text Box
F-09







campbellld
Text Box
F-10





  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: March 11, 2008 
SUBJECT: Rome Love v. City of Troy 

 

 

 

 

Enclosed please find a copy of a lawsuit that was recently filed against the City of 
Troy by Rome Love.  This lawsuit has been filed in the Wayne County Circuit Court (Judge 
Cynthia Stephens), since that is where Plaintiff resides, as well as where the accident 
occurred.  According to the complaint, Plaintiff was allegedly injured when the City of Troy 
bus rear collided with a SMART bus on April 6, 2006.  The Troy bus was driving on 
Woodward Avenue, returning from a senior field trip.  The Troy bus sustained minor 
damage, including a broken mirror.   

 
Plaintiff seeks damages in excess of $25,000 for alleged pain, disability, and 

mental anguish, although the alleged injuries are not specified.  The complaint likewise 
does not detail how Plaintiff was allegedly injured in this minor accident.   The traffic crash 
report, which was completed by the Wayne County Sherriff’s Department, does not even 
reference Plaintiff.     

  
Absent objections from City Council, our office will represent the City’s interests.  

As always, please let me know if you have any questions. 
  

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11











campbellld
Text Box
F-12











 

 
 
TO:   Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE:  March 10, 2008 
SUBJECT: Blood Draw Agreements     

 
 
 In March 2005, Troy Beaumont Hospital, Alliance Mobile Health, and the City of Troy 
formalized an innovative process to more efficiently secure blood samples from suspected drunk 
drivers.  Although the breathalyzer is most often used to obtain a person’s level of intoxication, there 
are situations where blood samples are necessary, or specifically requested by a suspect.  Prior to 
2005, each suspect requiring a blood test was transported by our officers to Troy Beaumont Hospital, 
since blood tests were required to be performed under the supervision of a licensed physician.   
 
 Starting in 2005, Beaumont Hospital developed a protocol, which allowed for EMTs from 
Alliance Mobile Health to do these blood draws in their ambulances.  Pursuant to the protocol, the 
EMT would necessarily contact a physician working at Beaumont Hospital, who would provide the 
“direction,” as required by the state drunk driving laws.  Certain health conditions could preclude this 
procedure, and these conditions are set forth in the Protocol.  All blood samples are taken in a sterile 
environment, and are forwarded to the State of Michigan for analysis and report.   
 
 Since 2005, this process has been very successful in significantly reducing the number of 
visits to Troy Beaumont Hospital.  The initial agreement was for one year, with two one year 
renewals.  The parties have agreed to a new five year agreement, with up to two automatic renewals 
for five year periods.  
 
 Attached please find a proposed Agreement between the Troy Beaumont Hospital and the 
City of Troy, and a second proposed Agreement between Alliance Mobile Health and the City of Troy.  
City Administration recommends approval of the proposed agreements, which would allow this 
successful practice to continue.                   
 
 As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.  
      

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



 

AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into on this _____ day of ______________, 

2008, by and between the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose 

address is 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 48084, and William Beaumont 

Hospital, a Michigan non-profit corporation, whose address is 44201 Dequindre Troy, 

Michigan 48085.  The parties have agreed to the following terms and conditions:  

 

1. The City of Troy desires to institute a procedure whereby an individual, qualified 

by education, training or experience to withdraw blood, shall withdraw blood 

from suspects in criminal cases under the supervision and delegation of a licensed 

physician, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in MCL 257.625a 

(6)(c), MCL 333.16215 and MCL 333.16109.  William Beaumont Hospital, Troy, 

has agreed to cooperate with the City in its implementation of this procedure.   

 

2. The blood withdrawals will take place in a “medical environment” at or near the 

City of Troy police department, and under the supervision and delegation of a 

licensed physician.  This includes, but is not limited to ambulances or other 

similar locations that are under the control of persons qualified to withdraw blood 

under the statutes of the State of Michigan.   

 

3. The delegation by the physician will occur via written protocols, attached as 

Exhibit A, and telephone or two-way radio communication between the physician 

and the individual qualified to withdraw blood. 

 

4. The delegating physician ordering the blood draw will be physically located at 

William Beaumont Hospital, Troy. 

 

5. William Beaumont Hospital agrees to allow its employed emergency medicine 

physicians who are physically located on its premises to facilitate the legally 

required supervision and delegation to the qualified individual withdrawing blood 

in a medical environment located at or near the City of Troy police department. 

 

6. The City of Troy agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless William 

Beaumont Hospital and its employees, physicians, agents, contractors, trustees 

and directors from any and all liability, and to pay reasonable attorney fees and 

costs incurred for the negligence, alleged negligence, malpractice or misconduct 

of any person engaged in the withdraw of blood, as requested by the Troy police 

department under the written protocol, which is attached and incorporated by 

reference.  The City of Troy also agrees to indemnify and defend William 

Beaumont Hospital and its employees, physicians, agents, contractors, trustees, 

and directors and hold them harmless and to pay reasonable attorney fees and 

costs resulting from any challenges to the implementation and/or drafting of the 



attached and incorporated protocol for withdrawal of blood off-premises and 

under the direction of a licensed physician of William Beaumont Hospital.   This 

provision shall not apply to claims or causes of action alleging or arising from the 

failure of William Beaumont Hospital and its employees, physicians, agents, 

contractors, trustees and directors to comply with the terms and conditions of the 

written protocol for the off-premises withdrawal of blood.   

 

7. The term of this Agreement is for five years from the date of execution and shall 

renew automatically for two (2) consecutive, additional five-year terms unless 

canceled by either party by written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 

of expiration of this Agreement. 

 

8. This Agreement may be terminated at any time and for any reason by either party 

upon ninety (90) day written notice. 

 

9. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the 

rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed, and supersedes all prior 

written or oral agreements or communications between the parties.  No 

supplement, modification, or amendment of any term, provision, or condition of 

this Agreement shall be binding or enforceable on either party hereto unless in 

writing signed by both parties. 

 

10. This Agreement shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Michigan. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties hereto have fully 

signed and executed this Agreement on the _____ day of  _________________, 2008. 

         

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

___________________________   BY: _________________________ 

___________________________   ITS:  ________________________ 

 

       WM. BEAUMONT HOSPITAL 

___________________________   BY:  _________________________ 

___________________________   ITS:  _________________________ 

 

 







 

AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into on this ______ day of ____________, 

2008 by and between the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose 

address is 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 48084, and Alliance Mobile Health 

& Oakland Healthcare Alliance, a Michigan non-profit corporation, whose address is 

2045 Austin Drive, Troy, Michigan 48083.  The parties have agreed to the following 

terms and conditions:  

 

1. The City of Troy desires to institute a procedure whereby an individual, qualified 

by education, training or experience to withdraw blood, shall withdraw blood 

from suspects in criminal cases under the supervision and delegation of a licensed 

physician, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in MCL 257.625a 

(6)(c), MCL 333.16215 and MCL 333.16109.  Alliance Mobile Health has agreed 

to cooperate with the City in its implementation of this procedure.   

 

2. The blood withdrawals will take place in a “medical environment” at or near the 

City of Troy police department, and under the supervision and delegation of a 

licensed physician.  This includes, but is not limited to ambulances or other 

similar locations that are under the control of persons qualified to withdraw blood 

under the statutes of the State of Michigan.   

 

3. The delegation by the physician will occur via written protocols, attached as 

Exhibit A, and telephone or two-way radio communication between the physician 

and the employee or agent of Alliance that is qualified to withdraw blood. 

 

4. The delegating physician ordering the blood draw will be physically located at 

William Beaumont Hospital, Troy. 

 

5. Alliance agrees to allow its employees that are qualified to withdraw blood under 

the statues of the State of Michigan to facilitate the legally required procedure of 

withdrawing blood in a medical environment located at or near the City of Troy 

police department.  Alliance agrees that its employees will also follow the 

Evidentiary Blood Draw Protocol, which was approved by the State on December 

10, 2007, and is attached as Exhibit B, in addition to the Troy Beaumont Hospital 

protocol (Exhibit A).  In the event that there is a conflict between the two 

protocols, Exhibit A shall control.         

 

6. The City of Troy agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Alliance and its 

employees, agents, contractors, trustees and directors from any and all liability 

incurred for the negligence, alleged negligence, malpractice or misconduct of any 

person engaged in the withdraw of blood, as requested by the Troy police 



department under the written protocols, which are attached and incorporated by 

reference, with the exception of claims or causes of action alleging or arising from 

the gross negligence of Alliance, and its employees, physicians, agents, 

contractors, trustees and directors, or the failure to comply with the terms and 

conditions of the written protocol for the off-premises withdrawal of blood.      

                             

7. The term of this Agreement is for five years from the date of execution and shall 

renew automatically for two (2) consecutive, additional five year terms unless 

canceled by either party by written notice at least ninety (90) days prior to the 

date of expiration of this Agreement. 

 

8. This Agreement may be terminated at any time and for any reason by either party 

upon ninety (90) day written notice. 

 

9. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the 

rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed, and supersedes all prior 

written or oral agreements or communications between the parties.  No 

supplement, modification, or amendment of any term, provision, or condition of 

this Agreement shall be binding or enforceable on either party hereto unless in 

writing signed by both parties. 

 

10. This Agreement shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Michigan. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties hereto have fully 

signed and executed this Agreement on the _____ day of ____________, 2008. 

         

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

___________________________   BY: _________________________ 

___________________________   ITS:  ________________________ 

 

       ALLIANCE MOBILE HEALTH 

___________________________   BY:  _________________________ 

___________________________   ITS:  _________________________ 

 

 









 

 
 
March 17, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for Republic/APT 1889 Larchwood 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Republic/APT, has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), and 

the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their move into 1889 
Larchwood, in Section 26. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on April 7, 2008 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\RepublicAPT\AnnouncePH03.17.08 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
MARK LINARI c/o 
REPUBLIC/APT 
1889 LARCHWOOD 
TROY MI 48083-2226 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, April 7, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Republic/APT, for the establishment of an Industrial 

Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-430-035  1889 Larchwood, Troy,  MI.  48083-2226 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, April 7, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Republic/APT for the granting of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning December 

31, 2008, for personal property located at: 

 

88-20-26-430-035, 1889 Larchwood Troy, MI.  48083-2226 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL        SEPTEMBER 5, 2007  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
September 5, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 
7:27 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Patrick Carolan, Secretary 
    Kathleen Melchert 
    ACO Karen Livingston 
    PSA Stephen Vaillancourt 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    V. James Viola 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Petrulis & Viola 
 
Resolution #AC2007-09-004  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Petrulis and Viola at the 
Animal Control Appeal Board meeting of September 5, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Petrulis & Viola 
 
 

 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #AC2007-09-005  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2007 meeting of the Animal 
Control Appeal Board be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL        SEPTEMBER 5, 2007  

 Page 2 of 3 

Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Petrulis & Viola 
 
 

 
Resolution to Elect Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2007-09-006 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Carolan 
 
RESOLVED, that Saeger will serve as Chairperson of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  3 
No:  0  
Absent: Petrulis & Viola 
 
 

 
 
Resolution to Elect Vice-Chairperson 
 
Resolution #AC2007-09-007 
Moved by Carolan 
Seconded by Melchert 
 
RESOLVED, that Petrulis will serve as Vice-Chairperson of the Animal Control 
Appeal Board for one year. 
 
Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Petrulis & Viola 
 
 

 
 
Resolution to Elect Secretary 
 
Resolution #AC2007-09-008 
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Saeger 
 
RESOLVED, that Carolan will serve as Secretary of the Animal Control Appeal 
Board for one year. 



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – FINAL        SEPTEMBER 5, 2007  

 Page 3 of 3 

 
Yes:  3 
No:  0 
Absent: Petrulis & Viola 
 
 

 
There was a brief discussion of the appeal that had been withdrawn (Alfred 
Sinojmeri, 2782 Saratoga). 
 
ACO Livingston and PSA Vaillancourt informed the Board of an application filed on 
September 5, 2007 to provide temporary shelter for baby tigers.  Livingston and 
Vaillancourt will investigate the circumstances of this application and render a 
decision. 
 
Chapter 90 of the City Code was briefly reviewed. 
 
The 2008 regular meetings are scheduled for Wednesday, March 5, 2008 and 
Wednesday, September 3, 2008.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 3, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.                                              
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member D. Chong, student 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member   
   P. Hammond, member P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  S. Werpetinski, member    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: Clark, K, member  EA 
   M. Freliga, member   UA 
   Mayer, K, alternate  EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion to approve the minutes of September 5, 2007; supported by 
Buchanan; all voted in favor.  
 
Werpetinski motioned to excuse the absences of Clark and Mayer; supported by 
Buchanan.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
A video and audio presentation was given by Micah Fialka-Feldman, an Oakland 
University student and nation-wide speaker and advocate for inclusive schooling.  Micah 
starred in a film called Through the Same Door.  This film documents the inclusive 
education for students with cognitive disabilities on college campuses.  This film can be 
purchased through www.danceofpartnership.com. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Done reported that Parks & Recreation is very sensitive to making the walkways and 
pathways project accessible and ADA compliant for persons with disabilities. 
 
Pietron reported that the Community Center took a survey and it showed there was no 
need for additional handicap parking.   Grusnick will contact Carla Vaughan requesting 
signs at entrances indicating senior parking only in the north parking lot from 8 a.m. till 2 
p.m.  Another scooter is now available at the east entrance.   
 
Werpetinski reported that the disability display case has been set up at the Library for 
the month of October which is National Disability Awareness month. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 2

Buchanan and Done used the three new assisted equipment devices  purchased by the 
Troy Library for persons with disabilities.  They will also visit the Community Center to 
use the voice activated system. 
 
Kathy Russ, Director of the Troy Library, has asked for this committee’s input on ideas 
for the Library expansion.  She will keep our committee informed of progress on the 
expansion. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
This committee welcomed our new student, Daniel Chong.  Daniel is a Junior at Troy 
High School. 
 
Werpetinski delivered a wheelchair to the Outdoor Education Center. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Troy Library will be holding an open house to showcase 
items for persons with special needs that were purchased by the Friends of the Troy  
Library. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the City of Dearborn will be hosting a free seminar in the 
Dome Room from 9:30 to 3:30 with guest speakers on the topic of ‘Let’s Make the 
World More Accessible For You’.  For information go to www.dearborn/disabilities.org. 
 
The Senior Center will be hosting a caregiver support group beginning 10/25/07 from 
10a.m. to 11a.m. every 4th Thursday of the month.  They will have speakers and 
opportunities for interaction between caregivers. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Anti-Bully Program is funded by the Intermediate School 
District and is available to any school upon request. 
 
The City of Troy Fire Department will host Open Houses from 1-4 p.m. October 7. 
 
Werpetinski prepared a commendation letter to Sandy Macknis for her work at Troy 
Daze, Mr. And Mrs. Sczomak for their service to Leader Dogs for the Blind, and Brian 
Murphy for his participation in the Triathalon for Leukemia and Lymphoma Society.  
Werpetinski motioned to approve; Geier seconded.  All in favor. 
 
Hammond composed a letter to Gina Hyun thanking her for her support and 
participation in this committee.   
 
Werpetinski delivered a donated wheelchair to be used at the Troy Musuem. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
The City of Troy has new features on their website at www.troymi.gov. 
    
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 3

 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Werpetinski, Pietron and Manetta will no longer be members of this committee. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:07 p.m.  Supported by Werpetinski.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 3, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.                                              
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member D. Chong, student 
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member   
   P. Hammond, member P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  S. Werpetinski, member    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: Clark, K, member  EA 
   M. Freliga, member   UA 
   Mayer, K, alternate  EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion to approve the minutes of September 5, 2007; supported by 
Buchanan; all voted in favor.  
 
Werpetinski motioned to excuse the absences of Clark and Mayer; supported by 
Buchanan.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
A video and audio presentation was given by Micah Fialka-Feldman, an Oakland 
University student and nation-wide speaker and advocate for inclusive schooling.  Micah 
starred in a film called Through the Same Door.  This film documents the inclusive 
education for students with cognitive disabilities on college campuses.  This film can be 
purchased through www.danceofpartnership.com. 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Done reported that Parks & Recreation is very sensitive to making the walkways and 
pathways project accessible and ADA compliant for persons with disabilities. 
 
Pietron reported that the Community Center took a survey and it showed there was no 
need for additional handicap parking.   Grusnick will contact Carla Vaughan requesting 
signs at entrances indicating senior parking only in the north parking lot from 8 a.m. till 2 
p.m.  Another scooter is now available at the east entrance.   
 
Werpetinski reported that the disability display case has been set up at the Library for 
the month of October which is National Disability Awareness month. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 2

Buchanan and Done used the three new assisted equipment devices  purchased by the 
Troy Library for persons with disabilities.  They will also visit the Community Center to 
use the voice activated system. 
 
Kathy Russ, Director of the Troy Library, has asked for this committee’s input on ideas 
for the Library expansion.  She will keep our committee informed of progress on the 
expansion. 
 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
This committee welcomed our new student, Daniel Chong.  Daniel is a Junior at Troy 
High School. 
 
Werpetinski delivered a wheelchair to the Outdoor Education Center. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Troy Library will be holding an open house to showcase 
items for persons with special needs that were purchased by the Friends of the Troy  
Library. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the City of Dearborn will be hosting a free seminar in the 
Dome Room from 9:30 to 3:30 with guest speakers on the topic of ‘Let’s Make the 
World More Accessible For You’.  For information go to www.dearborn/disabilities.org. 
 
The Senior Center will be hosting a caregiver support group beginning 10/25/07 from 
10a.m. to 11a.m. every 4th Thursday of the month.  They will have speakers and 
opportunities for interaction between caregivers. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Anti-Bully Program is funded by the Intermediate School 
District and is available to any school upon request. 
 
The City of Troy Fire Department will host Open Houses from 1-4 p.m. October 7. 
 
Werpetinski prepared a commendation letter to Sandy Macknis for her work at Troy 
Daze, Mr. And Mrs. Sczomak for their service to Leader Dogs for the Blind, and Brian 
Murphy for his participation in the Triathalon for Leukemia and Lymphoma Society.  
Werpetinski motioned to approve; Geier seconded.  All in favor. 
 
Hammond composed a letter to Gina Hyun thanking her for her support and 
participation in this committee.   
 
Werpetinski delivered a donated wheelchair to be used at the Troy Musuem. 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
The City of Troy has new features on their website at www.troymi.gov. 
    
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – OCTOBER 
3, 2007 

 3

 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Werpetinski, Pietron and Manetta will no longer be members of this committee. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 9:07 p.m.  Supported by Werpetinski.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JANUARY 2, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, January 2, 2008, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.                                              
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member M. Chaffee, member 
   D. Chong, student  K. Clark, member 
   P. Hammond, member B. Harrell, member 
   E. Kempen, member P. Lin, member 
   K. Mayer, alternate  L. Patton, member 
   J. Stewart, alternate    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: A. Done, member  EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 3, 2007 
Hammond made a motion to approve the minutes of October 3, 2007; supported by 
Buchanan; all voted in favor.  
 
Hammond motioned to excuse the absence of Done; supported by Clark.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The Senior Expo will be held March 18 at Troy Community Center from 10:00 to 2:00 
p.m.  The Committee is asking for volunteers to set up and staff a table. 
 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
New members were introduced at this meeting: 
Michael Chaffee is a Troy resident who wants to contribute to the disabled community. 
Barbara Harrell is a 13 year Troy resident that is an advocate for the hearing impaired. 
Edward Kempen is a Troy resident and was a candidate for City Council in the last 
election. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JANUARY 2, 2008 

 2

Paul Chu Lin is a registered architect and also a Troy resident. 
Larry Patton is a 5 year Troy resident, author, public speaker and Director of the Men’s      
Ministry at Faith Lutheran Church. 
Welcome packets were distributed to all new members of the Committee. 
 
Buchanan suggested that all members bring two goals that they would like to see the 
Committee move forward on to the next meeting. 
 
Stewart made a motion to put Member Comment on our agenda.  Discussion followed 
as to where to place on the agenda.  It was decided to place Public Comment as Item 
IV.  Harrell moved and Clark seconded.  All were in favor. 
 
Clark suggested that the Troy Citizens Academy was a very worthwhile program to take 
part in.  For information contact Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Chaffee suggested becoming involved with the Kaleidoscope event next year. 
It is normally held in January and would be beneficial for helping persons with 
disabilities find available resources.  This year’s event will be held on January 27, 2008 
from 12 to 4 p.m. 
 
Hammond reported that the Big Beaver Corridor Committee welcomes comments and 
suggestions regarding accessibility.  Please email them to Planning Commission. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Buchanan made a motion to adjourn at 8:45p.m.  Supported by Hammond .   All voted 
in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JANUARY 2, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, January 2, 2008, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.                                              
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member M. Chaffee, member 
   D. Chong, student  K. Clark, member 
   P. Hammond, member B. Harrell, member 
   E. Kempen, member P. Lin, member 
   K. Mayer, alternate  L. Patton, member 
   J. Stewart, alternate    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: A. Done, member  EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 3, 2007 
Hammond made a motion to approve the minutes of October 3, 2007; supported by 
Buchanan; all voted in favor.  
 
Hammond motioned to excuse the absence of Done; supported by Clark.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The Senior Expo will be held March 18 at Troy Community Center from 10:00 to 2:00 
p.m.  The Committee is asking for volunteers to set up and staff a table. 
 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
New members were introduced at this meeting: 
Michael Chaffee is a Troy resident who wants to contribute to the disabled community. 
Barbara Harrell is a 13 year Troy resident that is an advocate for the hearing impaired. 
Edward Kempen is a Troy resident and was a candidate for City Council in the last 
election. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JANUARY 2, 2008 

 2

Paul Chu Lin is a registered architect and also a Troy resident. 
Larry Patton is a 5 year Troy resident, author, public speaker and Director of the Men’s      
Ministry at Faith Lutheran Church. 
Welcome packets were distributed to all new members of the Committee. 
 
Buchanan suggested that all members bring two goals that they would like to see the 
Committee move forward on to the next meeting. 
 
Stewart made a motion to put Member Comment on our agenda.  Discussion followed 
as to where to place on the agenda.  It was decided to place Public Comment as Item 
IV.  Harrell moved and Clark seconded.  All were in favor. 
 
Clark suggested that the Troy Citizens Academy was a very worthwhile program to take 
part in.  For information contact Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Chaffee suggested becoming involved with the Kaleidoscope event next year. 
It is normally held in January and would be beneficial for helping persons with 
disabilities find available resources.  This year’s event will be held on January 27, 2008 
from 12 to 4 p.m. 
 
Hammond reported that the Big Beaver Corridor Committee welcomes comments and 
suggestions regarding accessibility.  Please email them to Planning Commission. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Buchanan made a motion to adjourn at 8:45p.m.  Supported by Hammond .   All voted 
in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL January 10, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, January 10, 2008, 
at the Office of the Library Director.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 
7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Kul B. Gauri 
        Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Arthi Krishna 
   Shruthi Subramanian 

           
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
 
Guests: Maria Hunciag, Julie Sigler, Friends of TPL 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-01-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of December 13, 2007 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-01-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS. 

A. Express Terminal Update—Russ told the board members that she was 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



 2 

investigating the possibility (per board request) of “express terminals” for the 
library. These express terminals would be used by patrons to check email and do 
brief searches, in a short period of time, i.e. a 15 minute limit. Russ said that 
there would be a cost involved to implement such a system, and she was looking 
into it. However, rather than spending the money to implement a system on 2 
terminals, she would implement it on all the library’s public computers. 
Discussion by the board members ensued.   

    
OLD BUSINESS. 

A. Library Needs Assessment/Feasibility Study—Russ has read and offered 
comments to Jim Mumby on the first draft of the Needs Assessment Study. It will 
be reviewed with the City Manager and Assistant City Manager next week. The 
study results will be presented to the City Council at a study session at their 
meeting on Monday, February 4, 2008.  

 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report—Russ reviewed the new organizational chart. Russ reported that 
TPL will be live on the MelCat system on Monday, January 21, 2008. Russ updated the 
members about the status of the State Librarian’s committee to review library 
cooperatives, and also the SLC’s plans to incorporate the shared automation system. 
Russ updated the members on the Museum Adventure Pass program—it is going very 
well. TPL circulated 150 passes in December, the highest number of any SLC library.  
 
Board Members’ Comments 
Wheeler asked about Troy residents’ priority for programs. When there are programs for 
which reservations are required, Troy residents have first priority. Non-residents are put 
on a waiting list, and if space permits, they are allowed to attend the program.  Gauri 
asked for a quarterly report of Friends’ funded library projects.  
 
Student Representatives’ Comments—Krishna mentioned that many students use 
the Troy Public Library. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative--Gregory 
Five applications have been received for the Systems Librarian position. State aid has 
been reduced to 32.47 cents per capita. The SLC Board Bylaws were updated to 
include the newly created Finance Committee. The next SLC Board meeting is 
Thursday, January 31.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
Maria Hunciag reported that the Friends Book Shop earned over $100,000 in 2007, a 
record-breaking achievement.  Maria also reported that Tammy Duszynski resigned as 
President from the Friends board. Jeanne Stine has been asked if she will consider the 
nomination for Friends’ Board President. The next Friends’ meeting is Monday, January 
14, 2008, at 9:30 a.m. The meetings will then occur on the first Monday of the month, 
due to a change in Russ’s schedule.   
 
Gifts. 
The library received 3 donations in December: 



 3 

  $100 CoraEllen DeVinney, New Baltimore 

 $500 Afshan Khadar, Rochester Hills 

 $200 James and Nora Kelly Thompson, Royal Oak 
 
Informational Items. 
December TPL Calendar. 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
8 written comments from the public were reviewed.  
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9 P.M. 
 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice Chairman 
 
 

Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, February 6, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 2, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREAT LAKES ELECTRIC SIGN COMPANY, 
1790 MAPLELAWN, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) additional wall signs on 
an existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect three 
(3) additional wall signs.  The petitioners are planning to keep an existing 24 square foot 
wall sign.  The plans submitted indicate the three new wall signs will measure 90.25 
square feet, 32.5 square feet and 31.875 square feet in area.  Section 85.02.05 (C) (5) 
allows a maximum of three wall signs.  One wall sign can measure up to 100 square 
feet in area, and the other two can measure up to 20 square feet each in area. 
 
Additionally, Section 85.01.05 (C) does not allow a wall sign to project more than 12” 
out from the building wall or above the roof or parapet line.  One of the signs (the 
largest) will project 4’-6” out from the building and extend 3’-1” above the parapet line. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 2, 2008 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner to present the Board with more detailed 
information regarding this request; and, also to allow representatives from both the 
dealership and the Sign Company that is constructing the sign, to appear before the 
Board. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Tom Novak of Great Lakes Electric Sign Company, David Fischer, Jr. and Mr. 
Robert Salenik of Saturn Corporation and Mr.Richard Burke of L & A Architects were 
present. 
 
Mr. Fischer stated that these signs are a new, updated look for GM and they want to 
keep their advertising on the cutting edge.  The signs will also increase customer 
convenience.  Customers were having a difficult time finding the entranceway to this 
dealership and the new sign will be a focal point for this entranceway. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had looked into any other sign packages that would be in 
compliance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  All of the buildings in this area are 
attractive and easily recognizable by the existing signage.  Mr. Kessler did not see a 
hardship that would justify this variance request. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that they were expecting someone from Cummins Sign Company to 
be present in order to address the concerns of the Board.  Mr. Novak stated that he did 
not believe there was a hardship.  Mr. Novak stated that he had been a tool designer 
and did all of his work in Troy.  The Troy Motor Mall has become a showcase for the 
automotive industry.  Mr. Novak said that he believed other signs in the area required 
variances and the signs that they are proposing would add to the beauty of the area. 
 
Mr. Fischer asked if changing the roof line of the building was considered a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler gave examples of a hardship the Board would consider, such as the 
location of the building, type of landscaping or something else that would run with the 
land.  Each building is different and he does not believe there is anything unique about 
this building that would justify a variance. 
 
Mr. Richard Burke of L & A Architects stated that the “sky box” sign is an architectural 
feature to the building.  Saturn Corporation has made their product more upscale.  
Customers coming to this location could not find the front door and this “sky box” sign 
will enable them easier access and will be in conformance with other dealers across the 
country.  Saturn has tried to keep costs down and that is the reason they are using this 
design across the country. 
 
Mr. Fischer stated that the cost of the signs and the problem for customer finding the 
entrance to the building could be considered hardships. 
 
Mr. Kessler informed Mr. Fischer that a hardship cannot be monetary.   
 
Mr. Robert Salenik the architect for Saturn stated that the building was designed in 1990 
and signage usually averages 7 to 10 years.  The hardship is that this facility is out 
dated and these signs would be in line with what is happening across the country.  As 
the buildings age, cosmetic improvements are required. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if these were replacement signs. 
 
Mr. Novak stated they were just new signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the “sky box” is a new sign and part of the problem is that the 
drawings indicate that the sign will extend out 4 ½’ from the building, and will extend 3’-
1” above the roof line of the building.  This sign would be 90.25 square feet.  The sign, 
“Saturn of Troy” is a new sign; and the “Service Center” sign is a replacement sign.   
 
Mr. Fischer suggested that they could leave off the wording “A member of the Suburban 
Collection” from the Saturn of Troy Sign and also eliminate the word “Center” from the 
Service sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Saturn of Troy sign is 32 square feet.  Mr. Stimac asked if 
that sign could be reduced to 20 square feet.  If this was possible and the service sign 
taken down the only variance required would be the projection of the “sky box” sign from 
the building. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that he believed they could make this sign 20 square feet.  Mr. Burke 
then asked if this sign could be 15 square feet and one of the other signs 25 square feet 
to equal the 20 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that 20 square feet would be the maximum allowable square 
footage per sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner would have two signs that were each 20 square 
feet.  The projection of the “sky box” is 3 -1” above the parapet line, and 4’-6” from the 
building. 
 
Mr. Novak asked what the purpose of not having a sign project too far from a building 
was. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this rule applies to what are permitted as wall signs and has to do 
with how far the setbacks are for the building. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that there is a canopy that extends much farther than the sign would. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked about the Horizon logo proposed on the sign. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that the Horizon logo is part of the over all look of the sign design. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if that was part of the calculation used in figuring the size of the sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the entire gray box was used. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he was concerned about the part of the sign that extends out from 
the roof line. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the sign box extends 4 ½’ out from the building. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that the reason they want the line to project from the building is 
because it would not be visible to someone that is between 5’ and 5’-1” tall from the 
ground. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if the sign were mounted on the awning it would become part of 
the building as an architectural feature. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they could raise the arch to the top of the sign and that would 
eliminate the height of the sign. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if they made the sign out of the material used for the building it 
would become part of the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested that they could re-design the wall to make it extend further out. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the reason was that the sign is not allowed to extend above the 
wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the intent of the Ordinance was to limit wall signs to be located on 
the walls of the building.  They would still have to comply with wind load requirements. 
 
Mr. Salenik stated that the Horizon with the logo is one of three or four changes that are 
being made to the building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Great Lakes Electric Sign Company, 1790 
Maplelawn, to install a primary wall sign 3’-1” above the parapet line of the roof and 4’-
6” out from the building wall, and to deny the request for additional square footage for 
the other wall signs. 
 

• Other signs can be reduced to 20 square feet in order to comply with the 
Ordinance. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APRROVE PRIMARY SIGN AND TO DENY ADDITIONAL SQUARE 
FOOTAGE FOR ADDITIONAL SIGNS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – KEVIN DETERS, METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 2915 COOLIDGE, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect four (4) wall signs, totaling 302.3 square feet, where a maximum of 
200 square feet is allowed by Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3). 
 
In addition, the petitioner is proposing that one of the wall signs will project 2’-3 ½” from 
the wall and a second sign projecting 19’ from the wall.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) does not 
allow wall signs to project more than 12” from the wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is proposing to erect four (4) wall signs.  The 
site plan submitted proposes four (4) wall signs with an aggregate total of 302.3 square 
feet.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall sign for each building not to exceed 10% 
of the area of the front of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area. 
 
Additionally, the petitioner is proposing one of the wall signs to project 2’-3 ½” from the 
wall, and another sign projecting 19’ from the wall.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) does not allow 
wall signs to project more than 12” from the wall. 
 
Mr. Paul Deters of Metro Detroit Signs, and Mr. David Miller and Mr. Don Waller of 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants were present. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that this is the first restaurant of this type in the country and is 
considered a prototype.  This is a new brand, with no previous recognition and they 
want clients to be able to locate this restaurant.  Existing landscaping does create some 
challenges for this building.  This is a free-standing building with three (3) visible sides.  
Mr. Miller also stated that they are not able to make use of the monument sign. 
 
Mr. Deters explained that the signs projecting 2’-3 ½” from the wall are actually on 
ledges, which is part of the architectural feature.  The owners wish to accent these signs 
with lighting behind the letters on the facades and if these signs were required to be 
flush with the wall, they would not be able to put these lights in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that the petitioner is proposing to put one sign on Big Beaver and 
one on Coolidge and asked where the other two signs were going to be. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the largest sign is along the curvature of the building.  It will be 
internally illuminated and will be very sophisticated.  One sign will be placed on the west 
side of the building and the other on the south side.  The sign on the west side of the 
building will be to show where to come into the parking lot from Big Beaver.  The sign  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
on the south side of the building will show the entrance approaching from the south on 
Coolidge.  The front canopy is an architectural feature and is to look at the brand. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if a variance would still be required if the sign on the south side of 
the building were reduced to 20 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that because of the zoning on this building they are limited to one wall 
sign.  A variance is required for the number of signs they wish to erect and for the 
projection of the signs from the building. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how the sign on the curved face of the building is calculated. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it cannot be more than 10% of the face of the building, and the 
formula is width along the curve by the height of the letters. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the difference was between the sign that is 54 square feet 
and the sign that is 78 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the height of the letters for the sign on the south side of the building 
is 2’-6” in height, and the letters for the sign on the west side of the building is 3’-9”. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the signs could both be 54 square feet. 
 
Mr. Miller said that they could. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the hardship was to allow four (4) signs in lieu of one (1) sign. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he feels the location of the building creates a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they would not utilize the monument sign. 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the landlord wants his building to be on the primary ground sign 
and they do not believe they would get the visibility they want. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how many seats would be in this restaurant. 
 
Mr. Waller said that with the patio there are approximately 370 seats. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he does not think the signage is critical for this type of 
restaurant.  This building is a corner location and will be very visible.  There is a lot of 
new building that is being proposed for Troy and Mr. Kessler does not wish to set a 
precedent by allowing this many signs on a building.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he did 
not see a hardship that would allow a variance for this many signs and in his opinion 
this building has the best exposure and would have a good draw. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

7 
 

 
ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Miller disagreed with Mr. Kessler and stated that in his opinion signage is critical to 
the success of a restaurant.  He gave an example of a restaurant that they have in 
Livonia.  Their restaurant has a good deal of signage and is located next to a restaurant 
that does not have as many signs.  Their restaurant has been very successful, while the 
other restaurant is not doing as well.  In this marketplace they are very concerned that it 
is necessary that the building and signage both stand out.  This is the largest project 
their company has undertaken and they are trying to insure the success of this 
restaurant. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Rob Peters, Architectural Coordinator of Somerset Mall was present.  Mr. Peters 
objected to this request as he stated that they have opened six restaurants in this area 
and all of the signage for these restaurants complies with the Ordinance.  Mr. Peters 
believe that granting this variance will set a precedent and the restaurants that have 
complied with the requirements of the Ordinance would be at a disadvantage. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that these restaurants were covered under a different zoning district 
and therefore would have different requirements. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that part of this area is covered by a Consent Judgment and the south 
side of Big Beaver is zoned B-2 and does have different provisions.  A free standing 
restaurant would be permitted to have any number of signs up to 10% of the front area 
of the building.  If this site was in a B-zoned district they would be allowed to have four 
(4) signs but they could not be more than 200 square feet and they could not project 
from the wall. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the purpose of the sign was that indicates “fish, steaks, 
cocktails”.  
 
Mr. Miller stated that was the “branding” sign which lets people know what is available 
at the restaurant.  It denotes the offerings of the restaurant. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for clarification on the projection on the building. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the signs will be on the ledges, which are architectural features of 
the building. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated the east elevation has an over-hang that circles around the front of 
the building and a sign on this overhang can’t be more than 12” from the wall.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the signs would present an obstacle to other restaurants in the area. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he did not believe they would offer an obstruction and also stated 
that McCormick and Schick have two (2) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the projection of the sign would be an obstacle to McCormick & 
Schmick. 
 
Mr. Waller stated that their building is behind the tree line and he did not see how this 
would affect McCormick and Schmick at all. 
 
Mr. Peters stated that the signs on the existing restaurants do not advertise the “brand”. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that many people have come before this Board for relief of the 
Ordinance to put signs on all sides of a building.  The Board has to determine what the 
hardship is to allow a variance.  This corner is not unique.  There are a lot of elements 
which will make to a very successful business, not just signage.  Landscaping and 
lighting can achieve what the petitioner is looking for.  There is no hardship with this site 
that will allow more than what the Ordinance allows. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the words “fish, steak, cocktails” were incorporated into the main 
sign, if the sign would then comply. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the maximum size for this sign is 200 square feet. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if they could add 42 square feet of additional signage. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the main sign was 200 square feet or less and less than 12” 
from the building wall, it would be allowed.   
 
Mr. Deters stated that because of the location of the building and the drives entering 
into this site, anyone driving north bound on Coolidge or east bound on Big Beaver 
would pass the site before they were able to turn in.  It will become a challenge for them 
to turn around and go back to the location. 
 
Mr. Peters stated that in his opinion this was a self-created hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had explored the possibility of mounting “Ocean Club” on the 
wall of the building. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that they wished to add lighting behind the sign and this is why they 
wished to attached it to the canopy. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he understands that they wish to illuminate the sign.  Mr. Kessler 
also stated that he does not believe it would be a hardship for people to turn around and  
go back to this location as there are boulevards along Big Beaver which facilitate these 
turns.  Mr. Kessler said that there is a lot of exposure to people making the turns on the 
corner. 
 
Mr. Miller asked if they could have the number of signs they are requesting if they were 
reduced to meet the 200 square foot requirement.  The signs on the west and south 
sides of the building will allow people to find the entrances to this building.  If they 
reduce the height of the letters they would be able to comply with the 200 square foot 
requirement. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he was concerned about the number of signs and would like the 
petitioner to look at other options to reduce the number of signs. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked the petitioner if the signs could be put up within 12” of the wall and 
still be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that they need the space behind the signs in order to clean the 
building. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this is strictly a design element in putting lighting behind the 
letters. 
 
Mr. Miller proposed the following to the Board:  the letters in the sign on the south side 
of the building would go from 30” high to 24” high; the letters in the sign on the west side 
of the building could go down to 2’; the large sign on the curvature of the building would 
go from a letter height of 44” to 36” and would be shortened in length. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he thinks four (4) signs are too many and asked if one sign could 
be eliminated. 
 
Mr. Deters stated that no matter where you are standing by this building, you will only 
be able to see one sign at any given time.  You will never see more than one sign.  This 
is due to the unique configuration of the building. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if the petitioner was planning to reduce the sign that reads “fish, 
steak, cocktails’? 
 
Mr. Miller stated that if the Board wished them to eliminate a sign this would be the sign 
that they would eliminate.   



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they could incorporate this sign into the larger sign. 
 
Mr. Miller said that if that sign was on a straight wall they could do that, but not on the 
curvature of the building. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had any similar signage at other locations.  Mr. Miller said that 
they have a similar sign in Columbus, OH and gave the Board pictures of this sign. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Kevin Deters, Metro Detroit Signs, 2915 Coolidge, relief of Chapter 85 
to erect three (3) wall signs, totaling 200 square feet in area and to allow one of those 
signs to project 2’-3 1/2” in front of the wall. 
 

• Hardship is that this building has three-sided exposure. 
• Sign that reads “fish, steak, cocktails” will be eliminated. 
• Total signage will meet the 200 square foot requirement. 
• Signs will not project beyond the ledge of the building. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4    - INTERPRETATION REQUESTED.  BRIAN J. TOGNETTI, 
REPRESENTING TRAVELER’S INSURANCE, 100 E. BIG BEAVER & 888 W. BIG 
BEAVER, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to repair damaged roofing on 
these buildings, rather than replace both roofs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the roofs of the two above referenced buildings were 
damaged by a wind storm in 2007.  The extent of the damage and the background 
conditions of the roofs is outlined in the report prepared by Christopher Campbell of the 
consulting firm NTH and dated October 25, 2007.  Based upon the extent of damage to 
the roof he, in a letter dated December 21, 2007, determined that the provisions of the 
Michigan Building Code required that the roof systems be removed down to the roof 
decking as part of the scope of work of this project.  The petitioner, representing the 
insurance carrier for these buildings, is asking for an interpretation that the scope of 
work on these buildings is a roof repair and therefore not subject to the requirements to 
remove the existing roofing systems.  The petitioner is citing Section 3403.3 of the 
Michigan Building Code as the basis for his appeal.  The Board has been provided with 
copies of the pertinent sections of the codes and a copy of the report from NTH 
Consultants dated October 25, 2007 that was referenced in the letter of December 21, 
2007. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he had worked for NTH Consultants in the past and knew Mr. 
Campbell and did not believe he would vote on this request. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for a history on this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the building owner has contacted him as to what was required 
for a roof repair of these buildings.  The Building Department has not inspected these 
roofs at this time and we do not typically issue permits for new roofs.  A decision was 
formed based on the information provided in the reports based on the requirements of 
the Building Code.  The Insurance Carrier for the building asked that a determination be 
undertaken as to whether these roofs could be repaired or if they needed to be 
replaced. 
 
Mr. James Jonas, of Redico Management Company and Mr. Chris Campbell of NTH 
Consultants, and Mr. Brian Tognetti, Project Manager of WJE were present.  Mr. 
Tognetti was representing the Travelers Insurance Company. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that he was hired as a consultant to look at this issue.  Mr. 
Campbell stated that he supports Mr. Stimac decision and agrees that these roofs need 
to be replaced.  Based on their observations of the damage on both roofs it is clear that 
the Building Code warranted removal of two (2) roofs.  There are two (2) layers of roof 
and the minimum requirement is that these layers be removed and a new roof put on 
the buildings.  The existing two (2) roofs are clearly covered in the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code.  If the roof is damaged by more than 50% you are required to remove 
the two layers and put on a new roof.  The roof deck that is in place may well have been 
compromised when the first roof failed and also when the second roof failed.  Mr. 
Campbell stated that the lowest building is approximately 175’ in height and the taller 
building is approximately 180’ in height.  At these heights, the wind is much stronger 
and this is what caused the damage to these buildings. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if they could observe the decking from the underside and Mr. 
Campbell indicated that they could but it has a spray applied fire proofing on it. 
 
Mr. Jonas said that these roofs are getting a much higher wind load than what is on the 
ground.  The wind is very strong on the top of the roofs.  These roofs were installed 
within a month of each other and they both were damaged at the same time.  Mr. Jonas 
stated that he was concerned because the roof was glued down to the underlayment.  
The wind separated the roof from the board underneath.  The existing deck is over 
twenty years old and they have found leaks in the interior offices. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that due to the magnitude of the damage observed, it is his opinion 
that this roof system has failed and the roofs need to be removed and replaced. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there is no dispute that the roofs were damaged and some form 
of action needs to be taken to bring these buildings up to the Building Code.  The issue 
before this Board is the scope of work that is required to bring these roofs into 
compliance:  A. taking the existing roof layers off and replacing with a new roof, or, B. 
taking part of the roof off and repairing the damaged areas. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the Michigan Building Code would allow the owner to 
repair just the portion of the roof that is damaged, however, according to his 
interpretation of the Code he believes that you have to take the roofs down to the deck 
to fix the roofs.   
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that Chapter 34 of the Michigan Building Code states that the 
damaged portion could be removed and reconstructed to fix the roof.  When damage 
occurs, a building owner has the option to fix the roof.  Mr. Tognetti does not believe this 
is a re-roofing project.  Mr. Tognetti contacted a representative of the ICC and has 
gotten a letter indicating that they agree with his assessment that replacement of the 
roof is not required.  Part of the roof is water soaked and they would remove the 
damaged portion of the second roof and replace these damaged portions.  The building 
owner wants new roofs and there is no language regarding the cost of damaged roofs.  
The cost to repair these roofs is approximately $50,000.00, and replacement would be 
approximately $300,000.00.  Mr. Tognetti stated that the minimum requirement is that 
roof repairs be performed. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the life of a roof repair would be. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said he thought it was approximately 10 years. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this was an economical question. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that was correct and he would not want this to be precedent setting.  
Mr. Tognetti believes this interpretation of the Code is enlarged. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that Lutz Roofing Company gave the owners a proposal but that 
the owner did not feel the solution was adequate.  This is a structural situation and the 
roof system should have an average roof life of 18 – 20 years.  He noted that the letter 
from ICC would defer to the decision of the Building Official. 
 
Mr. Jonas stated that the original roof was installed under the Building Code and in his 
opinion the solution is to create a mechanically attached roof. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the letter from ICC indicates that there is a need to verify that the 
roof system assembly is 100% compliant when the job is completed.  The language of 
the Code states that you have to make sure when covering the roof that there is not a 
deficiency.  If you remove one of the layers the question remains as to how the decking  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
will be affected.  The second layer of material that is damaged could cause damage to 
the first layer of material.  The intent of the code is overall conformance of the roof.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he does not believe you can achieve the same installation when you 
already have two layers.  Mr. Kessler stated that it is his opinion that the entire roof 
needs to be removed and replaced. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that the roofing manufacturer will allow a single ply membrane to go 
over the first layer.  Mr. Tognetti stated that they are not proposing anything that is non-
conforming. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he believes the interpretation from ICC agrees with Mr. Stimac’s 
interpretation that the roof needs to be replaced.   
 
Mr. Stimac addressed question #3 in the letter from ICC and states that he believes it 
does agree with his interpretation as Article 34 does not have definitions for repair of the 
roof.  Article 1502.01 defines “roof repair” as the “reconstruction or renewal of any part 
of an existing roof for the purpose of its maintenance”.  The work that is proposed is not 
a repair but a roof replacement.  When you have two layers of roofing you have to take 
them off and go down to the deck, and when you have gone through two layers it is time 
to look at the deck to make sure it is code compliant.  A third roofing system requires 
that you remove the two layers and go down to the deck. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that while repairing the second roof system you will be able to see any 
damaged portions beneath.  This is a repair.  Mr. Tognetti also said that he does not 
see how this Board would not allow a roof repair to continue.  This repair would not be 
contrary to what is allowed.  The integrity of the roof needs to be known.  As of their 
inspection they do not have any indication that the structural integrity has been 
compromised. 
 
Mr. Tognetti went on to say that they can remove and replace the damaged material but 
could not put up a third roof covering.  He does not think this is a technical issue, thinks 
that it is a fundamentally economic decision.  Mr. Tognetti stated that he would like this 
roof repair to be allowed. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this issue is being looked at as a Code requirement decision that 
the Board would render regardless of who would ask the question.  There are a lot of 
issues brought before this Board that the Board says “no” to.  The Board is not trying to 
help someone getting something that they are asking for and is not trying to help a Troy 
business owner with their insurance company. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this is a Code question and the answer from ICC would be the 
same no matter who was asking the questions. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that the building owner should have his choice of whether he wants 
to repair or replace the roof.  Mr. Dziurman said that he feels a roof replacement would 
be much better. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that repair is defined as using the same material on the roof to return 
it to its original condition.  A reconstruction also uses the same materials to bring it 
back.  Replacement is when you are removing the damaged portions of the roof,  
throwing the materials away, and bringing new materials in to fix the roof that would give 
you a weather tight roof.  Furthermore, the Code states that if you can take that material 
and use it to fix the damage; you are permitted to do it.  If you are going to replace the 
material, the Building Code can state what kind of materials are allowed.  When you 
have two existing layers on a building you have to remove these layers to put new 
roofing materials down. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that you have to remove two layers to put new materials down, but 
the re-hab Code has repair defined in full.  A roof repair can include removing and 
replacement of material on a roof.  You can’t use damaged materials to repair a roof. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how Mr. Tognetti would define a replacement. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that would be done when the roof was not damaged.  The roof 
would be considered old and they would put down new materials.  He believes this 
could be considered either a replacement or repair. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the local codes override the ICC. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the local jurisdictions enforce the Michigan Building Code and 
Michigan can modify the ICC code provisions but the language in the Michigan Code is 
identical to the ICC Code. 
 
Mr. Jonas stated that if it was not for the Re-hab Code they would not have been able to 
do anything with a lot of the buildings in Troy. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Re-hab Code was written to deal with existing buildings and 
how to bring them up to Code compliance with minimum regulations of health, safety 
and welfare different than that for a new building.  It is the option of the owner on which 
code to use.  If there is damage more than 50%, it would not be a good idea to use the 
Re-hab Code.  If something is damaged more than 50%, it is Mr. Stimac’s opinion that 
you have to take everything off.  All of the roofing would need to be removed down to 
the deck and take a good look at conditions of the deck connections and repair 
whatever was required. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if roofing material had any type of rating on it. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is a requirement for the Class of the roofing material, but he 
had not looked into it. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they often use the Re-hab Code and they are proposing to look 
at the structural integrity of the building.  If portions of the roof system were found to be 
compromised, structural repairs would be made and would be brought up to Code. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how they planned to fix this roof if they did not go down to the roof 
deck. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they would provide a set of drawings indicating the scope of 
work.  They would do test cuts on all areas.  City Center building has an upper and 
lower roof.  Mr. Tognetti also stated that they had used an infra-red analysis of the roof 
and it was determined that only 40% was compromised by moisture. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he had some concerns about the deck since 40 or 50 cuts 
would be made. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they can statistically analyze how many cuts would be 
necessary to get a 95% degree of certainty of the conditions. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was concern about the metal decking. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that the Board is here for an interpretation of a decision that was made.  
Going back to Section 1510.3, this discussion is about recovering or replacement of the 
roof.  There is a large amount of wet areas, and multiple layers could have water 
damage. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they are not adding a new roof covering, but are doing a roof 
repair.  The owner has the right to choose what he wants to do. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that it is very clear that the intent of 1510.3 applies to this situation. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that it is not one versus the other but this project can be done using 
this language or by using the language out of Section 34.  These roofs can be repaired 
without violating the Code. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that when you look at Section 34 it is not inclusive of every 
requirement, but gives you a look at the scope section of the Code. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that when these materials are replaced they will comply with Section 
34. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

16 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the roof replacement provisions of Section 1510.3 would apply 
and both layers must be removed before a new roof covering could be installed. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if it would be different if only one roof layer existed. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the definition of a roof replacement is to remove the existing roof 
covering and put on a new roof covering.  The extent of the damage to these roofs is 
much more than what would be considered a repair under regular maintenance. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what would constitute the repair of a roof membrane. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated if you dropped a screwdriver through a membrane and were able to 
use a small patch to repair the damage, this would be considered a repair. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to uphold the interpretation of Mr. Stimac regarding Brian J. Tognetti, 
representing Traveler’s Insurance, 100 E. Big Beaver and 888 W. Big Beaver, request 
to repair rather than replace two (2) damaged roofs. 
 

• Scope of work involved is a roof replacement vs. a repair. 
• Article 34 requires compliance with the provisions listed in Section 1510.3. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Nelson, Richnak, Zuazo 
Abstain: 1 - Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO AGREE WITH MR. STIMAC’S INTERPRETATION CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 11:32 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
    
    
   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            FEBRUARY 11, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
February 11, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Timothy P. Payne 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2008-02-004  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Payne at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of February 11, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of January 14, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-02-005 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Allemon 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            FEBRUARY 11, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the January 14, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C 

licensed business located at 2360 Rochester Ct , Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County from Paragon of Michigan, Inc. (a Wisconsin Corporation); and 
requests a new Official Permit (Food). [MLCC REF# 435416] 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorneys Kelly Allen and 
Lisa Hamameh, sole proprietor Puja Gupta, and general manager Cynthia Pryor. 
 
A presentation was made to the Committee explaining that Ms. Gupta is the sole 
proprietor of “The Host Steakhouse & Grille” which will occupy the building 
currently doing business as “Mountain Jack’s Steakhouse” on Rochester Court.  
She is currently in the process of negotiating a lease agreement with Paragon of 
Michigan.  Minor renovations will be made to the restaurant which houses 266 
seats.  It will feature American and Indian cuisine in a combination fine dining and 
sports bar environment.  Many of the current Mountain Jack’s employees will be 
hired by Ms. Gupta and all will have the required TIPS or TAMS training. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-02-006 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Allemon 
 
RESOLVED, that Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2007 Class C licensed business located at 2360 Rochester Ct , Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County from Paragon of Michigan, Inc. (a Wisconsin Corporation); and be 
granted a new Official Permit (Food). 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 

 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            FEBRUARY 11, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3 

The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 12, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Kathleen Troshynski 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-018 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Troshynski is excused from attendance at this meeting 
for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Wright 
Absent:  Troshynski, Vleck (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-019 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda with resolutions as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-020 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 5, 2008 Special/Study 
meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck, Wright 
Abstain: Littman 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 352-B) – Proposed Outdoor 
Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles, South Side of Maple, East of 
Axtell Road (2477 W. Maple), Section 32, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted. 
 
The petitioner, Tom Kemp of Kemp Building, 275 W. Girard, Madison Heights, was 
present.  Mr. Kemp explained the proposed 8-foot screen wall would provide 
additional security for the recreational vehicles.  
 
There was a short discussion on the screen wall and chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Kemp addressed the pattern of the screen wall and the surrounding industrial 
areas.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Tagle questioned City procedure as relates to the encroachment by the 
petitioner on the adjacent property for the installation of the retaining wall.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Miller replied he would research the matter. 
 
Mr. Forsythe stated the Planning Commission is not granting the applicant 
permission to enter adjacent property to conduct any construction but merely acting 
upon the special use request and site plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-021 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.02(D) of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Outdoor Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles, located on 
the south side of Maple Road, east of Axtell Road, in Section 32, on approximately 
4.99 acres, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 945) – Proposed Huntington Bank Branch, Southwest 
Corner of Big Beaver and Troy Center Drive, Section 28, O-S-C (Office-Service- 
Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan and parking space reduction as submitted.  Mr. Miller briefly addressed the 
proposed parking reduction.   
 
Dale Ehresman of Ehresman Associates, Inc., 803 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  He apologized that Chris Schneider of 
Huntington Bank could not make the meeting.  Mr. Ehresman addressed the drive-
up windows and parking space reduction.  He indicated the proposed number of 
parking spaces would comfortably serve bank customers.   
 
Mr. Littman asked the petitioner to address the existing canopy and the traffic 
pattern from the south side of the building to the north. 
 
Mr. Ehresman addressed the potential use of the canopy by an existing tenant, the 
traffic pattern and the bank prototype.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

There was a brief discussion on the relationship of the proposed site plan to the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Mr. Tagle suggested a tree-lined entrance off of Big Beaver.  He encouraged 
enhancement of the landscaping and display of public art, possibly a bench, at the 
intersection.   
 
Mr. Ehresman said he would address the suggestions with the bank. 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-022 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to two hundred eighty three (283) when a total 
of three hundred sixteen (316) spaces are required on the site based on the off-
street parking space requirements for office buildings, banks and other financial 
institutions as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Huntington Bank Branch, located on the 
southwest corner of Big Beaver and Troy Center Drive, Section 28, on 
approximately 4.86 acres, within the O-S-C zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 946) – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, Northwest Corner of 
Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, B-2 (Community Business) and H-S 
(Highway Service) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan.  He addressed the proposed parking space reduction and memoranda 
relating to the proposed reduction.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the provision of a 
vehicular cross access easement to the north and east and the parking reduction.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Strat noted the architectural portions of the site plans are not sealed by a 
registered architect, as required by the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-023 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the next Regular meeting.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Tagle said he had some questions on the submittal.  He indicated it might be 
helpful to approach the petitioner at this time so items could be addressed or 
resolved at the time of site plan approval.  
 
There was discussion on the protocol of whether discussion should occur before 
or after a vote on the motion on the floor to postpone.  
 
Mr. Forsythe said his understanding of Robert’s Rules of Order is that there is no 
discussion by the applicant on a postponed item.  He stated however that in the 
interest of fairness and due process, he sees no problem in inviting the applicant 
to comment.  Mr. Forsyth indicated it is a decision of the Chair whether discussion 
can take place before or after the vote on the motion to postpone the matter.  
 
Mr. Strat suggested that discussion take place after the vote.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Strat, Tagle, Vleck, Wright 
No: Schultz 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz said he thinks it is procedurally wrong to hold a discussion on a 
postponed matter. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he would prefer to have sealed architectural drawings before him 
for discussion purposes, and he believes the Board has the option whether or not to 
hold a discussion. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would like the petitioner to address the provision of a cross 
access easement.   
 
Chair Schultz resolved that discussion on the matter would not take place at this 
meeting.  He indicated the Planning Commission would entertain a request from the 
petitioner to be placed on the March 4, 2008 Special/Study meeting for discussion 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

and review, but action on the matter would take place at the March 11, 2008 
Regular meeting. 
 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-I) – Proposed Roof Top Module Units, William 
Beaumont Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Boulevard (44201 
Dequindre), Section 1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental 
Protection) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted. 
 
Chair Schultz asked if it was within the Planning Commission’s purview to set a date 
on the removal of the temporary structures. 
 
Mr. Miller said that upon site plan approval, the structures are there and no longer 
“temporary”.  He said the Planning Commission does not have discretion in the 
matter, but the petitioner could volunteer and offer a condition to site plan approval 
that effectuates removal of the temporary structures.  Mr. Miller recommended tying 
the condition into the completion of the West Bed Tower. 
 
Mr. Forsyth concurred the Planning Commission does not have the discretion to 
condition the removal of the temporary structures with site plan approval.  Mr. 
Forsyth said the petitioner could volunteer the condition as part of the site plan 
presentation and it would be valid.   
 
There was discussion on the aesthetics of the proposed temporary structures.   
 
Eric Gray of Beaumont Services Company, 44201 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  
Mr. Gray addressed the temporary structures as relates to aesthetics, maintenance, 
emergency ingress/egress, staircase location, and walkway.  He provided a 
description of the exterior skin that would be detailed to match the Beaumont 
Hospital facility.  Mr. Gray said the target completion date for the seventh floor of 
the West Bed Tower is March 2013, and it is their intent to remove the temporary 
structures upon occupation of the sixth and seventh floors of the West Bed Tower.  
Mr. Gray indicated two representatives from Beaumont Hospital are also present to 
answer questions.  
 
Mr. Miller noted that on the general site plan submitted, sheet GS1.101, note #5 
reads:  “Temporary roof top module units will be removed at the completion of West 
Bed Tower Vertical Expansion, approximately no later than 3/31/2013.”   
 
Mr. Miller said this condition, as noted on the site plan, is viable because it is not 
discretionary and is being offered by the petitioner.  He recommended that the site 
plan notation be included in the Resolution for site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Mr. Forsyth indicated the site plan would be enforceable in court because the 
condition is being offered by the petitioner.  He said it is evident by the notation on 
the site plan that the Board is not imposing the condition on the petitioner.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the design of the proposed units and its durability in 
Michigan climate.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-024 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Roof Top Module Units on the Emergency Center 
at William Beaumont Hospital, located on the west side of Dequindre and south of 
South Boulevard, Section 1, on approximately 67.695 acres, within the C-F and E-P 
zoning districts, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The temporary roof top module units will be removed at the completion of 

the West Bed Tower Vertical Expansion no later than 3/31/2013, as stated 
on the general site plan, sheet # GS1.101. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to making the condition contingent to the 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the West Bed Tower. 
 
Mr. Miller said he would research the matter. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck commended the hospital on being a stellar member of the community.  He 
said the City is relying on the hospital to uphold its standards of the past, and is 
confident that the temporary units will look as good as they possibly can and will 
come down as quickly as possible.   
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

8 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Tagle asked if the Planning Department could provide comments in 
departmental project reports on how proposed developments relate to the Future 
Land Use Plan and new Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Miller said the department would comply as best as they can. 
 
Mr. Huston addressed the need for checklists for applicants and members of the 
Planning Commission.  
 
Mr. Littman shared his observation of the skills of Mark Miller’s daughter’s hockey 
team.  
 
Mr. Strat asked the status of providing members with electronic versions of site plan 
applications. 
 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed (1) the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for 
electronic submittals; (2) checklists for applications; and (3) the Planning 
Department procedure in receiving applications. 
 
Mr. Miller personally thanked Mr. Littman for attending his daughter’s hockey game. 
 
Mr. Miller reminded members that the Master Plan Workshop is on February 26, 
2008, and asked members to arrive no later than 5:45 p.m.  Mr. Miller said he would 
prepare and distribute the workshop station assignments.  He asked that members 
contact him should he/she have a preference. 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\02-12-08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 12, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Kathleen Troshynski 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-018 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Troshynski is excused from attendance at this meeting 
for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Wright 
Absent:  Troshynski, Vleck (arrived at 7:33 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-019 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda with resolutions as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-020 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 5, 2008 Special/Study 
meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck, Wright 
Abstain: Littman 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 352-B) – Proposed Outdoor 
Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles, South Side of Maple, East of 
Axtell Road (2477 W. Maple), Section 32, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted. 
 
The petitioner, Tom Kemp of Kemp Building, 275 W. Girard, Madison Heights, was 
present.  Mr. Kemp explained the proposed 8-foot screen wall would provide 
additional security for the recreational vehicles.  
 
There was a short discussion on the screen wall and chain link fence. 
 
Mr. Kemp addressed the pattern of the screen wall and the surrounding industrial 
areas.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Tagle questioned City procedure as relates to the encroachment by the 
petitioner on the adjacent property for the installation of the retaining wall.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Miller replied he would research the matter. 
 
Mr. Forsythe stated the Planning Commission is not granting the applicant 
permission to enter adjacent property to conduct any construction but merely acting 
upon the special use request and site plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-021 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.02(D) of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Outdoor Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles, located on 
the south side of Maple Road, east of Axtell Road, in Section 32, on approximately 
4.99 acres, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 945) – Proposed Huntington Bank Branch, Southwest 
Corner of Big Beaver and Troy Center Drive, Section 28, O-S-C (Office-Service- 
Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan and parking space reduction as submitted.  Mr. Miller briefly addressed the 
proposed parking reduction.   
 
Dale Ehresman of Ehresman Associates, Inc., 803 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  He apologized that Chris Schneider of 
Huntington Bank could not make the meeting.  Mr. Ehresman addressed the drive-
up windows and parking space reduction.  He indicated the proposed number of 
parking spaces would comfortably serve bank customers.   
 
Mr. Littman asked the petitioner to address the existing canopy and the traffic 
pattern from the south side of the building to the north. 
 
Mr. Ehresman addressed the potential use of the canopy by an existing tenant, the 
traffic pattern and the bank prototype.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

There was a brief discussion on the relationship of the proposed site plan to the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Mr. Tagle suggested a tree-lined entrance off of Big Beaver.  He encouraged 
enhancement of the landscaping and display of public art, possibly a bench, at the 
intersection.   
 
Mr. Ehresman said he would address the suggestions with the bank. 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-022 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to two hundred eighty three (283) when a total 
of three hundred sixteen (316) spaces are required on the site based on the off-
street parking space requirements for office buildings, banks and other financial 
institutions as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Huntington Bank Branch, located on the 
southwest corner of Big Beaver and Troy Center Drive, Section 28, on 
approximately 4.86 acres, within the O-S-C zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 946) – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy, Northwest Corner of 
Long Lake and Rochester Road, Section 11, B-2 (Community Business) and H-S 
(Highway Service) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan.  He addressed the proposed parking space reduction and memoranda 
relating to the proposed reduction.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the provision of a 
vehicular cross access easement to the north and east and the parking reduction.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Strat noted the architectural portions of the site plans are not sealed by a 
registered architect, as required by the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-023 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the next Regular meeting.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Tagle said he had some questions on the submittal.  He indicated it might be 
helpful to approach the petitioner at this time so items could be addressed or 
resolved at the time of site plan approval.  
 
There was discussion on the protocol of whether discussion should occur before 
or after a vote on the motion on the floor to postpone.  
 
Mr. Forsythe said his understanding of Robert’s Rules of Order is that there is no 
discussion by the applicant on a postponed item.  He stated however that in the 
interest of fairness and due process, he sees no problem in inviting the applicant 
to comment.  Mr. Forsyth indicated it is a decision of the Chair whether discussion 
can take place before or after the vote on the motion to postpone the matter.  
 
Mr. Strat suggested that discussion take place after the vote.  
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Strat, Tagle, Vleck, Wright 
No: Schultz 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz said he thinks it is procedurally wrong to hold a discussion on a 
postponed matter. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he would prefer to have sealed architectural drawings before him 
for discussion purposes, and he believes the Board has the option whether or not to 
hold a discussion. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would like the petitioner to address the provision of a cross 
access easement.   
 
Chair Schultz resolved that discussion on the matter would not take place at this 
meeting.  He indicated the Planning Commission would entertain a request from the 
petitioner to be placed on the March 4, 2008 Special/Study meeting for discussion 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

and review, but action on the matter would take place at the March 11, 2008 
Regular meeting. 
 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 305-I) – Proposed Roof Top Module Units, William 
Beaumont Hospital, West side of Dequindre, South of South Boulevard (44201 
Dequindre), Section 1, Zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and E-P (Environmental 
Protection) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted. 
 
Chair Schultz asked if it was within the Planning Commission’s purview to set a date 
on the removal of the temporary structures. 
 
Mr. Miller said that upon site plan approval, the structures are there and no longer 
“temporary”.  He said the Planning Commission does not have discretion in the 
matter, but the petitioner could volunteer and offer a condition to site plan approval 
that effectuates removal of the temporary structures.  Mr. Miller recommended tying 
the condition into the completion of the West Bed Tower. 
 
Mr. Forsyth concurred the Planning Commission does not have the discretion to 
condition the removal of the temporary structures with site plan approval.  Mr. 
Forsyth said the petitioner could volunteer the condition as part of the site plan 
presentation and it would be valid.   
 
There was discussion on the aesthetics of the proposed temporary structures.   
 
Eric Gray of Beaumont Services Company, 44201 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  
Mr. Gray addressed the temporary structures as relates to aesthetics, maintenance, 
emergency ingress/egress, staircase location, and walkway.  He provided a 
description of the exterior skin that would be detailed to match the Beaumont 
Hospital facility.  Mr. Gray said the target completion date for the seventh floor of 
the West Bed Tower is March 2013, and it is their intent to remove the temporary 
structures upon occupation of the sixth and seventh floors of the West Bed Tower.  
Mr. Gray indicated two representatives from Beaumont Hospital are also present to 
answer questions.  
 
Mr. Miller noted that on the general site plan submitted, sheet GS1.101, note #5 
reads:  “Temporary roof top module units will be removed at the completion of West 
Bed Tower Vertical Expansion, approximately no later than 3/31/2013.”   
 
Mr. Miller said this condition, as noted on the site plan, is viable because it is not 
discretionary and is being offered by the petitioner.  He recommended that the site 
plan notation be included in the Resolution for site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 12, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Mr. Forsyth indicated the site plan would be enforceable in court because the 
condition is being offered by the petitioner.  He said it is evident by the notation on 
the site plan that the Board is not imposing the condition on the petitioner.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the design of the proposed units and its durability in 
Michigan climate.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-02-024 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Roof Top Module Units on the Emergency Center 
at William Beaumont Hospital, located on the west side of Dequindre and south of 
South Boulevard, Section 1, on approximately 67.695 acres, within the C-F and E-P 
zoning districts, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The temporary roof top module units will be removed at the completion of 

the West Bed Tower Vertical Expansion no later than 3/31/2013, as stated 
on the general site plan, sheet # GS1.101. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to making the condition contingent to the 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the West Bed Tower. 
 
Mr. Miller said he would research the matter. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck commended the hospital on being a stellar member of the community.  He 
said the City is relying on the hospital to uphold its standards of the past, and is 
confident that the temporary units will look as good as they possibly can and will 
come down as quickly as possible.   
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 





BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, February 19, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael W. Bartnik 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he had received a phone call from Mr. Clark indicating that he 
would be late for tonight’s meeting. 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 15, 2008 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that on page 6 of the minutes, 6th line up, he wanted the words 
“recreational vehicles” added to the sentence regarding the parking of vehicles next to 
the lot line. 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 15, 2008 as amended. 
 
Yeas:   6- Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Abstain:  1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 LAKESIDE, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
houses this is considered to be a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks 
along both streets.   
 
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 15, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner wished to his request moved to the end of the 
agenda to wait for Mr. Clark’s arrival. 
 
Mr. Terry Blocitto stated that would be fine with him. 
 
Item #2 – moved to Item #6 to give Mr. Clark the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  NINO SALVAGGIO INVESTMENT CO. OF 
TROY, 6835 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high 
landscaped berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south 
and west sides of the property.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief granted by this Board to 
provide a landscaped berm in place of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required 
along the south and west property line where this site abuts residentially zoned 
property.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1995. This item last 
appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 2005 and was granted a three-
year renewal.  The site to the west is the site of a new condominium development and 
the site to the south, although residentially zoned, is the site of a commercial kennel.  
The Board, in 2005, resolved to consider making this a permanent variance at this time 
as construction on the property to the west would be complete.  Public hearing notices 
have been sent to the appropriate property owners and residents regarding this item.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked for a clarification in the process of making this a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this item has appeared before this Board for a number of 
years, each time extending the variance renewal.  At the meeting in 2005 it was 
determined that since the area around this property was now developed, public hearing 
notices would be sent to all property owners within 300’ of this property to notify them 
that the Board would consider having the landscaped berm remain permanently in lieu 
of the 6’ high masonry wall.  These notices have been sent out, as well as a notice  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
published in the appropriate newspaper, to determine if there are any objections to this 
request. 
 
Mr. Kirk Taylor, President of Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy was present.  Mr. 
Taylor stated that they have made a determined effort to make sure that the  
landscaping on the berm was in keeping with what the Board wanted them to do, and in 
fact, have added many more shrubs to fill in any empty spots.  Mr. Taylor also stated 
that they have not received any complaints from the neighbors regarding this berm. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Wenhong Wang, 795 Red Run Drive, was present and stated that she had spoken 
to several neighbors and they did not quite understand the Public Hearing notice.  Ms. 
Wang said that they did not feel there was enough information regarding what type of 
wall would be put in.  Ms. Wang stated that they are quite happy with the landscaping. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that the petitioner is asking to leave the landscaped berm and 
not put in a wall.  The petitioner would maintain the landscaping as it is now. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Ordinance would normally require that a wall be built 
along the property line that abuts the residential property.  In 1995, this petitioner asked 
that they be allowed to install the landscaped berm rather than put up the masonry 
screening wall.  This was approved on a temporary basis.  The petitioner has come 
back to the Board every three (3) years in order to ask for a renewal of this request.  If 
this request is made a permanent variance, a wall will not be put in and a landscaped 
berm will remain on the property.  The Board is now considering making that a 
permanent variance so that they will not have to come back before the Board. 
 
Ms. Wang indicated that she was in favor of the landscaped berm.  Ms. Wang asked 
what was required to get a variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell advised Ms. Wang that if this variance is granted tonight, they will not have 
to come before the Board again.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that if should anything change 
with the appearance of this berm, she should contact the City to address her concerns. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported Courtney 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy, 6835 Rochester Road, a 
permanent variance for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high landscaped berm in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and west sides of 
the property.  
 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Absent a variance significant natural features would be negatively affected or 

destroyed. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT A PERMANENT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENNIS SIAVRAKAS, 330 OLYMPIA, for relief of 
the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land which will result in a 78.77’ wide, 9,922 
square foot lot and to construct a two-family residence.   Section 30.10.09 requires an 
80’ wide, 10,000 square foot minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence 
in R-2 Zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land to construct a two-family residence.  The property is the site of an 
existing single family home and a vacant lot.  The demolition of the home and 
combining of the property allows for an 80’ wide parcel to be split off on the east side for 
the construction of a two-family residence.  The remaining parcel is a 78.77’ wide; 9,922 
square foot lot. The site plan submitted indicates the construction of a two-family 
residence on this parcel.  Section 30.10.09 requires an 80’ wide, 10,000 square foot 
minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence in R-2 Zoning.  A previous 
variance granted in 2006 allowed for the construction of a single family home on a 
59.27’ wide portion of this land where a 60’ minimum width is required. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for a clarification on the original variance request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the original request was to leave the existing house and place 
another home on the west side of that home, on a lot that had a shortage in width. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that originally the petitioner planned to construct houses for two (2) 
families and now wished to construct home for four (4) families. 
 
Mr. Dennis Siavrakas and his partner, Mr. Brian Vargason, were present.  Mr. Siavrakas 
stated that originally they did plan to put in a single-family home.  At that time they felt  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
that they were in an affordable market and since that time the market value has gotten 
very low and they now feel that there is too much risk to put in a single-family home.  
They had been marketing a brand new home on that lot and have not had one response 
since the variance was granted.  In this area, the property backs up to commercial 
property and they are proposing to re-configure the property and put in two-family  
homes.  There are other two-family homes in the area and they do appear to be more 
desirable than single-family homes.   This lot is pie-shaped and is narrower in the front  
than the rear.  Mr. Siavrakas said that they had entertained the thought of asking to split 
the parcel of land down the middle, but that would require two (2) variances rather than 
just one.   
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that this is a very small request and he believes that they are asking 
for less than 1% of the total lot area.  Another variance was granted several months ago 
on another property in this area and they are asking for the same consideration.  These 
homes will meet all building codes and setback requirements.  This is the highest, best 
and full use of this property and does meet the Zoning Requirements.  Mr. Siavrakas 
said that this site is a little more location challenged as it is adjacent to Commercial 
Zoning on the west and the north.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval and one written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Dennis Siavrakas, 330 Olympia, relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land which will result in a 78.77’ wide, 9,922 square foot lot and to 
construct a two-family residence.   Section 30.10.09 requires an 80’ wide, 10,000 
square foot minimum lot for the construction of a two-family residence in R-2 Zoning. 
 

• Configuration of lot is very challenging due to commercial property to the west 
and north. 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Two-family homes are not out of character to this area. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ELLEN TENCER, 1641 W. SQUARE LAKE 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a 120’ cellular 
communication tower located only 130’ from the residential property to the north and 
290’ from the residential property to the south.  This site is located in the R-C (Research  
Center) Zoning District.  Paragraph E of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance 
requires that freestanding communications antenna tower structures in the R-C District  
be setback a minimum of five times their height from residentially zoned or used 
property.  This would require a 120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new cellular communication tower within the I-75 Right of Way on the south side of 
Square Lake Road between Crooks Road and Coolidge Highway. 
 
Research into the records regarding this property reveals that the I-75 Right of Way in 
this area is located in the R-C (Research Center) Zoning District.  Prior to the 
construction of I-75 all of Section 8 was zoned in the R-C Zoning District.  When the 
right of way for the freeway was acquired, the zoning of the land was not changed.   
 
Re-zonings of the land adjacent to the freeway have occurred since the 1950’s, but they 
never included the land on which the freeway sits.  Therefore, the requirements of the 
R-C Zoning District are being applied.  Paragraph E of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires that freestanding communications antenna tower structures 
in the R-C District be setback a minimum of five times their height from residentially 
zoned or used property.  This would require a 120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from 
residential property.  The plans submitted indicate that the tower is located only 130’ 
from the residential property to the north and 290’ from the residential property to the 
south.  In addition to the mandated notice to those within 300’ of the site, we have sent 
notices to property owners and residents within 600’ of the site since that would be the 
required setback in this instance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this stretch of I-75 was zoned R-C, what the rest of I-75 would be 
zoned. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that it would be the same as the zoning of the property at the time the 
freeway went through. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if a Research Center could be put up in this area, meaning the 
pavement and right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that typically structures are not constructed in the right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the right of way for I-75 in this area is 300’ in width and there 
are three (3) lanes of traffic in each direction, which are 36’ to 40’ on each side.  The 
entire land area, between Crooks and Coolidge was originally zoned R-C and it has  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
never been changed.  The acquisition of the property by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation does not change the Zoning.  MDOT does not have the authority to  
change the Zoning of a property.  The only body that can change the Zoning is City 
Council and they have never changed the Zoning. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the petitioner has submitted an exhibit that is contrary to that legal 
analysis and asked if staff had a response to that exhibit. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that he has examined all of the correspondence and initially he might 
have agreed with that premise submitted by the petitioner that there is no zoning.  
However, based on the research done by Mr. Stimac, the zoning in this area has never 
changed and Mr. Motzny agrees with Mr. Stimac’s interpretation.  If this area was not 
zoned then the petitioner would be facing more of an uphill battle as there are permitted 
uses in certain zoning districts.  In Mr. Motzny’s opinion, the petitioner would be facing a 
text amendment. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he disagrees with this interpretation. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the park is zoned R-1B and asked how far away the closest house 
was. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that that he did not have a specific dimension on Firefighter’s Park.  
Notices were sent out to property owners within 600’ of this location and no notices 
were sent to homeowners in the Crescent Ridge Subdivision. 
 
Mr. Alan Green, Counsel for the applicant, and Ms. Ellen Tencer were present.  Mr. 
Green stated that he disagrees with the zoning of this property.  Looking back twenty 
(20) years the property was zoned Research.  Mr. Green said that they believe this is 
unzoned land.  Mr. Green said that they believe this is an ideal site for this antenna.  
Originally they had gotten approval from City Council to put the antenna at the site of 
the Fire Station on Coolidge, but this approval was taken away because of the number 
of people that were opposed to this location.  When abutting a road or lot line, you 
would extend the line to the adjacent property and take that zoning. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not believe this Board should discuss the zoning on the 
property.  If the zoning needs to be changed it would have to go back to the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Courtney said that the zoning did not change because the I-75 went 
through this area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell agreed with Mr. Courtney and said he thinks that basically the discussion is 
mostly opinion and speculation. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the reason is the petitioner is holding this position is because the 
antenna would need the 600 foot distance from residential property and if the R-C 
zoning did not apply to this property the variance request would be smaller. 
 
Mr. Green stated that was correct and if the location for the tower was in residential 
zoned property, a lesser variance would be required. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he could understand both points of view. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he does not believe the zoning of the property should be 
considered in this decision.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he has a problem relying on a map that is 50 years old and did not 
believe the legislative body intended for this site to remain under Research Center 
Zoning, and every other location along I-75 remains whatever zoning the highway 
crosses over. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion they assumed that nothing could go in this area 
and that is one of the reasons the zoning was never changed. 
 
Ms. Tencer stated that they provide towers on MDOT, DNR and State owned property.  
Right now this tower would be for T-Mobile, but this location would be used by as many 
as 4 to 5 different carriers.   Originally they wished to put this tower at the Fire Station 
on Coolidge.  City Council approved it, but there was a great deal of opposition at the 
Public Hearing and City Council would not lease the land to them. City Council 
supported the citizens that were opposed to this location for a tower.  Everyone that 
lived around the Fire Station was opposed to this Tower as they did not want to look at 
it.  They cannot put the towers in residential zoned areas and be far enough away from 
residential structures.   There are a number of light poles along I-75 and these towers 
will be very similar; the main difference being that they are slightly thicker.  They are 
called monopole towers.   
 
Ms. Tencer went on to say that the State of Michigan is very happy to work with carriers, 
have a good quality system and help provide people with service.  They have received 
both Federal and State approval for this land. This is Federal land, State managed. 
Putting the tower right in front of the park is the farthest point from residential property.  
The Ordinance was revised to make it two times the height and they could put up a 
tower that was 65’ in height.  Trees in Michigan grow from 60’ to 80’ tall and the leaves 
would block the signal.  A tower that is 65’ in height would not allow for a number of 
carriers. 
 
Ms. Tencer also said that because of this economy, a number of people are not using 
land line phones.  In an effort to save money, many people use only cell phones.  In one 
month’s time there were 672 emergency phone calls made in this area.  If just one or  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
two calls are dropped it could be disastrous.  They want to make sure that they provide 
the service that people need.  These towers provide the service required for 911 calls.  
Ms. Tencer went on to say that the towers do not fall end over end.  When a tower does 
fail it “crimps” in the middle.  It does not fall all the way to the ground.  Ms. Tencer went 
on to show a picture of a tower that was considered a complete failure and it “crimped” 
in the middle.  The coax cable burned from the ground to the top of the tower.  The 
tower “crimps” and there is time to repair the tower. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that this particular location is in the best interest of Troy and she gave 
the Chairman, an affidavit from their engineer swearing that the tower is needed in this 
location to provide service for the residents and people on the road.  120,000 people 
use I-75 on a daily basis and they want to be able to use their cell phones if necessary.   
Ms. Tencer said that although she works for T-Mobile, she also carries a Verizon phone 
in case she cannot get service from her carrier. 
 
Ms. Tencer brought in a letter from one of the carriers that make the towers and the 
letter states that they have never had a tower that has failed and hit the ground.  The 
State of Michigan does not have a problem with a tower going right next to I-75.  Ms. 
Tencer asked their engineer to explain some of the maps that were part of her 
presentation. 
 
The engineer from T-Mobile, an expert on radio frequencies showed the Board the 
difference in coverage on several maps.  There are a lot of gaps in this area and the 
quality of the coverage on Coolidge.  There should be rock solid coverage and presently 
there is not.  This location is the best location for this tower and it will provide service for 
the greatest number of cell phone users.   
 
Ms. Tencer said that T-Mobile will be located at the top of the tower.  Other carriers will 
be placed at 10’ intervals.  Ms. Tencer said that there is a 40% between a 65’ tower and 
120’ tower.  Each of the co-locators is 10’ lower than the other carrier.  Sometimes it is 
better to go taller with a smaller number of towers, than to go lower with a lot of towers. 
 
Mr. Green said that the Zoning Ordinance includes co-location and the State wants to 
have a total grid at a site that is the most appropriate.  A location such as this will keep 
these towers out of residential neighborhoods. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Yousif Elias, 1697 Fleetwood, was present.  Mr. Elias stated that he lives directly 
south of this proposed location and can see the entrance to Firefighters Park from his 
living room.  Mr. Elias is against this proposed tower as he does not want to look at a 
120’ tower from his home. This tower will be 200’ from his child’s bedroom.  Mr. Elias 
believes that this tower will add to pollution and noise, especially if they have to bring in 
generators to keep these towers powered up when electricity goes out.  Mr. Elias said  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
that he has fifteen years experience in auto engineering and has also been employed 
with Nextel.   Mr. Elias said that they have four different carriers in their home, and they 
have never had a problem with coverage.  Mr. Elias said that he does not believe they 
need a 120’ tower as there are a number of tall buildings along Coolidge and Crooks  
and these antennas could be placed on top of these buildings.  Mr. Elias gave a number 
of locations that presently have roof top mounted antennas and he believes T-Mobile 
could do the same thing.  Mr. Elias was very surprised that there was not a larger 
turnout of people that objected to this request.  Mr. Elias said that in his opinion as a  
Radio Frequency Engineer, this tower is not needed.  Other cities and jurisdictions do 
not allow these large towers and have found compromises to provide coverage for cell 
phone carriers.  Mr. Elias believes that there are other solutions that do not require large 
towers, which include putting these antennas on the top of surrounding buildings.  This 
is more of a cheap, old way of getting into an area.  Mr. Elias has been to many 
meetings for Nextel and has worked with the community and the residents in the cities 
to come up with alternative solutions to provide more coverage.  These towers do not 
belong in the middle of neighborhoods.  There are many technical solutions that will 
provide coverage.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked where Mr. Elias lived.  Mr. Elias stated that he was at 1697 
Fleetwood. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he lives approximately a mile away from I-75 and hears noise all 
day and all night.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Elias how the noise from the cell phone tower 
would compare with the noise from I-75. 
 
Mr. Elias said that the traffic is bad in the morning, but the noise will come from 
generators that are used in an emergency to power a cell tower.  Mr. Kovacs stated that 
his neighbors could have generators in use in an emergency. 
 
Mr. Kovacs confirmed that Mr. Elias had four cell phones in his home and believes this 
is part of the proliferation where more cell towers are needed.  No one wants cell phone 
towers near them, but everyone wants the convenience of a cell phone.  Living near I-
75 is noisy anyway and Mr. Kovacs does not believe that generators used in 
emergencies for cell towers would add to the problem.  
 
Mr. Elias stated that this tower is going to be too close to his home and believes that 
these carriers can come up with other solutions that will allow more coverage without 
the use of cell towers. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he believes that between the house and tower there are two 
trees in the area that would block the view of the tower.  Mr. Courtney said that looking 
out you would see the trees before you would see the tower. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Elias said that he can see the entrance to Firefighters Park from his living room and 
he does not want to see this tower. 
 
Mr. Te-Ying Lee, 1641 Fleetwood was present.  Mr. Lee stated that he was surprised 
that more people had not shown up in opposition of this request.  This location is much  
closer to residential property to the south than the original proposed location of the Fire 
Station.  Mr. Lee stated that he is more concerned about the location of this tower and is 
worried about structure failure, and is concerned about the radio waves of these towers.  
Mr. Lee said that he does believe more cell towers are needed to provide more  
coverage to the area; however, he does not want a tower in this location.  Mr. Lee 
asked how many objections were in the file and how many notices were sent out. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that there is one (1) written objection in the file. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Public Hearing notices were sent out to property owners within 
600’ of this site, as well as the notice that was published in the Somerset Gazette.  A 
total of fourteen (14) Public Hearing notices were sent out.  Mr. Stimac went on to say 
that Federal Law has jurisdiction over the health effects of cell towers.  The Board of 
Zoning Appeals cannot base its decision on the health effects of towers, as they are 
under Federal jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. Lee asked that his objection be taken into consideration. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection in file.  There are no written approvals in file. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that the only noise that would come from the tower is a low hum, such 
as the hum of an air conditioner.  Ms. Tencer also stated that there is a new law in front 
of the Federal Government regarding the use of generators.  This is called the “Katrina” 
Law and applies to battery back up for cell towers.  If there is a two-day power outage, 
battery back up would be used, but if the power was out for three days the generators 
would be used.  Farmington Hills does allow for towers in parking lots that are 120’ high. 
 
Ms. Tencer pointed out several locations in Troy indicating that they have mounted 
antennas on the roofs of buildings wherever possible.  The antennas on the roofs do not 
give the coverage that the cell towers will provide.  Oakland County will soon be offering 
wireless systems, but cell towers will be needed to provide coverage.  Companies that 
are coming in to do this for Oakland County are planning to add their equipment to 
these cell towers. There are quite a few trees along the south side of I-75 and there are 
a lot of trees where this tower will be located.  Regarding safety, these towers are 
amazingly safe.  Ms. Tencer showed pictures of towers that were still standing after 
hurricane Katrina.  These towers are much safer than the wood poles that are in the 
area. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked where the location of the tower to the west was. 
 
Ms. Tencer said that she believed it was at the water treatment facility on Adams, and 
one is on the office building. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the heights of those two towers were. 
 
The engineer stated that T-Mobile is at a height of 72’ on each tower, but did not have 
the exact height of the towers.  Ms. Tencer said that the location on a tower is on a first 
come, first serve basis and whoever gets there first gets the highest spot. 
 
A discussion began regarding the locations of the towers in Troy.  Mr. Stimac asked if 
the tower was on the northwest side of Adams and I-75.  Ms. Tencer said that there are 
two towers at that location; the tower may be at the water treatment facility and the 
other is on the office building.  Mr. Stimac also said that the location at 1450 W. Long 
Lake is a roof mount, which is indicated on the plan.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said that there are towers at Square Lake and Adams, one is north of 
Square Lake and the other is on the east side of Adams, on the south side of the 
expressway but north of Square Lake.  Ms. Tencer said that was correct.  Mr. Bartnik 
then said there is another tower on Long Lake around Northfield Parkway.  Mr. Stimac 
indicated that was not a tower but a building mount.  Mr. Bartnik said that there is 
another tower on the hotel between Crooks Road and the exit ramp.  Mr. Stimac said 
that was correct.  Mr. Bartnik said that there is another one on South Boulevard and 
Crooks and another further east of Livernois.  Mr. Stimac said that the towers shown on 
the maps included in the application, indicates that the tower on west side of Adams 
Road is actually in Bloomfield Hills.  Another tower mount is on 6966 Crooks Road, 850 
Tower has a roof mount, there is tower at Sylvan Glen Golf Course, and there is another 
located in Rochester Hills.   
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Ellen Tencer, 1641 W. Square Lake, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a 120’ cellular communication tower located only 130’ from the residential 
property to the north and 290’ from the residential property to the south.   Paragraph E 
of Section 27.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that freestanding 
communications antenna tower structures in the R-C District be setback a minimum of 
five times their height from residentially zoned or used property.  This would require a 
120’ tower to be a minimum of 600’ from residential property. 
 

• Regardless of what the zoning of the property is, the variance should be allowed. 
• The property on the north, closest to the site, is a public park. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 

• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a zoning district. 
• Variance will be beneficial to property owners in the area. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in the application. 
• Absent a variance, public health and safety will be negatively affected. 
• Absent a variance, conformance to the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Park area located to the north and there are no residential buildings located in 

close proximity of the tower. 
• Residential homes are located more than two times the height of the tower. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #2) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 
LAKESIDE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 
28.18’ rear yard setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along 
Southpointe Drive.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 
25’ minimum front yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent  
houses this is a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks along both streets.   
 
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 15, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Board wished to postpone this request to give the petitioner the 
opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section  
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request is excessive. 
• 28’ rear yard setback is excessive. 

 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Courtney what his reason for denial was.  Mr. Courtney stated 
that he went back out and looked at the property and believes this request is excessive.  
Originally, Mr. Courtney thought there was more space available. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he agrees with Mr. Courtney. 
 
Mr. Blocitto said that he went back to the site and went down the side street and took 
pictures of the back of the property and does not believe this addition will be visible to 
anyone sitting on their front porch.  The only time this sunroom will be visible is when 
traveling north on Southpointe.  This room will not affect anyone’s site view.  Mr. Blocitto 
said that the family had planned to be here, however, the homeowner just got out of the 
hospital with pneumonia. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that because of the proximity of the home closest to this home, he 
believes the sunroom would be intrusive.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the procedure was regarding a vote to deny the variance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that if this request is denied, the petitioner could come back before the 
Board if they had a significant change in their plan.  At times the Board has looked at a 
change of 10% in a plan. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct.  There is no exact, specific definition of what a 
substantial difference is.  Ultimately the Board can decide that the second request was 
the same as the first and deny it again.  It is up to the best interests of the applicant to 
provide the Board with a substantial change. 
 
Mr. Blocitto asked what Mr. Maxwell said regarding a 10% change.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he is not trying to put out numbers, however, past history shows 
that if a new request is submitted it should be at least 10% different from the original 
submission.  There is nothing in the Ordinance that specifies 10%, but the change 
should be significant. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he went out and looked at the property and believes the variance 
should be granted.  The neighborhood surrounds the lake, and there are large houses 
on the lots with shorter distances between the houses.  Mr. Bartnik believes this is a 
unique piece of property and the neighbors or association did not have a problem with 
this request.  Mr. Bartnik also said that he does not believe this request is excessive. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of March 18, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik 
Nays:  2 – Kovacs, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO TABLE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially since there was a motion on the floor to deny this request, 
at the next meeting this motion will have to be acted upon.  Mr. Bartnik’s motion to 
postpone, only postponed the vote on the motion to deny. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he has no problem with the variance for the front yard setback, but 
does believe the rear yard setback variance is too large. 
 
Mr. Blocitto asked if the cell tower at 5600 Crooks Road was still in operation.  Mr. 
Stimac said it was and Mr. Blocitto said that he never has a problem with cell phone 
coverage. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the postponement will allow the petitioner to change his plans. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the petitioner will have the opportunity to speak about his 
request at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that Mr. Maxwell had accepted a position on the 
Planning Commission and this would be his last meeting at the Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  It is quite likely that a new member will be at the next meeting. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 19, 2008 

16 
 

Mr. Kovacs thanked Mr. Maxwell for the time he served on this Board and told him that 
he thought he did an excellent job as Chairman.   
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. CLARK CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he appreciated the staff he has worked with and feels that 
everyone he has worked with cares about what happens with the City.  Mr. Maxwell said 
that everyone on the Board has a great deal of integrity and everyone has always been 
respectful even though not everyone agrees with each other.  Mr. Maxwell also thanked 
everyone that he had worked with in the nine (9) years he was on this Board. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
       Matthew Kovacs, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 4, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mark Maxwell Michael W. Hutson 
Robert M. Schultz  Mark J. Vleck 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-025 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Hutson and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-026 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-027 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 12, 2008 Regular meeting as 
distributed. 
 
Yes:  Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
Abstain: Maxwell 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright presented a brief BZA Report. 

 
 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller presented the DDA Report.  The DDA requested that the team of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. and Grissom Metz Andriese Associates develop 
a proposal for design standards.  The Planning Commission will be given input into 
the process. 
 
Chair Schultz announced that he will attend the next DDA meeting as a 
representative of the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 233) – Article 03.00.00, Digital 
Application Submission Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
Mr. Tagle suggested that the Planning Commission might want to consider three-
dimensional animation for certain areas to determine how projects will fit within the 
streetscape or neighborhood. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the idea. 
 
The Planning Commission suggested minor revisions to the draft text amendment. 
 
Mr. Miller reminded the Planning Commission that a Public Hearing is scheduled for 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment at the March 11, 2008 Regular 
meeting. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.200.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking 
of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
The Planning Commission made minor revisions to the draft text amendment. 
 
Mr. Maxwell commented on the inadequacy of Section 43.74.01 that relates to the 
standards that must be applied by the BZA for the temporary parking of commercial 
vehicles in residential districts. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated the Planning Department would determine if vehicles in Troy 
were permitted to be parked on lawns in residential areas. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine, Troy, suggested the commercial vehicle definition is 
difficult to enforce because it is difficult to restrict commercial vehicles that weigh 
less that 10,000 pounds.  He distributed an excerpt from the Michigan Vehicle 
Code, Act 300 of 1949, which indicates commercial vehicles weighing more than 
5,000 pounds are required to have signage. 
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy, said the text amendment might go through some 
significant revisions at the City Council level.  She addressed a concern relating to 
the ability to appeal the provisions because they are open to interpretation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Miller stated the text amendment would eliminate the standards for review of 
commercial vehicles; therefore, appeals would not go to the BZA since Troy does 
not authorize use variances.  He indicated appeals would be made to the Circuit 
Court. 
 
A Public Hearing will be scheduled for the April 8, 2008 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 

 
_______________ 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-03-028 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Tagle be excused from the remainder of this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent:  Hutson, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy, apologized for not being present for the first 
Public Comment agenda item.  Ms. Stine complimented the Planning Commission 
on their efforts in developing the draft Master Plan.  Additionally, she commended 
the Planning Commission on the Public Input Workshop. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski announced to the members that she will be submitting a letter of 
resignation from the Planning Commission for personal reasons. 
 
Members thanked Ms. Troshynski for her service and wished her luck in future 
endeavors.  Additionally, they welcomed Mr. Maxwell to the Planning Commission. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 4, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\03-04-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT                 MARCH 5, 2008  

 Page 1 of 2 

 
A regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board was held on Wednesday, 
March 5, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West 
Big Beaver Road.  Chairperson Jayne Saeger called the meeting to order at 7:28 
p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 
    Kathleen Melchert 
    V. James Viola 
    Lt. Charles Pappas 
    ACO Karen Livingston 
    PSA Jay Hernandez 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Patrick Carolan, Secretary 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Carolan 
 
Resolution #AC2008-03-001  
Moved by Melchert 
Seconded by Viola 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Carolan at the Animal 
Control Appeal Board meeting of March 5, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Carolan 
 

 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 5, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #AC2008-03-002  
Moved by Viola 
Seconded by Melchert 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the September 5, 2007 meeting of the Animal 
Control Appeal Board be approved. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT                 MARCH 5, 2008  

 Page 2 of 2 

Yes:  4 
No:  0 
Absent: Carolan 
 

 
Agenda Items 
 
 
There are no items on the Agenda. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for September 3, 2008.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, March 5, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Keith Lenderman 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRAURY 6, 2008 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he wished the minutes amended to indicate that he had 
abstained from the vote on Item #4, which was the interpretation of the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 6, 2008 as amended. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  THOMAS KEMP, KEMP BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT CO., 2477 W. MAPLE, for relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ high 
chain link fence along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 
6’ high chain link fence along the south property line at 2477 W. Maple Road.  The rear 
of this property abuts the private road Equity along its south property line.  Having 
frontage on a street on both its north and south sides makes this property a double 
front-through lot.  As such it has a front yard requirement along both streets.  Section 3 
of Chapter 83 of the City Code (the Fence Ordinance) prohibits fences in front yard 
locations on Industrial Zoned property. 
 
Ian Hurst and Tiffany Rust from Kemp Building Company, and Eugene Shanzo of 2477 
W. Maple were present.  Ms. Rust indicated that they plan to put in a detention pond 
with a one on four slope and it will require protection.  They do not have access to 
Equity Drive and therefore do not believe this should make their property a double front 
through lot.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hurst stated that because they do not have access to Equity Drive, this area is used 
as more a back yard than a front yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the detention pond required a fence around it. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner has other options available and the petitioner should 
demonstrate why this detention pond needs to be at this slope or at this location.  Mr. 
Stimac is not aware of any objections that the Engineering Department has to the slope 
of the detention pond. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a fence was required because the slope of the pond is proposed 
to be one on four. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the slope were changed to no greater than one on six a fence 
would not be required. 
 
Mr. Shanzo stated in his opinion the fence should be put in to increase the safety factor 
around the detention pond. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the required parking would become an issue if the detention pond 
were moved to the north and the grade changed. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the front end of the property has a building under construction for 
indoor storage.  The rear of this property is proposed to provide storage for commercial 
and recreational vehicles.  The number of spaces is not dictated by the Ordinance, but 
rather by the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a fence could be constructed at the south of the parking area if 
the detention pond was not fenced in. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct if the detention pond was at least 50’ wide. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the one on six slope. 
 
Ms. Rust said if they enlarged the detention pond it would take out the drive lane.  This 
would amount to approximately 35’. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they would lose approximately four spaces per row. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in order to grant a variance there are requirements that have to 
be met.  A hardship is required in order for this Board to grant a variance.  This is a new 
project, and he believes underground detention is a possibility in the front of the 
property.  Mr. Kessler does not feel that the petitioner has provided a hardship. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hurst indicated that he believes the hardship is that they do not have access to 
Equity Drive. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that the issue is the adjacent property, not the use. 
 
Mr. Hurst stated that their neighbor to the west use their property as a back yard and 
also have a pond in that location. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they would rather see trees and landscaping and not a pond at all.  
Mr. Kessler did not see a hardship demonstrated. 
 
Ms. Rust stated that they are proposing to install trees along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the newer buildings along Equity meet the required setbacks.  
Arvin Meritor had parking in existence when the street was developed.  Maintaining 
setbacks would be more pleasing to property owners in the area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Ms. Rust stated that the hardship is that there are two front yards on this property. 
 
Mr. Shanzo said that although there is frontage on Equity, they do not have any access 
to Equity. 
 
Mr. Hurst said that they don’t own the frontage on Equity Drive and believes someone 
else owns that property. 
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that their property does in fact butt up to Equity Drive.  Mr. Hurst 
said that was correct but Equity is a private road and they do have access to Equity 
Drive. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Equity Drive is a private road and the owners of adjacent property 
do not automatically have access to the road. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how the detention pond would be maintained. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they would have access from the north side. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if a fence would be permitted if Equity Drive was not there.  Mr. 
Stimac replied that it would be allowed. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

4 
 

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that there are many locations in Troy that are considered to be 
double front lots and the petitioners that come before this Board have to demonstrate a 
hardship that runs with the land.  Not having access to Equity Drive is not a hardship. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this would change if they had access to Equity Drive.  Mr. 
Richnak stated that if they had access to Equity Drive they would have to move the 
detention pond. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if they could put up a fence on the north side of the pond.  Mr. 
Stimac said that they could since it appears that it is 75’ from Equity Drive. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked the petitioner if they had given any thought to moving the detention 
pond or creating a one on six slope. 
 
Mr. Shanzo said that when they appeared before the Planning Commission, they were 
told that storage is needed in the City for the storage of Commercial Vehicles as well as 
Recreational Vehicles so that they could be moved out of residential areas.  If they 
move the detention pond they will lose some parking spaces, and they believe by 
providing this space it will benefit the City. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he agrees with what the petitioner is saying, but this Board is trying 
to maintain the setbacks and he does not feel the petitioner has demonstrated a 
hardship. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Thomas Kemp, Kemp Building & Development Co., 
2477 W. Maple, for relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ high chain link fence along the 
south property line. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VASILE CARSTEA, 5353 LIVERNOIS, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install entrance gates at 5353 Livernois, St. Nicholas Romanian Orthodox 
Church. 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install 
entrance gates at 5353 Livernois.  The site plan submitted indicates installing entrance 
gates at the north (Stalwart) and east (Livernois) driveways to the parking lot.  The north  
gates are proposed to be 8’-10 ½” in height.  The proposed east gates are shown to be 
8’-6 ½” in height with decorative supporting columns and an archway up to 9’-4” in 
height.  Chapter 83 limits the heights of the gates and support columns to a 6’ maximum 
in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Vasile Carstea, Father George Carstea and Mr. Ilie Muresan were present.  Mr. 
Carstea stated that they need this fence to protect their property from trespassers and 
from cars that come into their drive and use this area to cut through the subdivision.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the same results could be achieved with a 6’ gate. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that it could, but they have already purchased these gates. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the fire hydrants were located on this property and Mr. 
Carstea indicated that they are right in front of the church on Livernois. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the gates were going to be locked. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they have a magnetic locking system that requires 4 lbs of 
pressure to open. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the Fire Department would be able to push the gates open and Mr. 
Carstea said that was correct.  
 
Mr. Kessler confirmed that the petitioner wished to put these gates up to prevent people 
from cutting through their property. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they want to keep trespassers off of the property and between the 
hours of 3:00 P.M. and 5:00 P.M., vehicles use their drives as a cut through to the 
subdivision. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.   
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said that the petitioner is proposing to restrict access to this property 
with the use of these gates.  Mr. Lenderman went on to say that it has been his 
experience, that as soon as the public finds out that these gates can be opened with 4 
pounds of pressure, locks and chains will be put on the gates to keep them closed. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
These locks will slow the response time of the Fire Department to get to the structure 
thereby endangering the lives of people inside the structure. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had spoken to the Fire Marshall and stated that he will not lock 
the gates. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that a gate at a height of 6’ would still be an issue for the Fire 
Department to deal with. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the height of the fence was an issue. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that it was the height of the gates.  These gates are proposed to be 
between 2’ and 3 ½’ higher than what is allowed by the Ordinance.   The height of the 
towers are also included in this request. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner had spoken to the home owners on Stalwart to 
determine how they felt about this proposed fence and gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had not, but had spoken to the residents on either side of the 
Church and they did not object. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had talked to anyone about modifying the gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had spoken to a contractor, but if the gates were modified at 
the top, they would be useless. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why the petitioner bought the gates before he came to the Board. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he did not think of it. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion these gates are too high. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that he feels there should be some way to modify the gates. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he does think it can be done. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he thinks these gates are too high, especially on Stalwart, which 
is a residential area. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was anyway to compromise. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what the height of the grade was to the second horizontal piece of the 
gate. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he believes it is 42”. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possibility of cutting off the bottom rail and re-welding 
it to make the gate shorter. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that he had not thought of that option. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could understand how the gate could not be modified at the top, 
but feels that the structural stability of the gate should not be affected if the rail is cut 
from the bottom of the gate and then re-welded on. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he did not have a problem with the proposed archway and felt that 
the last pillar on Livernois should be lowered.  Mr. Richnak also said that it was feasible 
to postpone this request to allow the petitioner the opportunity to talk to contractors to 
determine what could be done to reduce the height of these gates.   
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that the petitioner has to also appear before the Board of 
Zoning Appeals as these gates will affect the width of the driveways.  If the Board of 
Zoning Appeals does not grant the request to reduce the width of the driveways, the 
petitioner may have to look into a great deal of modifications for these gates. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if the gates swing in or out when opening. 
 
Mr. Carstea said that they swing in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that it appears that it may be better to postpone this request for 
one month, to allow the petitioner to appear before the Board of Zoning Appeals and to 
allow the petitioner the chance to contact fence contractors to see what kind of 
modifications could be made to the gates. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Vasile Carstea, 5353 Livernois, for relief of Chapter 
85 to install entrance gates at 5353 Livernois, St. Nicholas Romanian Orthodox Church 
until the meeting of April 2, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to appear before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with fence contractors to see what 
modifications could be made to these gates. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 5, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF APRIL 2, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ilie Muresan asked why they can’t put up a 9’ high gate. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that he believes these gates are too high. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that the Ordinance has requirements and these gates do not meet the 
requirements of the Ordinance.  The petitioner has not demonstrated a hardship that 
would allow for this variance, and monetary expenditures alone are not considered a 
hardship.  It is up to the petitioner to explain what the problems with this property are. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that the Ordinance does not allow the gates to be more than 6’ in 
height. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 1 of 4 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 
10, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: David S. Ogg  

Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ogg and Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-007  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ogg and Ukrainec at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of March 10, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 

 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 11, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-008 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 11, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 2 of 4 

 

 
Agenda Items 
 
1. AMC Troy, Inc. requesting to transfer ownership of escrowed 2007 Class C 

licensed business with Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; transfer 
location, governmental unit under MCL 436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, 
Suite 208, Novi, Michigan 48375, to 1873 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48083, Oakland County; requesting a new outdoor service (1 
area), new entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in 
conjunction.  {MLCC Req #434767}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Michael Ansley, franchisee 
of Buffalo Wild Wings of the metropolitan Detroit and Florida markets.   
 
Buffalo Wild Wings opened its first location in Columbus, Ohio in 1982.  Mr. Ansley 
has been a franchisee for 12 years.  He currently owns several restaurants, 
including Sterling Heights, Warren, Ferndale, Novi, Fenton, Grand Blanc, and 
Petoskey.  Management for the Troy location will be transferred from his other 
restaurants.  Training will be done by both corporate and internal teams.  They 
require that all servers be 21 years of age and attend the “Serve Safe” alcohol 
training.  In his 12 years of business, Mr. Ansley has received only one liquor 
violation.  The parking was questioned by a committee member and Mr. Ansley 
replied that the landlord has obtained a parking variance for the site.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee of a 1993 City Council 
Resolution stating that there cannot be two facilities with Class C licenses and 
entertainment permits within 3,000 feet of each other.  The City Attorney’s office is 
of the opinion that it is timely for City Council to review this Resolution in light of 
the high density trend in Troy.  Also, the City now has an adult business use 
ordinance which we did not have when this Resolution went into effect.   
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation found only one liquor violation and 
that occurred in 2002 in Novi. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-009 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that AMC Troy, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of escrowed 
2007 Class C licensed business with Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; 
transfer location, governmental unit under MCL 436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, 
Suite 208, Novi, Michigan 48375, to 1873 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 
48083, Oakland County; be granted a new outdoor service (1 area), new 
entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in conjunction.   
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 3 of 4 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 
 

 
 
2. Somerset Collection Limited Partnership requests to transfer ownership 

of 2007 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 2801 West Big 
Beaver Road, Somerset Collection, Suite J-230, Troy, Michigan 48084, 
Oakland County, from Sebastian’s Ltd.; with license to be held in escrow. 
{MLCC Req #416257} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Patrick Howe of Carlin, 
Edwards, Brown & Howe. 
 
This request is for a license transfer to the owners of the Somerset Collection.  
They have no intention of activating the license.  Several years ago, Sebastian’s 
Restaurant closed and there is a lease provision which states that the liquor 
license would revert back to the landlord if the tenant vacated.  The license has 
been surrendered to the landlord, and the landlord would like to hold on to the 
license for “record purposes” to hold it in escrow until they find a tenant within the 
mall.  The MLCC regulations state that the license can be held in escrow for five 
years. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster suggested that the Committee make their 
recommendation to City Council with the stipulation that when the license comes 
out of escrow, the City of Troy be entitled to its standard investigation. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-010 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Somerset Collection Limited Partnership be allowed to transfer 
ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 2801 West Big 
Beaver Road, Somerset Collection, Suite J-230, Troy, Michigan 48084, Oakland 
County, from Sebastian’s Ltd.; with license to be held in escrow, with the 
stipulation that when the license comes out of escrow, the City of Troy be entitled 
to its standard investigation.  
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 
 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 4 of 4 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



DATE:        March 3, 2008

TO:             Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of February 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 1 $476,000.00 $3,477.00
Completion (New) 1 $1,500,000.00 $9,645.00
Add/Alter 6 $735,000.00 $5,950.00

Sub Total 8 $2,711,000.00 $19,072.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $450,000.00 $3,295.00
Completion (New) 1 $158,064.00 $1,258.00
Tenant Completion 2 $235,000.00 $1,935.00
Accessory Structure 1 $25,000.00 $320.00
Add/Alter 12 $1,181,200.00 $10,001.00
Repair 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Kiosk 1 $0.00 $35.00

Sub Total 19 $2,053,764.00 $16,959.00

RESIDENTIAL
Add/Alter 15 $136,585.00 $2,603.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $1,100.00 $55.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $5,000.00 $115.00
Repair 2 $4,190.00 $130.00
Fire Repair 1 $8,542.00 $195.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $110.00

Sub Total 22 $155,417.00 $3,208.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $500,000.00 $3,645.00
Add/Alter 2 $44,500.00 $527.00

Sub Total 3 $544,500.00 $4,172.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 28 $0.00 $2,955.00
Fences 1 $0.00 $15.00

Sub Total 29 $0.00 $2,970.00

TOTAL 81 $5,464,681.00 $46,381.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2008

NO. PERMIT FEE
Mul. Dwel. Insp. 86 $860.00
Cert. of Occupancy 25 $1,946.05
Plan Review 54 $3,158.50
Microfilm 29 $333.00
Building Permits 81 $46,381.00
Electrical Permits 111 $8,616.00
Heating Permits 100 $5,550.00
Air Cond. Permits 31 $1,765.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $50.00
Plumbing Permits 82 $9,442.00
Storm Sewer Permits 6 $318.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 10 $312.00
Sewer Taps 8 $2,456.00

TOTAL 624 $81,187.55

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2008

NO. LICENSE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 29 $145.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 34 $510.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 8 $8.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 3 $45.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 8 $80.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 4 $60.00

TOTAL 92 $908.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2007 2007 2008 2008

JANUARY 119 $7,595,008.00 71 $4,678,432.00

FEBRUARY 101 $8,056,092.00 81 $5,464,681.00

MARCH 135 $9,204,932.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 140 $4,844,929.00 0 $0.00

MAY 170 $11,201,261.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 183 $6,057,272.00 0 $0.00

JULY 134 $5,755,737.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 149 $10,867,085.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 151 $15,498,043.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 194 $13,663,761.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 136 $16,386,272.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 102 $4,572,214.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1714 $113,702,606.00 152 $10,143,113.00



2004 2004

20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2008

3
0

10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
…

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

0



Mar 3, 2008 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2008Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter BARTON MALOW COMPANY 5825 DELPHI D  300,000
Commercial, Add/Alter HORIZON RETAIL CONSTRUCTION INC 2801 W BIG BEAVER E-154  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter PAGELS, CURTISS E 2511 LIVERNOIS  215,000
Commercial, Add/Alter INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT 1301 W LONG LAKE  137,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  902,000

Commercial, Completion New RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION 135 E MAPLE  158,064

Commercial, Completion NewTotal  158,064

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New J. B. DONALDSON CO 1434 W BIG BEAVER  450,000

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  450,000

Commercial, Tenant Completion REMEDY ROUGH & FINISH CARPENTRY 1639 E BIG BEAVER 104  130,000
Commercial, Tenant Completion HOWARD, RICK 2051 E BIG BEAVER  105,000

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  235,000

Industrial, Add/Alter KEMP BLDG COMPANY 2341 ALGER  150,000
Industrial, Add/Alter TIECO PRODUCTS INC 1890 BRINSTON  230,000
Industrial, Add/Alter PERRI BUILDING CO 401 MINNESOTA  200,000
Industrial, Add/Alter REDICO 1225 E MAPLE  110,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  690,000

Industrial, Completion New CUNNINGHAM-LIMP 2805 BELLINGHAM  1,500,000

Industrial, Completion NewTotal  1,500,000

Industrial, New Building MANCINI ENTERPRISE 2680 INDUSTRIAL ROW  476,000

Industrial, New BuildingTotal  476,000

Religious, New Construction TROY CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE 6840 CROOKS  500,000

Religious, New ConstructionTotal  500,000

Total Valuation:  4,911,064Records  16



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b





























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-05





campbellld
Text Box
J-06







campbellld
Text Box
J-07





m  
  

TO: MEMBERS OF THE TROY CITY COUNCIL  
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
DATE: MARCH 6, 2008 
SUBJECT: LEROY S. NARDI V CITY OF TROY 

 

 

 

Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi filed a lawsuit against the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, and the 
State of Michigan.  The case was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan, and assigned to Judge Anna Diggs Taylor.  On February 25, 2008, the Court granted 
Troy’s Motion for Summary Judgment and dismissed the case. 

Mr. Nardi’s home at 97 East Wattles is located in an R-1C zoning district.  The property was 
previously serviced by a septic system.  On April 26, 2001, Mark Stimac, Troy’s Director of Building 
and Zoning, notified Mr. Nardi that new public sewers were installed with the construction of the 
surrounding single-family residential development (Crestwood) and that he was required under 
Section 2.65 of Chapter 19 of the Troy City Code to connect his property to the public sewer within 
18 months.  Mr. Nardi was also advised of his obligation to pay a Sewer Benefit Fee as required by 
Section 8 of Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code.  At that time, the Sewer Benefit Fee for property 
located in an R-1C district was $3,400.  Although Mr. Nardi had until November 1, 2002 to make the 
connection, his septic system failed prior to that date.  On November 21, 2001, he signed a Sewer 
Contract and agreed to pay the fee in equal quarterly installments of $57. Unfortunately, Mr. Nardi 
then failed to pay the quarterly installments.  As with all delinquent assessments, the City turned 
over the collection of the unpaid assessments to the Oakland County Treasurer for collection.  
Oakland County initiated foreclosure proceedings.   

Mr. Nardi initially filed this lawsuit to stop the foreclosure action against him.  He also 
requested reimbursement of money he previously paid, and punitive damages in the amount 
$500,000.   He claimed his rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th Amendments of the United States 
Constitution were violated.  He also alleged fraud, extortion, a violation of Article VI, Section 2 of the 
Constitution, a taking of property without due process, and he claimed  the Sewer Contract was 
signed under duress.  Troy filed a Motion to Dismiss as its first responsive pleading.  The motion 
was granted in part and all the state law claims (fraud, extortion, duress) were dismissed.  However, 
the Court allowed Mr. Nardi an opportunity to file an amended complaint stating federal claims only.  
Subsequently, Mr. Nardi filed an amended complaint that challenged the validity of the Sewer 
Benefit Fee.  He claimed the fee violated his constitutional right to due process and equal protection 
of the law.  He also claimed the fee was an unlawful special assessment.  After filing his amended 
complaint, Mr. Nardi voluntarily dismissed the State of Michigan from the lawsuit.  He also voluntarily 
dismissed Oakland County in exchange for the County’s agreement to stay foreclosure proceedings 
pending the outcome of his challenge to Troy’s Sewer Benefit Fee.  After concluding discovery, Troy 
filed its Motion for Summary Judgment.  In granting the motion, Judge Taylor opined that Troy’s 
ordinance imposing a Sewer Benefit Fee did not violate Mr. Nardi’s constitutional rights.  The Court 
dismissed the remaining claim for lack of subject matter jurisdiction because special assessments 
are governed by state law.  

If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08






	AGENDA: March 17, 2008
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation Celebrating 20 Years – The Business Advisory Group
	Proclamation Celebrating 50 Years – Troy Youth Assistance
	Traffic Safety Award
	Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg – 41st District
	Trails Committee Update


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2005 Unexpended Funds

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B:  (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: LaShish) – Continuance of Public Hearing
	D-2a Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of Public Hearing
	D-2b Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) – Continuance of Public Hearing

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals; Cable Advisory Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Parks & Recreation Board; an...
	E-2 Resolution to Reconsider Board and Commission Appointments of January 9, 2006
	E-3 Adjustment to Plumbing Permit Fees
	E-4 Final Preliminary Plat Approval (Extension) – Beachview Estates Subdivision, West Side of Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18
	E-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – John R Garden Subdivision
	E-6 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses – Proposed Amendment to Chapter 30

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a) Community Development Block Grant Week – March 24-30, 2008
	b) Business Advisory Group, LLC – Celebrating 20 Years
	c) Troy Youth Assistance – Celebrating 50 Years

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Aboveground Fuel Storage – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000.00 – Michigan Municipal League
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Agreement – Live Scan

	F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #73 – Sidwell #88-20-01-110-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski
	F-6 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 Parcel #80 – Sidwell #88-20-01-104-001 – John and Nancy Lozenkovski
	F-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates
	F-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claims, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.04.5 – Parcel #47B Sidwell #88-20-02-228-037 – Charles E. Kemen, Eric Deentry and Philip Kemen
	F-9 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Kirts and Livernois
	F-10 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2007
	F-11 Rome Love v. City of Troy
	F-12 Request for Approval of Additional Payment of $100.00 for Loss of Trees – John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi
	F-13 Blood Draw Agreements

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Republic/APT, 1889 Larchwood – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – April 7, 2008

	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Animal Control Appeal Board Minutes/Final – September 5, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 3, 3007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 3, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – January 2, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – January 2, 2008
	Library Advisory Board/Final – January 10, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 6, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 11, 2008
	Planning Commission/Draft – February 12, 2008
	Planning Commission/Final – February 12, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 19, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 4, 2008
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 5, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 5, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 10, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2008
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 29, 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie Bergeron Regarding Traffic Assistance during Commencement Ceremonies
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Westland Fire Chief Michael Reddy Regarding Participation and Support during Firefighter Funeral

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244
	J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding Amended Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15417
	J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Leroy S. Nardi v. City of Troy

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



